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ÿÿÿ
       Financial Management Department 
   Jeff Snyder, CPA, Chief Financial Officer

Juneÿ24,ÿ2020ÿ

HonorableÿMayor,ÿMembersÿofÿtheÿ
CityÿCouncil,ÿandÿCitizensÿofÿtheÿ
CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ

TheÿComprehensiveÿAnnualÿFinancialÿReportÿ (CAFR)ÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿforÿtheÿ
fiscalÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019,ÿisÿsubmittedÿherewith,ÿfulfillingÿtheÿrequirementsÿofÿtheÿCityÿ
Charter,ÿ Floridaÿ Statutesÿ andÿ theÿ Rulesÿ ofÿ theÿ Auditorÿ Generalÿ ofÿ theÿ Stateÿ ofÿ Florida.ÿ ÿ Theÿ
organization,ÿform,ÿandÿcontentsÿofÿthisÿreportÿplusÿtheÿaccompanyingÿfinancialÿstatementsÿandÿ
statisticalÿtablesÿareÿpreparedÿbyÿtheÿFinancialÿManagementÿDepartmentÿofÿtheÿCityÿinÿaccordanceÿ
withÿ generallyÿ acceptedÿ accountingÿ principlesÿ (GAAP)ÿ forÿ stateÿ andÿ localÿ governmentsÿ andÿ asÿ
prescribedÿbyÿtheÿGovernmentalÿAccountingÿStandardsÿBoardÿ(GASB).ÿResponsibilityÿforÿbothÿtheÿ
accuracyÿofÿtheÿpresentedÿdataÿandÿtheÿcompletenessÿandÿfairnessÿofÿtheÿpresentation,ÿincludingÿ
allÿdisclosures,ÿrestsÿwithÿtheÿCity.ÿ

Theÿ Cityÿ isÿ responsibleÿ forÿ establishingÿ andÿ maintainingÿ aÿ comprehensiveÿ internalÿ controlsÿ
frameworkÿ thatÿ isÿ designedÿ toÿ provideÿ reasonable,ÿ butÿ notÿ absolute,ÿ assuranceÿ regardingÿ theÿ
safeguardingÿofÿassetsÿagainstÿlossÿfromÿunauthorizedÿuseÿorÿdisposition,ÿtheÿreliabilityÿofÿfinancialÿ
recordsÿforÿpreparingÿfinancialÿstatements,ÿandÿmaintainingÿaccountabilityÿforÿassets.ÿÿTheÿconceptÿ
ofÿreasonableÿassuranceÿrecognizesÿthatÿtheÿcostÿofÿaÿcontrolÿshouldÿnotÿexceedÿtheÿbenefitsÿlikelyÿ
toÿ beÿ derived,ÿ andÿ theÿ evaluationÿ ofÿ costsÿ andÿ benefitsÿ requiresÿ estimatesÿ andÿ judgmentsÿ byÿ
management.ÿ ÿ Itÿ isÿourÿbeliefÿ thatÿ theÿCity sÿ internalÿ accountingÿ controlsÿadequatelyÿsafeguardÿ
assetsÿandÿprovideÿreasonableÿassuranceÿofÿproperÿrecordingÿofÿfinancialÿtransactions.ÿ

Weÿbelieveÿtheÿdataÿasÿpresentedÿisÿaccurateÿinÿallÿmaterialÿaspects;ÿthatÿitÿisÿpresentedÿinÿaÿmannerÿ
designedÿtoÿfairlyÿsetÿforthÿtheÿfinancialÿpositionÿandÿresultsÿofÿoperationsÿofÿtheÿCityÿasÿmeasuredÿ
byÿtheÿfinancialÿactivityÿofÿitsÿvariousÿfunds;ÿandÿthatÿallÿdisclosuresÿnecessaryÿtoÿenableÿtheÿreaderÿ
toÿgainÿaÿcomprehensiveÿunderstandingÿofÿtheÿCity sÿfinancialÿactivityÿhaveÿbeenÿincluded.ÿ

FloridaÿStatutesÿrequireÿanÿindependentÿcertifiedÿpublicÿaccountant sÿfinancialÿauditÿofÿcitiesÿinÿtheÿ
State.ÿÿTheÿCity sÿfinancialÿstatementsÿhaveÿbeenÿauditedÿbyÿCarr,ÿRiggs,ÿ&ÿIngram,ÿLLC,ÿaÿfirmÿofÿ
licensedÿ certifiedÿ publicÿ accountants.ÿ ÿ Theÿ independentÿ auditÿ wasÿ performedÿ toÿ provideÿ
reasonableÿassuranceÿthatÿtheÿfinancialÿstatementsÿareÿfreeÿofÿmaterialÿmisstatementÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿ
yearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019.ÿ

Theÿauditÿinvolvedÿexamining,ÿonÿaÿtestÿbasis,ÿevidenceÿsupportingÿtheÿamountsÿandÿdisclosuresÿinÿ
theÿfinancialÿstatements;ÿassessingÿtheÿaccountingÿprinciplesÿusedÿandÿsignificantÿestimatesÿmadeÿ
byÿmanagement:ÿandÿevaluatingÿtheÿoverallÿfinancialÿstatementÿpresentation.ÿÿTheÿindependentÿ
auditorÿ concluded,ÿ basedÿ uponÿ theÿ audit,ÿ thatÿ thereÿ wasÿ aÿ reasonableÿ basisÿ forÿ renderingÿ
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unmodifiedÿopinionsÿthatÿtheÿCity sÿfinancialÿstatementsÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ
2019ÿareÿfairlyÿpresentedÿinÿconformityÿwithÿGAAP.ÿÿTheÿindependentÿauditor sÿreportÿisÿlocatedÿatÿ
theÿfrontÿofÿtheÿfinancialÿsectionÿofÿthisÿreport.ÿÿ

Theÿ independentÿ auditÿofÿ theÿ financialÿ statementsÿofÿ theÿ Cityÿwasÿpartÿ ofÿaÿ broader,ÿ federallyÿ
mandatedÿ SingleÿAudit ÿdesignedÿtoÿmeetÿ theÿspecialÿneedsÿofÿ federalÿ grantorÿagencies.ÿ ÿTheÿ
standardsÿgoverningÿSingleÿAuditÿengagementsÿrequireÿtheÿindependentÿauditorÿtoÿreportÿnotÿonlyÿ
onÿtheÿfairÿpresentationÿofÿtheÿfinancialÿstatements,ÿbutÿalsoÿonÿtheÿauditedÿgovernment sÿinternalÿ
controlsÿandÿcomplianceÿwithÿlegalÿrequirements,ÿwithÿspecialÿemphasisÿonÿinternalÿcontrolsÿandÿ
legalÿrequirementsÿinvolvingÿtheÿadministrationÿofÿfederalÿawards.ÿÿTheÿSingleÿAuditÿSectionÿisÿtheÿ
lastÿsectionÿofÿthisÿreport.ÿ

Management sÿDiscussionÿandÿAnalysisÿ (MD&A)ÿ immediatelyÿ followsÿtheÿ independentÿauditor sÿ
reportÿ andÿ providesÿ aÿ narrativeÿ introduction,ÿ overview,ÿ andÿ analysisÿ ofÿ theÿ basicÿ financialÿ
statements.ÿMD&Aÿcomplimentsÿthisÿletterÿofÿtransmittalÿandÿshouldÿbeÿreadÿinÿconjunctionÿwithÿ
it.ÿ

Theÿgovernment wideÿfinancialÿstatementsÿ(i.e.,ÿtheÿStatementÿofÿNetÿPositionÿandÿtheÿStatementÿ
ofÿ Activities),ÿ asÿ foundÿ inÿ theÿ basicÿ financialÿ statements,ÿ reportÿ informationÿ onÿ allÿ ofÿ theÿnon
fiduciaryÿ activitiesÿ ofÿ theÿ primaryÿ governmentÿ andÿ itsÿ componentÿ units.ÿ ÿ Theÿ purposeÿ ofÿ theÿ
government wideÿ financialÿ statementsÿ isÿ toÿ provideÿ aÿ consolidatedÿ financialÿ pictureÿ ofÿ allÿ Cityÿ
activities.ÿÿGovernmentalÿactivitiesÿwhichÿnormallyÿareÿsupportedÿbyÿtaxesÿandÿintergovernmentalÿ
revenuesÿ areÿ reportedÿ separatelyÿ fromÿbusiness typeÿactivities,ÿwhichÿ relyÿmostlyÿ onÿ feesÿ andÿ
chargesÿforÿserviceÿforÿsupport.ÿ

The Reporting Entity and Services 

TheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿisÿtheÿmostÿpopulousÿCityÿinÿSt.ÿLucieÿCounty.ÿÿItÿwasÿincorporatedÿinÿ1961ÿ
andÿ isÿ locatedÿnearÿ theÿAtlanticÿOceanÿ onÿ theÿ southeastÿ coastÿ ofÿ Florida.ÿ ÿ Itÿ isÿ situatedÿ inÿ theÿ
southernÿpartÿofÿSt.ÿLucieÿCountyÿwhichÿliesÿbetweenÿIndianÿRiverÿCountyÿtoÿtheÿnorthÿandÿMartinÿ
Countyÿtoÿtheÿsouth.ÿÿTheÿCityÿcurrentlyÿoccupiesÿ120ÿsquareÿmiles.ÿÿTheÿpopulationÿasÿreportedÿinÿ
theÿ2010ÿCensusÿwasÿ164,603ÿandÿtheÿestimatedÿpopulationÿofÿtheÿCityÿasÿofÿAprilÿ1,ÿ2018ÿwasÿ
191,903ÿ (informationÿ suppliedÿ byÿ theÿ Stateÿ ofÿ Floridaÿ Officeÿ ofÿ Economicÿ &ÿ Demographicÿ
Research).ÿÿInÿtheÿearlyÿ2000's,ÿtheÿCityÿwasÿconsideredÿtheÿfastestÿgrowingÿcommunityÿinÿbothÿtheÿ
stateÿandÿtheÿcountry.ÿTheÿCityÿisÿgrowingÿatÿaÿmoreÿsustainableÿpaceÿandÿperÿtheÿlatestÿpopulationÿ
estimates;ÿtheÿCityÿisÿtheÿ7thÿlargestÿCityÿinÿtheÿState.ÿÿTheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿisÿempoweredÿtoÿ
levyÿaÿpropertyÿtaxÿonÿbothÿrealÿandÿpersonalÿpropertyÿ locatedÿwithinÿ itsÿboundaries.ÿ ÿ Itÿ isÿalsoÿ
empoweredÿbyÿstateÿstatutesÿtoÿextendÿitsÿcorporateÿlimitsÿbyÿannexation,ÿwhichÿitÿhasÿdoneÿfromÿ
timeÿtoÿtime.ÿ

Form of Government 

TheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿisÿstrategicallyÿlocatedÿ100ÿmilesÿnorthÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿMiami,ÿ50ÿmilesÿnorthÿ
ofÿtheÿCityÿofÿWestÿPalmÿBeachÿandÿ120ÿmilesÿsouthÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿOrlando.ÿÿTheÿCityÿisÿservedÿbyÿ
threeÿmajorÿnorth southÿFloridaÿhighways:ÿ Interstateÿ95,ÿtheÿFloridaÿTurnpikeÿandÿU.S.ÿHighwayÿ
No.ÿ1,ÿandÿisÿlocatedÿnearÿaÿseaport,ÿanÿinternationalÿairportÿandÿhasÿrailwayÿaccess.ÿÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿ
isÿtheÿspringÿtrainingÿhomeÿofÿtheÿNewÿYorkÿMetsÿmajorÿleagueÿbaseballÿteamÿandÿhomeÿofÿtheÿSt.ÿ
LucieÿMets.ÿTheÿProfessionalÿGolfÿAssociationÿhasÿaÿhomeÿinÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿatÿPGAÿVillageÿandÿhasÿ
builtÿ threeÿoutstandingÿgolfÿ courses.ÿ ÿTheÿ IndianÿRiverÿStateÿCollegeÿandÿKeiserÿUniversityÿhaveÿ
facilitiesÿlocatedÿwithinÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿprovidingÿexcellentÿhigherÿeducationÿopportunities.ÿÿÿ
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TheÿCityÿwasÿcreatedÿunderÿtheÿLawsÿofÿFloridaÿActÿ61 2721ÿandÿoperatesÿunderÿaÿCouncil/Managerÿ
formÿofÿgovernment.ÿÿTheÿCityÿCouncil,ÿcomprisedÿofÿfourÿcouncilÿmembersÿandÿtheÿmayor,ÿisÿtheÿ
principalÿlegislativeÿandÿgoverningÿbodyÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿÿCouncilÿmembersÿandÿtheÿmayorÿserveÿfourÿ
yearÿtermsÿwithÿstaggeredÿelectionsÿheldÿeveryÿtwoÿyears.ÿ

Theÿ CityÿManagerÿ isÿ theÿ ChiefÿAdministrativeÿOfficerÿ ofÿ theÿ Cityÿ andÿ isÿ responsibleÿ toÿ theÿ Cityÿ
Council.ÿTheÿCityÿManagerÿoverseesÿtheÿday to dayÿoperations,ÿmakesÿpolicyÿrecommendationsÿtoÿ
theÿ Cityÿ Councilÿ andÿ performsÿ otherÿ dutiesÿ assignedÿ toÿ himÿ byÿ theÿ Cityÿ Councilÿ includingÿ theÿ
preparationÿofÿtheÿannualÿbudgetÿandÿtheÿCity sÿfive yearÿcapitalÿimprovementÿplan.ÿ

TheÿCityÿprovidesÿaÿbroadÿrangeÿofÿmunicipalÿservicesÿincludingÿpoliceÿprotection,ÿcodeÿinspectionÿ
andÿcompliance,ÿplanningÿandÿzoning,ÿcommunityÿandÿeconomicÿdevelopment,ÿconstructionÿandÿ
maintenanceÿ ofÿ transportationÿ facilities,ÿ recreationalÿ andÿ culturalÿ activities,ÿ emergencyÿ
preparednessÿmanagement,ÿwaterÿandÿwastewaterÿutilities,ÿstormwaterÿmanagementÿandÿgeneralÿ
andÿadministrativeÿsupport.ÿÿIndependentÿtaxingÿagenciesÿprovideÿfireÿprotectionÿandÿeducationÿ
services.ÿ

Financial Reporting Entity 

ThisÿreportÿincludesÿallÿfundsÿofÿtheÿCityÿthatÿareÿcontrolledÿbyÿorÿareÿdependentÿonÿtheÿCityÿCouncil.ÿ
TheÿCityÿalsoÿexercisesÿoversightÿandÿfinancialÿresponsibilityÿforÿtheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿGovernmentalÿ
FinanceÿCorporation,ÿtheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿCommunityÿRedevelopmentÿAgencyÿandÿtheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿ
MunicipalÿPoliceÿOfficers ÿRetirementÿTrustÿFund.ÿÿAccordingly,ÿtheseÿactivitiesÿareÿincludedÿinÿtheÿ
City sÿfinancialÿstatements.ÿÿAdditionalÿinformationÿonÿtheseÿthreeÿlegallyÿseparateÿentitiesÿcanÿbeÿ
foundÿinÿNoteÿIÿ ÿAÿinÿtheÿnotesÿtoÿtheÿfinancialÿstatements.ÿ

Annualÿbudgetsÿforÿallÿ fundsÿofÿ theÿCity,ÿexceptÿCapitalÿProjectsÿFunds,ÿareÿadoptedÿbyÿtheÿCityÿ
Councilÿeachÿyear.ÿTheÿannualÿbudgetÿservesÿasÿtheÿfoundationÿforÿtheÿCity sÿfinancialÿplanningÿandÿ
control.ÿÿTheÿbudgetÿisÿlegallyÿenactedÿthroughÿtheÿpassageÿofÿanÿordinanceÿbyÿCityÿCouncilÿonÿorÿ
beforeÿtheÿendÿofÿSeptemberÿofÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿcurrentlyÿending.ÿÿTheÿlevelÿofÿbudgetaryÿcontrolÿisÿ
theÿ department.ÿ Theÿ Cityÿ Managerÿ isÿ authorizedÿ toÿ transferÿ budgetedÿ amountsÿ withinÿ
departmentsÿ ofÿ anyÿ fund.ÿ Revisionsÿ thatÿ alterÿ theÿ budgetedÿ totalsÿ ofÿ anyÿ departmentÿ requireÿ
approvalÿofÿtheÿCityÿCouncil.ÿEncumbranceÿaccountingÿisÿutilizedÿinÿgovernmentalÿfundsÿinÿorderÿtoÿ
reserveÿtheÿencumberedÿportionÿofÿtheÿappropriation.ÿEncumbrancesÿoutstandingÿatÿyearÿendÿareÿ
reportedÿasÿreservationsÿtoÿfundÿbalanceÿandÿareÿre appropriatedÿasÿpartÿofÿtheÿfollowingÿyear sÿ
budget.ÿ

Economic Condition and the Local Economy 

Commercial Development 
Theÿ Cityÿ ofÿ Portÿ Stÿ Lucieÿ continuesÿ toÿ experienceÿ significantÿ growthÿ inÿ newÿ residentialÿ andÿ
commercialÿconstruction.ÿNewÿcommercialÿpermitsÿcontinueÿtoÿbeÿactiveÿinÿ2018ÿandÿ2019ÿwithÿaÿ
totalÿofÿ293ÿpermitsÿ issuedÿ inÿ2018ÿversusÿ275ÿpermitsÿ issuedÿ inÿ2019.ÿSingleÿfamilyÿ residentialÿ
permitsÿ increasedÿbyÿnearlyÿ 25%ÿbetweenÿ 2018ÿandÿ2019ÿwithÿ aÿ totalÿofÿ 2,188ÿ permitsÿ issuedÿ
versusÿ2,725ÿpermitsÿ issuedÿrespectively.ÿ ÿTheÿtotalÿvalueÿofÿallÿpermitsÿissuedÿduringÿ2018ÿwasÿ
$807ÿmillionÿ versusÿ $846ÿmillionÿ inÿ 2019,ÿ nearlyÿ aÿ 5%ÿ increase.ÿ ÿ Thisÿ constructionÿ activityÿwillÿ
positivelyÿimpactÿourÿadÿvaloremÿtaxÿbaseÿoverÿtheÿnextÿcoupleÿofÿyear.ÿ
Housing Market 
AccordingÿtoÿtheÿFloridaÿRealtorsÿAssociationÿtheÿmedianÿsalesÿpriceÿofÿaÿsingle familyÿhomeÿinÿStÿ
LucieÿCountyÿ increasedÿ5.9%ÿfromÿ$220,000ÿ inÿ2018ÿtoÿ$233,000ÿ inÿ2019.ÿLikewise,ÿtheÿmedianÿ
salesÿpriceÿofÿtownhousesÿandÿcondosÿinÿStÿLucieÿCountyÿincreasedÿbyÿ2.1%ÿfromÿ$176,750ÿinÿ2018ÿ
toÿ$180,500ÿinÿ2019.ÿAsÿnotedÿaboveÿtheÿbuildingÿpermitsÿissuedÿareÿincreasingÿatÿveryÿstrongÿrates.ÿÿ
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TheÿCity sÿlowÿcrimeÿrate,ÿimprovedÿgradesÿofÿlocalÿschoolsÿandÿaffordableÿmarketÿrateÿhousingÿareÿ
contributingÿfactorsÿleadingÿtoÿanÿincreaseÿinÿhousingÿdemandÿinÿPortÿStÿLucie.ÿ

TheÿeffectÿonÿtheÿeconomyÿdueÿtoÿtheÿCOVID 19ÿpandemicÿwillÿnotÿbeÿknownÿforÿmanyÿmonths.ÿÿ
Thereÿareÿaÿmultitudeÿofÿtheoriesÿbeingÿbanteredÿaboutÿinÿtheÿfinancialÿmarketÿrangingÿfromÿanÿ
immediateÿ recoverÿ toÿ anÿ economicÿArmageddon.ÿ ÿ ÿ Theÿ Cityÿwillÿ remainÿ vigilantÿ toÿ trendsÿ andÿ
growthÿ developmentsÿ asÿ timeÿpassesÿ readyÿ toÿ takeÿwhateverÿmeasuresÿareÿnecessaryÿ toÿmeetÿ
theseÿchallengesÿifÿtheyÿemerge.ÿÿCityÿCouncilÿhasÿbeenÿandÿcontinuesÿtoÿbeÿfiscallyÿresponsibleÿ
withÿtheÿCity sÿresourcesÿwhichÿplacesÿtheÿusÿinÿaÿstrongÿfinancialÿpositionÿtoÿweatherÿthisÿstorm.ÿ

Strategic Plan 
TheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿCityÿCouncilÿcontinuesÿtoÿutilizeÿstrategicÿplanningÿtoÿguideÿtheÿfutureÿofÿtheÿcity.ÿ
InÿJulyÿofÿ2018ÿtheÿCityÿCouncilÿadoptedÿanÿupdatedÿStrategicÿPlanÿthatÿidentifiesÿsevenÿmainÿgoalsÿ
alongÿwithÿstrategicÿobjectivesÿandÿactionsÿtoÿsupportÿtheÿoverallÿgoals:ÿÿ

x Safe,ÿCleanÿandÿBeautiful;
x VibrantÿNeighborhoods;
x QualityÿEducationÿforÿAllÿResidents;
x DiverseÿEconomyÿandÿEmploymentÿOpportunities;
x HighÿQualityÿInfrastructureÿandÿFacilities;
x Culture,ÿNatureÿandÿFunÿActivitiesÿand
x HighÿPerformingÿCityÿGovernmentÿOrganization

TheÿCityÿCouncilÿadoptedÿtheÿfollowingÿvisionÿforÿourÿfuture:ÿ
PortÿSt.ÿLucieÿhasÿGreat Neighborhoods;ÿexcellentÿEducational Opportunitiesÿforÿ
lifelongÿlearning;ÿaÿDiverse Local EconomyÿandÿEmploymentÿoptions;ÿConvenient 
Transportation;ÿ uniqueÿ naturalÿ resourcesÿ includingÿ theÿ St. Lucie River;ÿ andÿ
Leisure OpportunitiesÿforÿanÿActive Lifestyle.ÿ

Port St. Lucie is a Safe, Beautiful, and Prosperous City for All People Your 
Hometown. 

ÿTheÿworkÿofÿtheÿCityÿisÿcenteredÿinÿtheÿCity sÿmission:ÿ
toÿprovideÿexceptionalÿmunicipalÿservicesÿthatÿareÿresponsiveÿtoÿtheÿcommunityÿ
andÿtoÿplanÿforÿsmartÿandÿbalancedÿgrowthÿwhileÿactingÿinÿaÿfinanciallyÿresponsibleÿ
manner. ÿÿ

TheÿCity sÿ staffÿ hasÿembracedÿ thisÿ strategicÿplanÿwhichÿdrivesÿourÿdailyÿactivities.ÿ ÿ Fromÿ topÿ toÿ
bottomÿweÿareÿcommittedÿtoÿrealizingÿtheseÿgoals.ÿ

Budget Outlook 

Afterÿsixÿyearsÿofÿincreasingÿpropertyÿvaluesÿandÿÿfavorableÿeconomicÿindicators,ÿtheÿlocalÿeconomyÿ
continuesÿtoÿgrow.ÿÿForÿtheÿseventhÿyearÿinÿaÿrowÿtheÿCity'sÿtaxableÿvalueÿhasÿincreasedÿandÿtheÿ
year over yearÿpercentageÿofÿincreaseÿhasÿgrownÿeachÿyearÿ(fromÿ1.7%ÿinÿ2013ÿtoÿ10.8%ÿinÿ2019).ÿÿ
Thisÿgeneratesÿanÿadditionalÿ$4ÿmillionÿinÿpropertyÿtaxÿrevenueÿforÿtheÿ2019 2020ÿfiscalÿyearÿoverÿ
theÿpriorÿyearÿ.ÿÿAsÿaÿresultÿofÿtheÿincreaseÿinÿassessedÿvaluesÿandÿforÿtheÿfourthÿyearÿinÿaÿrow,ÿÿtheÿ
CityÿCouncilÿreducedÿtheÿmillageÿtaxÿratesÿbyÿ0.2260ÿmillsÿforÿFiscalÿYearÿ2018 2019,ÿreducingÿtheÿ
totalÿCityÿtaxÿrateÿfromÿaÿhighÿofÿ6.3000ÿtoÿ6.0740.ÿ
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InÿtheÿGeneralÿFund,ÿfiveÿmajorÿrevenuesÿ(propertyÿtaxes,ÿsalesÿtaxes,ÿ10%ÿelectricÿutilityÿtax,ÿ6%ÿ
electricÿfranchiseÿfee,ÿandÿcommunicationsÿservicesÿtax)ÿmakeÿupÿ83%ÿofÿtheÿtotalÿgeneralÿfundÿ
revenuesÿandÿareÿanticipatedÿtoÿincreaseÿ4.5%,ÿprimarilyÿdueÿtoÿtheÿincreaseÿinÿpropertyÿtaxÿvalues.ÿ

TheÿlongÿrangeÿGeneralÿFundÿmodelÿassumesÿaÿmodestÿlevelÿofÿtaxableÿvalueÿincreaseÿgoingÿintoÿ
futureÿyearsÿandÿ increasesÿtoÿotherÿeconomicÿrevenues.ÿ ÿFundÿBalanceÿContingenciesÿareÿbeingÿ
budgetedÿatÿ20%ÿorÿgreater.ÿÿThisÿsoundÿfinancialÿpictureÿisÿallowingÿtheÿCityÿCouncilÿtoÿenhanceÿ
theÿlevelÿofÿserviceÿbeingÿprovidedÿandÿtheyÿareÿableÿtoÿbeginÿaddressingÿtheÿdeferredÿmaintenanceÿ
issuesÿwhichÿwereÿlargelyÿignoredÿduringÿtheÿGreatÿRecession.ÿÿWithÿtheÿCityÿcontinuingÿtoÿbeÿinÿaÿ
strongÿpositionÿtoÿfundÿitsÿfinancialÿobligations,ÿitÿisÿanticipatedÿthatÿtheÿCity'sÿcreditÿratingsÿwillÿ
achieveÿhigherÿclassifications.ÿHowever,ÿweÿhaveÿsignificantÿunknownsÿofÿtheÿfutureÿimpactÿonÿourÿ
revenuesÿdueÿ toÿ theÿCOVID 19ÿpandemicÿwhichÿweÿareÿ allÿ livingÿ through.ÿ TheÿCityÿwillÿ remainÿ
vigilantÿtoÿtheÿpotentialÿfutureÿchangesÿsoÿthatÿweÿcanÿreactÿappropriately.ÿ

Current and Long Term Capital Improvements. 

TheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿCapitalÿImprovementÿProgramÿisÿaÿmulti yearÿplanÿusedÿtoÿidentifyÿneededÿ
capitalÿ projectsÿ andÿ toÿ coordinateÿ financingÿ andÿ timingÿ ofÿ theÿ capitalÿ additionsÿ necessaryÿ toÿ
complimentÿtheÿgrowthÿofÿtheÿCityÿandÿtoÿcomplyÿwithÿrequirementsÿofÿtheÿGrowthÿManagementÿ
Act.ÿOngoingÿfundingÿsourcesÿforÿcapitalÿimprovementsÿincludeÿaÿportionÿofÿtheÿadÿvaloremÿtaxesÿ
leviedÿeachÿyearÿbyÿtheÿCity,ÿaÿ0.2313ÿcounty wideÿtaxÿlevyÿdedicatedÿtoÿparks,ÿtheÿ6ÿcent,ÿ2ÿcent,ÿ
andÿ3ÿcentÿlocalÿoptionÿgasÿtaxesÿimposedÿbyÿCountyÿOrdinance,ÿroadÿimpactÿfees,ÿandÿparksÿimpactÿ
fees.ÿGrantsÿandÿbondÿproceedsÿareÿalsoÿusedÿtoÿfundÿspecificÿcapitalÿimprovements,ÿsuchÿasÿtheÿ
variousÿ sidewalksÿ projectsÿ andÿ Riverwalkÿ Multi Phaseÿ (Park)ÿ Project.ÿ Majorÿ capitalÿ projectsÿ
plannedÿforÿtheÿnextÿfiveÿyearsÿareÿestimatedÿtoÿcostÿ$301.9ÿmillionÿinÿtotalÿandÿinclude:ÿ

x $ÿ24.1ÿmillionÿÿÿÿÿ PortÿSt.ÿLucieÿBlvdÿImprovements
x $ÿ44.7ÿmillionÿÿ WestportÿWastewaterÿPlantÿupgrades
x $ÿ34.8ÿmillionÿ WaterÿTreatmentÿUpgrades
x $ÿÿÿ5.5ÿmillionÿ SidewalkÿImprovements
x $ÿ11.6ÿmillionÿ RiverwalkÿMulti PhaseÿProject
x $ÿ10.6ÿmillionÿ StreetÿResurfacingÿProjects
x $15.0ÿmillionÿÿÿÿÿÿÿPublicÿWorksÿFacility
x $15.1ÿmillionÿ FlorestaÿDriveÿImprovements

TheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿhasÿcompletedÿaÿsix laneÿeast westÿconnectorÿroad,ÿCrosstownÿParkway,ÿ
whichÿestablishesÿ aÿ connectionÿ betweenÿHighwayÿ1ÿ andÿ Interstateÿ 95ÿ toÿ facilitateÿ growthÿplusÿ
provideÿforÿemergencyÿevacuationÿforÿourÿcitizensÿinÿtheÿwestÿsideÿofÿtown.ÿÿThisÿisÿtheÿculminationÿ
ofÿnearlyÿ20ÿyearsÿofÿcontinualÿeffortÿandÿ$313ÿmillionÿinÿbonds,ÿstateÿgrants,ÿandÿfederalÿgrants.ÿ

Awards and Acknowledgments 

TheÿGovernmentÿFinanceÿOfficersÿAssociationÿofÿtheÿUnitedÿStatesÿandÿCanadaÿ(GFOA)ÿawardedÿaÿ
CertificateÿofÿAchievementÿforÿExcellenceÿinÿFinancialÿReportingÿtoÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ
forÿitsÿcomprehensiveÿannualÿfinancialÿreportÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2018.ÿÿThisÿ
wasÿtheÿtwenty eighthÿconsecutiveÿyearÿthatÿtheÿCityÿhasÿachievedÿthisÿprestigiousÿaward.ÿÿInÿorderÿ
toÿbeÿawardedÿaÿCertificateÿofÿAchievement,ÿaÿgovernmentÿmustÿpublishÿanÿeasilyÿreadableÿandÿ
efficientlyÿ organizedÿ Comprehensiveÿ Annualÿ Financialÿ Report.ÿ Thisÿ reportÿ mustÿ satisfyÿ bothÿ
generallyÿacceptedÿaccountingÿprinciplesÿandÿapplicableÿlegalÿrequirementsÿ
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AÿCertificateÿofÿAchievementÿisÿvalidÿforÿaÿperiodÿofÿoneÿyearÿonly.ÿÿWeÿbelieveÿthatÿourÿcurrentÿ
comprehensiveÿ annualÿ financialÿ reportÿ continuesÿ toÿ meetÿ theÿ Certificateÿ ofÿ Achievementÿ
Program sÿ requirementsÿ andÿ weÿ areÿ submittingÿ itÿ toÿ theÿ GFOAÿ toÿ determineÿ itsÿ eligibilityÿ forÿ
anotherÿcertificate.ÿ

Inÿ addition,ÿ theÿCityÿ alsoÿ receivedÿ theÿGFOA sÿDistinguishedÿBudgetÿPresentationÿAwardÿ forÿ itsÿ
annualÿbudgetÿdocumentÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿbeginningÿOctoberÿ1,ÿ2018.ÿÿInÿorderÿtoÿqualifyÿforÿtheÿ
DistinguishedÿBudgetÿPresentationÿAward,ÿtheÿCity sÿbudgetÿdocumentÿwasÿjudgedÿtoÿbeÿproficientÿ
inÿseveralÿcategories,ÿincludingÿasÿaÿpolicyÿdocument,ÿaÿfinancialÿplan,ÿanÿoperationsÿguideÿandÿaÿ
communicationsÿdevice.ÿ

IÿwantÿtoÿthankÿtheÿstaffÿofÿtheÿFinancialÿManagementÿDepartmentÿforÿtheirÿeffortsÿinÿpreparingÿ
thisÿreportÿandÿallÿCityÿdepartmentsÿforÿtheirÿcooperationÿandÿassistanceÿthroughoutÿtheÿpastÿyear.ÿ
IÿalsoÿwantÿtoÿthankÿtheÿCityÿManagerÿandÿhisÿstaff,ÿandÿtheÿMayorÿandÿCityÿCouncilÿinÿprovidingÿ
leadershipÿandÿtakingÿnecessaryÿactionsÿtoÿcontinueÿaÿstandardÿofÿfinancialÿexcellenceÿforÿtheÿCity.ÿ

RespectfullyÿSubmitted,ÿ

JeffÿSnyder,ÿCPAÿ
ChiefÿFinancialÿOfficerÿ
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CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐÿ
ForÿtheÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019ÿ

ÿ

MDA 1ÿ
ÿ

AsÿmanagementÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿweÿofferÿtheÿfollowingÿnarrativeÿoverviewÿandÿanalysisÿ
ofÿtheÿfinancialÿactivitiesÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ(theÿCity)ÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ
30,ÿ 2019.ÿ ÿ Readersÿ areÿ encouragedÿ toÿ considerÿ thisÿ overviewÿ andÿ analysisÿ inÿ combinationÿ withÿ theÿ
traditionalÿtransmittalÿletterÿthatÿcanÿbeÿfoundÿonÿpagesÿviÿ ÿxiÿ(PDFÿpagesÿ12ÿ ÿ17)ÿofÿthisÿreport.ÿ

FINANCIALÿHIGHLIGHTSÿ

x dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ� ƌevenueÿ bondÿ balanceÿ increasedÿ duringÿ theÿ fiscalÿ yearÿ asÿ aÿ resultÿ ofÿ refundingÿ theÿ
nonexchangeÿfinancialÿguaranteeÿbondÿofÿ$54.6ÿmillionÿasÿaÿtaxableÿrevenueÿbond.ÿ

x Netÿpensionÿliabilityÿandÿnetÿotherÿpost employmentÿbenefitÿ(OPEB)ÿliabilityÿbothÿincreasedÿdueÿ
toÿchangesÿinÿassumptionsÿandÿdifferencesÿbetweenÿactualÿandÿexpectedÿexperiences,ÿbyÿnearlyÿ
37%ÿorÿ$11.6ÿmillion.ÿ

x OnÿtheÿGovernment tŝĚĞ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐĂƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�Ψϭ96.6ÿ
millionÿatÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019ÿŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ŽďůŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŝƚŝǌĞŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�
creditors.ÿ

x �ƚ� ƚŚĞ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ĨŝƐĐĂů� ǇĞĂƌ͕� ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů� ĨƵŶĚƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ� ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ� ĨƵŶĚ�
balancesÿofÿ$180.2ÿmillion,ÿanÿincreaseÿofÿ$17.5ÿmillionÿfromÿlastÿfiscalÿyear.ÿÿApproximatelyÿ33.5%ÿ
ofÿtheÿtotalÿgovernmentalÿfundÿbalanceÿamount,ÿorÿ$60.4ÿmillion,ÿ isÿdesignatedÿasÿcommitted,ÿ
assigned,ÿandÿunassigned.ÿÿTheÿremainingÿ66.5%ÿorÿ$119.8ÿmillionÿisÿdesignatedÿasÿnon spendableÿ
orÿrestrictedÿfoundÿonÿpageÿ29ÿ(PDFÿpageÿ66).ÿÿSeeÿNoteÿ2ÿonÿpageÿ27ÿ(PDFÿpageÿ64)ÿforÿaÿdetailedÿ
descriptionÿofÿfundÿbalanceÿclassificationsÿperÿGASBÿStatementÿNo.ÿ54ÿʹÿFundÿBalanceÿReportingÿ
andÿGovernmentalÿFundÿTypeÿDefinitions.ÿ

ÿ
OVERVIEWÿOFÿTHEÿFINANCIALÿSTATEMENTSÿ

ThisÿdiscussionÿandÿanalysisÿareÿintendedÿtoÿserveÿasÿanÿintroductionÿtoÿtheÿCityÿBasicÿFinancialÿStatements.ÿÿ
Theÿ Basicÿ Financialÿ Statementsÿ areÿ comprisedÿ ofÿ threeÿ components:ÿ 1)ÿ Government Wideÿ Financialÿ
Statements,ÿ2)ÿFundÿFinancialÿ Statements,ÿ andÿ3)ÿNotesÿ toÿtheÿFinancialÿ Statements.ÿ ÿ Thisÿ reportÿalsoÿ
containsÿ otherÿ supplementaryÿ informationÿ inÿ additionÿ toÿ theÿ Basicÿ Financialÿ Statementsÿ themselves.ÿÿ
DetailÿregardingÿtheÿBasicÿFinancialÿStatementÿfollows.ÿ

1) BasicÿFinancialÿStatementsÿʹÿGovernment WideÿFinancialÿStatementsÿ

TheÿGovernment WideÿFinancialÿStatementsÿareÿdesignedÿtoÿprovideÿreadersÿwithÿaÿbroadÿoverviewÿofÿtheÿ
Cityÿfinances,ÿinÿaÿmannerÿsimilarÿtoÿaÿprivate sectorÿbusiness.ÿÿTheyÿareÿpresentedÿonÿpagesÿ2ÿ ÿ4ÿ(PDFÿ39ÿ
ʹÿ41)ÿofÿthisÿreport.ÿÿSummarizedÿversionÿofÿtheseÿstatementsÿareÿincludedÿinÿthisÿManagementÿDiscussionÿ
&ÿAnalysisÿ(MD&A)ÿandÿcanÿbeÿfoundÿonÿpagesÿ3ÿandÿ6.ÿÿÿ

TheÿStatementÿofÿNetÿPosition,ÿpageÿ2,ÿpresentsÿinformationÿonÿallÿofÿtheÿCityÿassets,ÿdeferredÿoutflowsÿofÿ
resources,ÿliabilities,ÿandÿdeferredÿinflowsÿofÿresources,ÿwithÿtheÿdifferenceÿbetweenÿtheÿcomponentsÿasÿ
netÿposition.ÿÿOverÿtimeÿincreasesÿorÿdecreasesÿinÿnetÿpositionÿmayÿserveÿasÿaÿusefulÿindicatorÿofÿchangesÿ
inÿtheÿCity͛Ɛÿfinancialÿposition.ÿ

ÿ

ÿ
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TheÿStatementÿofÿActivities,ÿ pageÿ3,ÿ presentsÿ informationÿshowingÿhowÿ theÿ Cityÿnetÿpositionÿ changedÿ
duringÿtheÿfiscalÿyear.ÿÿAllÿchangesÿinÿnetÿpositionÿareÿreportedÿasÿsoonÿasÿtheÿunderlyingÿeventÿgivingÿriseÿ
toÿtheÿchangeÿoccurs,ÿregardlessÿofÿtheÿtimingÿofÿrelatedÿcashÿflows.ÿÿThisÿisÿtheÿaccrualÿbasisÿofÿaccounting.ÿÿ
Thus,ÿrevenuesÿandÿexpensesÿareÿreportedÿinÿthisÿstatementÿforÿsomeÿitemsÿthatÿwillÿonlyÿresultÿinÿcashÿ
flowsÿinÿfutureÿfiscalÿperiods.ÿ

BothÿtheÿStatementÿofÿNetÿPositionÿandÿtheÿStatementÿofÿActivitiesÿdivideÿtheÿfunctionsÿofÿtheÿCityÿthatÿ
areÿprincipallyÿsupportedÿbyÿtaxesÿandÿintergovernmentalÿrevenuesÿ(GovernmentalÿActivities)ÿfromÿotherÿ
functionsÿ thatÿ areÿ intendedÿ toÿ recoverÿ allÿ orÿ aÿ significantÿ portionÿ ofÿ theirÿ costÿ throughÿ userÿ feesÿ andÿ
chargesÿ(Business TypeÿActivities).ÿTheÿGovernmentalÿActivitiesÿofÿtheÿCityÿincludeÿgeneralÿgovernment,ÿ
publicÿsafety,ÿphysicalÿenvironment,ÿtransportation,ÿeconomicÿenvironment,ÿhumanÿservices,ÿandÿcultureÿ
andÿrecreation.ÿÿTheÿBusiness TypeÿActivitiesÿofÿtheÿCityÿincludeÿtheÿutilityÿsystem,ÿtheÿstormwaterÿutility,ÿ
andÿtheÿgolfÿcourse.ÿÿSeeÿNoteÿ1ÿonÿpageÿ19ÿ(PDFÿpageÿ56)ÿforÿfurtherÿdiscussionÿonÿtheÿfinancialÿreportingÿ
entity.ÿ

Government WideÿFinancialÿStatementÿAnalysisÿ

Theÿ followingÿ tables,ÿ graphs,ÿ andÿ analysisÿ discussÿ theÿ financialÿ positionÿ andÿ changesÿ toÿ theÿ financialÿ
positionÿforÿtheÿCityÿasÿaÿwholeÿandÿasÿofÿtheÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019.ÿ

NetÿPosition.ÿÿAsÿnotedÿabove,ÿnetÿpositionÿmayÿserveÿoverÿtimeÿasÿaÿusefulÿindicatorÿofÿaÿŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛÿ
ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘��dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ďǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ƉůƵƐ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƵƚĨůŽǁƐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�
exceededÿliabilitiesÿplusÿdeferredÿinflowsÿofÿresources,ÿwasÿ$1,041.5ÿmillionÿatÿtheÿcloseÿofÿtheÿfiscalÿyear.ÿ

dŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ,ÿ$617.8ÿmillion,ÿreflectsÿitsÿinvestmentÿinÿcapitalÿassets,ÿe.g.,ÿ
land,ÿbuildings,ÿimprovements,ÿequipment,ÿandÿinfrastructure,ÿlessÿanyÿrelatedÿdebtÿusedÿtoÿacquireÿthoseÿ
assetsÿ thatÿ areÿ stillÿ outstanding.ÿ ÿ Theÿ Cityÿ usesÿ theseÿ capitalÿ assetsÿ toÿ provideÿ servicesÿ toÿ citizens;ÿ
consequently,ÿtheseÿassetsÿareÿnotÿavailableÿforÿfutureÿspending.ÿÿTheÿfollowingÿtableÿsummarizesÿpageÿ2ÿ
(PDFÿpageÿ39),ÿtheÿdetailedÿStatementÿofÿNetÿPosition.ÿ

dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�Ψ298.1ÿmillion,ÿrepresentsÿresourcesÿthatÿareÿsubjectÿtoÿ
externalÿ restrictionsÿ onÿ howÿ theyÿ mayÿ beÿ used.ÿ ÿ Suchÿ restrictionsÿ includeÿ debtÿ serviceÿ payments,ÿ
developmentÿ impactÿ feesÿ restrictedÿ toÿ growth relatedÿ projects,ÿ otherÿ capitalÿ projects,ÿ andÿ requiredÿ
ƌĞƐĞƌǀĞƐ͘��dŚĞ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƵŶƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͕�Ψ125.5ÿmillion,ÿmayÿbeÿusedÿtoÿ
meetÿcurrentÿandÿongoingÿobligations.ÿ

Atÿtheÿendÿofÿtheÿfiscalÿyear,ÿtheÿCityÿhadÿpositiveÿbalancesÿinÿallÿthreeÿcategoriesÿofÿnetÿpositions,ÿ1)ÿnetÿ
investmentÿinÿcapitalÿassets,ÿ2)ÿrestricted,ÿandÿ3)ÿunrestrictedÿforÿtheÿtotalÿgovernmentÿandÿtheÿbusiness
typeÿactivities.ÿÿ
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2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Asssets:
Currentÿandÿotherÿassets 378,073$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 380,758$ÿÿ 124,276$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 118,723$ÿ 502,349$ÿÿÿÿÿ 499,481$ÿÿ
Capitalÿassets 751,117ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 715,413ÿÿÿÿÿ 645,194ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 631,086ÿÿÿÿ 1,396,311ÿÿÿÿ 1,346,499ÿ

Totalÿassets 1,129,190ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,096,171ÿ 769,470ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 749,809ÿÿÿÿ 1,898,660ÿÿÿÿ 1,845,980ÿ
Deferredÿoutflows 35,039ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 32,478ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 16,708ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 16,599ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,747ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 49,077ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Liabi li ties:
Otherÿliabil ities 45,912ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 40,159ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 21,650ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 27,730ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 67,562ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 67,889ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Long termÿl iabi li tiesÿoutstanding 422,795ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 436,624ÿÿÿÿÿ 404,556ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 412,037ÿÿÿÿ 827,351ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 848,661ÿÿÿÿÿ

Totalÿl iabil ities 468,707ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 476,783ÿÿÿÿÿ 426,206ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 439,767ÿÿÿÿ 894,913ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 916,550ÿÿÿÿÿ
Deferredÿinflows 8,792ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 14,005ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,217ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,217ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 14,009ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 19,222ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Netÿposition:
Netÿinvestedÿinÿcapital ÿassets 371,421ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 352,634ÿÿÿÿÿ 246,424ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 225,938ÿÿÿÿ 617,845ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 578,572ÿÿÿÿÿ
Restricted 260,295ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 287,398ÿÿÿÿÿ 37,801ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 44,362ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 298,096ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 331,760ÿÿÿÿÿ
Unrestrictedÿ(deficit) 55,015ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (2,171)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 70,529ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,124ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 125,544ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 48,953ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Totalÿnetÿposition 686,731$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 637,861$ÿÿ 354,754$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 321,424$ÿ 1,041,485$ÿ 959,285$ÿÿ

Activities Activites Government

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
NetÿPositionÿasÿofÿSeptemberÿ30,

(inÿthousands)

Governmental Business type Total

ÿ

CapitalÿAssets.ÿdŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�capitalÿassetsÿforÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019,ÿtotaledÿ$1.4ÿbillion,ÿ
netÿofÿaccumulatedÿdepreciation.ÿÿThisÿrepresentsÿanÿincreaseÿofÿ$49.8ÿmillionÿfromÿpriorÿfiscalÿyear,ÿanÿ
increaseÿofÿ$35.7ÿmillionÿforÿGovernmentalÿActivitiesÿandÿanÿincreaseÿofÿ$14.1ÿmillionÿforÿBusiness Typeÿ
Activities.ÿÿ

TheÿCrosstownÿParkwayÿbridgeÿprojectÿ resultedÿ inÿ theÿ largeÿ increaseÿ inÿconstructionÿ inÿprogress.ÿ ÿ Theÿ
completionÿofÿtheÿbridgeÿwillÿfinishÿaÿmoreÿthanÿ$300ÿmillionÿprojectÿwhichÿbeganÿinÿ2005.ÿÿThisÿprojectÿ
willÿlinkÿtheÿeastÿandÿwestÿportionÿofÿtheÿCityÿwithÿaÿsix ůĂŶĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�ƚŽ�ĞĂƐĞ�ƚƌĂĨĨŝĐ�ĚĞůĂǇƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�
otherÿtwoÿmajorÿriverÿcrossings.ÿÿÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ
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dŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚĂďůĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�Ă�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ůŝƐƚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐƵŵƵůĂƚĞĚ�ĚĞƉƌeciation.ÿ

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land 131,972$ÿ 123,309$ÿ 56,048$ÿÿÿÿ 55,694$ÿÿÿÿ 188,020$ÿÿÿÿÿ 179,003$ÿÿÿÿÿ
Bui ldings 87,838ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 76,711ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,135ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,297ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 90,973ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 80,008ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Improvementsÿotherÿthanÿbuildings 32,576ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 30,715ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,335ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,151ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 33,911ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 31,866ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Machineryÿandÿequipment 10,856ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,486ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,862ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,686ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 23,718ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 25,172ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Intangible 209ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 202ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 525ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 555ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 734ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 757ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Infrastructure 358,200ÿÿÿÿ 372,124ÿÿÿÿ 22,103ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 22,860ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 380,303ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 394,984ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Plant ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 206,214ÿÿÿÿ 211,357ÿÿÿÿ 206,214ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 211,357ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Waterÿandÿsewerÿsystem ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 325,074ÿÿÿÿ 319,664ÿÿÿÿ 325,074ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 319,664ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Constructionÿinÿprogress 129,466ÿÿÿÿ 99,866ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,898ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,822ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 147,364ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 103,688ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
TotalÿCapitalÿAssets 751,117$ÿ 715,413$ÿ 645,194$ÿ 631,086$ÿ 1,396,311$ÿ 1,346,499$ÿ

Activities Activites Government

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
CapitalÿAssetsÿ(netÿofÿdepreciation)

asÿofÿSeptemberÿ30,
(inÿthousands)

Governmental Business type Total

ÿ

�ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐĂƉŝƚĂů�ĂƐƐĞƚƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�EŽƚĞ�3ÿ(D)ÿofÿtheÿfinancialÿ
statements.ÿ

Long termÿLiabilities.ÿÿAsÿshownÿinÿtheÿscheduleÿbelow,ÿtheÿCityÿexperiencedÿdecreasesÿinÿlong termÿdebtÿ
ofÿapproximatelyÿ4.9%ÿorÿ$40.6ÿmillion.ÿÿTheÿCityÿhasÿbeenÿconcentratingÿonÿreducingÿoutstandingÿdebtÿasÿ
quicklyÿasÿpossible.ÿÿManagementÿhasÿbeenÿrefundingÿdebtÿasÿpresentÿvalueÿsavingsÿwarrant.ÿÿÿdŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�
policyÿisÿtoÿrefundÿwhenÿtheÿpresentÿvalueÿsavingsÿareÿ5%ÿorÿgreaterÿandÿaÿpresentÿvalueÿofÿfutureÿcashÿ
flowÿsavingsÿareÿ$0.4ÿmillionÿorÿgreater,ÿƵŶůĞƐƐ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ďĞƐƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĨƵŶĚ͘ÿ

Generalÿobligationÿ(GO)ÿbondsÿareÿbackedÿbyÿtheÿfullÿfaithÿandÿcreditÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿÿInÿFlorida,ÿGOÿbondsÿcanÿ
onlyÿbeÿissuedÿthroughÿaÿmajorityÿvoteÿofÿourÿconstituents.ÿÿTheÿcurrentÿGOÿbondsÿareÿassociatedÿwithÿtheÿ
majorÿcapitalÿproject,ÿCrosstownÿParkway.ÿÿÿ

TheÿspecialÿassessmentÿdebtÿwasÿissuedÿtoÿaidÿinÿdevelopmentÿofÿcertainÿareasÿwithinÿtheÿCityÿbyÿ
buildingÿtheÿinfrastructure:ÿstreets,ÿelectric,ÿwater,ÿandÿsewer.ÿÿPropertyÿownersÿpayÿforÿtheseÿ
improvementsÿthroughÿassessmentsÿonÿtheirÿtaxÿbill.ÿÿSpecialÿassessmentÿdebtÿwasÿreducedÿbyÿ4.7%ÿorÿ
$6.5ÿmillionÿbyÿrequiredÿprincipalÿpaymentsÿandÿutilizingÿexcessÿspecialÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿforÿearlyÿ
callÿofÿoutstandingÿprincipal.ÿ

RevenueÿbondsÿareÿbackedÿbyÿtheÿspecificÿrevenueÿpledgedÿandÿnotÿtheÿfullÿfaithÿandÿcreditÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿÿ
Theseÿbondsÿareÿlargelyÿrelatedÿtoÿwater,ÿsewer,ÿandÿstormwaterÿactivitiesÿandÿwillÿbeÿpaidÿfromÿuserÿfees.ÿÿ
Revenueÿbondsÿ increasedÿbyÿ6.8%ÿorÿ$33.4ÿmillionÿduringÿ theÿ year.ÿ ÿ Theÿnetÿ increaseÿwasÿ aÿ resultÿ ofÿ
refinancingÿ theÿ nonexchangeÿ financialÿ guaranteeÿ netÿ ofÿ requiredÿ principalÿ payments.ÿ Theÿ amountÿ
refinancedÿwasÿ$54.1ÿmillionÿandÿrequiredÿprincipalÿpaymentsÿwereÿ$20.7ÿmillion.ÿ
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ÿ

Overall,ÿ tŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ� ůŽŶŐ termÿ liabilitiesÿ decreasedÿduringÿ theÿyearÿ andÿ increasedÿ forÿcertainÿ categories,ÿ
namely,ÿgeneralÿobligationÿbonds,ÿspecialÿassessmentÿbonds,ÿandÿnonexchangeÿfinancialÿguarantee.ÿÿÿ

�Ɛ�ŵĞŶƚŝŽŶĞĚ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�D�Θ��ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞƚ�KW���ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�increasedÿbyÿ
aÿ totalÿ toÿ 37%ÿ orÿ $11.6ÿ millionÿ duringÿ theÿ yearÿ dueÿ inÿ aÿ largeÿ partÿ toÿ changesÿ inÿ assumptionsÿ andÿ
differencesÿbetweenÿexpectedÿandÿactualÿexperience.ÿ

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

General ÿobligationÿbonds 97,890$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 101,605$ÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 97,890$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 101,605$ÿÿÿÿÿ
Specialÿassessmentÿbonds 129,950ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 136,400ÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 129,950ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 136,400ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Revenueÿbonds 155,140ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 109,515ÿÿÿÿÿ 372,110ÿÿÿÿ 384,380ÿÿÿÿ 527,250ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 493,895ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Compensatedÿabsences 10,067ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 9,669ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,987ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,686ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 14,054ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 13,355ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Capitalÿleases 781ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,037ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 781ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,037ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Nonexchangeÿfinancial ÿguarantee ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 54,556ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 54,556ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Unamortizedÿbondÿpremiums 12,172ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 15,882ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 26,660ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 31,914ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 38,832ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 47,796ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Netÿpensionÿliabil i ty 26,361ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 19,251ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 26,361ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 19,251ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Netÿotherÿpostÿemploymentÿbenefits 11,221ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 7,874ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,816ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,660ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,037ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,534ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
TotalÿLongÿTermÿLiabil ities 443,582$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 455,789$ÿÿ 408,573$ÿ 424,640$ÿ 852,155$ÿÿÿÿÿ 880,429$ÿÿÿÿÿ

Activities Activites Government

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
Long TermÿLiabilities
asÿofÿSeptemberÿ30,

(inÿthousands)

Governmental Business type Total

ÿ

�ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ůŽŶŐ termÿdebtÿcanÿbeÿfoundÿinÿtheÿNotesÿtoÿtheÿFinancialÿStatements,ÿ
Noteÿ3ÿ(G),ÿLong TermÿLiabilities.ÿ

�ůů�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĂƚĞĚ�ďǇ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŽŶeÿofÿtheÿnationallyÿrecognizedÿratingÿagencies.ÿÿAsÿ
theÿCityÿhasÿbeenÿmovingÿ forwardÿwithÿ theÿ issuanceÿofÿ theÿ refundingÿbonds,ÿStandardÿ&ÿPŽŽƌ͛Ɛ� ;^ΘWͿÿ
Globalÿprovidedÿratings.ÿÿNotableÿisÿanÿupgradeÿtoÿtheÿUtilityÿRevenueÿbondsÿbyÿS&PÿGlobalÿofÿAA ÿupÿfromÿ
anÿA+ÿbasedÿinÿpartÿuponÿbothÿstrongÿoperationalÿmanagementÿandÿstrongÿfinancialÿmanagement.ÿ

ZĂƚŝŶŐƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ďŽŶĚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂƐ�ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗ÿ

BondÿType S&P Moody's Fitch
GeneralÿObligation AA Aa3 Noÿrating
SpecialÿAssessment AA Noÿrating Noÿrating
SpecialÿRevenue AA A2 Noÿrating
PublicÿServiceÿTax AA Noÿrating Noÿrating
CommunityÿRedevelopment AA A2 Noÿrating
TaxableÿSpecialÿObligation AA Noÿrating Noÿrating
StormwaterÿRevenue Noÿrating Aa3 Noÿrating
UtilityÿRevenue Noÿrating Aa3 Noÿrating ÿ
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ChangesÿinÿNetÿPosition.ÿDetailsÿofÿtheÿfollowingÿsummarizedÿinformationÿcanÿbeÿfoundÿonÿpageÿ3,ÿtheÿ
StatementÿofÿActivities.ÿ

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Programÿrevenues:
Chargesÿforÿservices 55,220$ÿ 55,849$ÿ 102,313$ÿ 97,889$ÿ 157,533$ÿÿ 153,738$ÿ
Operatingÿgrantsÿ&ÿcontributions 4,957ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,252ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 800ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 13ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,757ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,265ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Captialÿgrantsÿ&ÿcontributions 20,618ÿÿÿÿ 22,999ÿÿÿÿ 36,003ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 24,894ÿÿÿÿ 56,621ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 47,893ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Generalÿrevenues:
Propertyÿtaxes 60,802ÿÿÿÿ 56,103ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 60,802ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 56,103ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Otherÿtaxes 57,277ÿÿÿÿ 49,715ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 57,277ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 49,715ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Stateÿrevenueÿsharing 6,041ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,685ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 6,041ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,685ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Interestÿincome 4,557ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,276ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,760ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,660ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 8,317ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 2,936ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Otherÿrevenues 6,346ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 39,031ÿÿÿÿ 375ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 6,721ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 39,031ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Totalÿrevenues 215,818ÿ 234,910ÿ 143,251ÿÿÿÿ 124,456ÿ 359,069ÿÿÿÿÿ 359,366ÿÿÿÿ

Expenses:
Generalÿgovernment 21,901ÿÿÿÿ 19,548ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 21,901ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 19,548ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Publicÿsafety 54,882ÿÿÿÿ 53,319ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 54,882ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 53,319ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Physicalÿenvironment 18,793ÿÿÿÿ 18,941ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 18,793ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 18,941ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Transportation 25,974ÿÿÿÿ 33,659ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 25,974ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 33,659ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Economicÿenvironment 9,526ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 8,409ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 9,526ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 8,409ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Humanÿservices 3,963ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,248ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,963ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,248ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Cultureÿ&ÿrecreation 18,850ÿÿÿÿ 17,177ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 18,850ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,177ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
InterestÿonÿLong termÿdebt 16,553ÿÿÿÿ 12,239ÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 16,553ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,239ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Waterÿ&ÿwastewater ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 81,878ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 87,774ÿÿÿÿ 81,878ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 87,774ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Stormwater ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 22,771ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 22,370ÿÿÿÿ 22,771ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 22,370ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Golfÿcourse ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,778ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,892ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,778ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,892ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Totalÿexpenses 170,442ÿ 164,540ÿ 106,427ÿÿÿÿ 112,036ÿ 276,869ÿÿÿÿÿ 276,576ÿÿÿÿ
Changeÿinÿnetÿpositionÿbeforeÿtransfers 45,376ÿÿÿÿ 70,370ÿÿÿÿ 36,824ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,420ÿÿÿÿ 82,200ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 82,790ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Transfers 3,494ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (1,845)ÿÿÿÿÿ (3,494)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,845ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Changesÿinÿnetÿposition 48,870ÿÿÿÿ 68,525ÿÿÿÿ 33,330ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 14,265ÿÿÿÿ 82,200ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 82,790ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Netÿpositionÿ ÿbeginning
ÿÿÿbeforeÿrestatement 637,861ÿ 566,493ÿ 321,424ÿÿÿÿ 310,330ÿ 959,285ÿÿÿÿÿ 876,823ÿÿÿÿ
Restatementÿ ÿnoteÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 2,843ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (3,171)ÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (328)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Netÿpositionÿ ÿbeginning,ÿrestated 637,861ÿ 569,336ÿ 321,424ÿÿÿÿ 307,159ÿ 959,285ÿÿÿÿÿ 876,495ÿÿÿÿ
Netÿpositionÿ ÿending 686,731ÿ 637,861ÿ 354,754ÿÿÿÿ 321,424ÿ 1,041,485ÿ 959,285ÿÿÿÿ

Activities Activites Government

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
ChangesÿinÿNetÿPositionÿforÿtheÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,

(inÿthousands)

Governmental Business type Total

ÿ

dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŝŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ typeÿ
activities.ÿÿdŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞƚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�increasedÿbyÿnearlyÿ1%ÿorÿtoÿ$82.2ÿmillion.ÿ

Revenuesÿwereÿflatÿoverallÿandÿremainedÿatÿ$359ÿmillion;ÿrevenuesÿwereÿdownÿbyÿ8.1%ÿorÿ$19.1ÿmillionÿ
forÿgovernmentalÿactivitiesÿandÿupÿbyÿ15.1%ÿorÿ$18.8ÿmillionÿforÿbusiness typeÿactivities.ÿÿÿ

Overall,ÿexpensesÿwereÿflatÿwithÿanÿincreaseÿofÿ0.1%ÿorÿ$0.3ÿmillion.ÿÿ
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Theÿsourcesÿofÿtheÿrevenuesÿshownÿpreviouslyÿareÿportrayedÿ inÿtheÿfollowingÿchartsÿbyÿpercentageÿforÿ
GovernmentalÿActivitiesÿandÿthenÿtheÿBusinessÿTypeÿActivities:ÿ

Chargesÿforÿservices
25% Operatingÿgrantsÿ&ÿ

contributions
2%

Capitalÿgrantsÿ&ÿ
contributions

10%
Propertyÿtaxes

28%

Otherÿtaxes
26%

Stateÿrevenueÿ sharing
3%

Otherÿrevenues
4% Interestÿrevenues

2%

RevenuesÿbyÿSourceÿ GovernmentalÿActivities
FiscalÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

ÿ

�Ɛ� ƐŚŽǁŶ� ĂďŽǀĞ͕� ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ� ƚĂǆĞƐ� ĂŶĚ� ŽƚŚĞƌ� ƚĂǆĞƐ� ĂƌĞ� ƚŚĞ� �ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ� ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ� ƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ� ŽĨ� ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞ� ĨŽƌ� ƚŚĞ�
Governmentalÿ Activitiesÿ comprisingÿ 54%ÿ ofÿ theÿ total.ÿ ÿ Additionalÿ informationÿ aboutÿ taxÿ revenuesÿ isÿ
providedÿinÿtheÿRevenueÿCapacityÿsectionÿofÿtheÿStatisticalÿSectionÿofÿthisÿreportÿbeginningÿonÿpageÿ151.ÿ
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Chargesÿforÿservices
71%

Operatingÿgrantsÿ&ÿ
contributions

1%

Capitalÿgrantsÿ&ÿcontributions
25%

Interestÿincome
3%

RevenuesÿbyÿSourceÿ BusinessÿTypeÿActivities
FiscalÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

Chargesÿforÿservices Operatingÿgrantsÿ&ÿcontributions Captialÿgrantsÿ&ÿcontributions Interestÿincome

Asÿ shownÿ inÿ thisÿ chart,ÿ chargesÿ forÿ servicesÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿmajorityÿ ofÿ theÿ Business Typeÿ Activitiesÿ
revenuesÿwhichÿisÿtoÿbeÿexpectedÿforÿtheseÿtypesÿofÿactivities.ÿ

2) BasicÿFinancialÿStatementsÿ ÿFundÿfinancialÿstatementsÿÿ
AÿFundÿisÿaÿgroupingÿofÿrelatedÿaccountsÿthatÿisÿusedÿtoÿmaintainÿcontrolÿoverÿresourcesÿthatÿhaveÿbeenÿ
segregatedÿforÿspecificÿactivitiesÿorÿobjectives.ÿÿTheÿCity,ÿlikeÿotherÿstateÿandÿlocalÿgovernments,ÿusesÿ
fundÿaccountingÿtoÿensureÿandÿdemonstrateÿcomplianceÿwithÿfinance relatedÿlegalÿrequirements.ÿAllÿtheÿ
�ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨƵŶĚƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĚŝǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌŝĞƐ͗�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů͕�ƉƌŽƉƌŝĞƚĂƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇ͘�ÿ
ÿ
Governmentalÿfunds.ÿGovernmentalÿfundsÿareÿusedÿtoÿaccountÿforÿessentiallyÿtheÿsameÿfunctionsÿreportedÿ
asÿ governmentalÿ activitiesÿ inÿ theÿ government wideÿ financialÿ statements.ÿ ÿ However,ÿ unlikeÿ theÿ
government wideÿ financialÿ statements,ÿ governmentalÿ fundÿ financialÿ statementsÿ focusÿ onÿ near termÿ
inflowsÿandÿoutflowsÿofÿspendableÿresources,ÿasÿwellÿas,ÿonÿbalancesÿofÿspendableÿresourcesÿavailableÿatÿ
ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘��^ƵĐŚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĨƵů�ŝŶ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŶĞĂƌ termÿfinancingÿ
requirements.ÿ

Becauseÿ theÿ focusÿ ofÿ governmentalÿ fundsÿ isÿ narrowerÿ thanÿ thatÿ ofÿ theÿ government wideÿ financialÿ
statements,ÿ itÿ isÿ usefulÿ toÿ compareÿ theÿ informationÿ presentedÿ forÿ governmentalÿ fundsÿ withÿ similarÿ
informationÿpresentedÿforÿgovernmentalÿactivitiesÿinÿtheÿgovernment wideÿfinancialÿstatements.ÿByÿdoingÿ
so,ÿ readersÿ mayÿ betterÿ understandÿ theÿ long ƚĞƌŵ� ŝŵƉĂĐƚ� ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ� ŶĞĂƌ termÿ financingÿ
decisions.ÿBothÿtheÿgovernmentalÿfundÿbalanceÿsheetÿandÿtheÿgovernmentalÿfundÿstatementÿofÿrevenues,ÿ
expendituresÿandÿchangesÿinÿfundÿbalancesÿprovideÿaÿreconciliationÿtoÿfacilitateÿtheÿcomparisonÿbetweenÿ
governmentalÿfundsÿandÿgovernmentalÿactivities.ÿÿ
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Theÿ Cityÿ maintainsÿ 39ÿ individualÿ governmentalÿ funds.ÿ ÿ Informationÿ isÿ presentedÿ separatelyÿ inÿ theÿ
governmentalÿfundÿbalanceÿsheetÿandÿinÿtheÿgovernmentalÿfundÿstatementÿofÿrevenues,ÿexpendituresÿandÿ
changesÿ inÿ fundÿbalancesÿforÿtheÿGeneralÿFund,ÿCommunityÿRedevelopmentÿFund,ÿCrosstownÿParkwayÿ
FundÿandÿSouthwestÿAnnexationÿDistrictÿ1ÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿCollectionÿFund,ÿ allÿofÿwhichÿareÿmajorÿ
funds.ÿÿDataÿfromÿtheÿotherÿ35ÿgovernmentalÿfundsÿareÿcombinedÿintoÿaÿsingle,ÿaggregatedÿpresentation.ÿÿ

Fundÿbalanceÿisÿsegregatedÿbetweenÿnon spendableÿandÿspendableÿcomponents.ÿTheÿsegregationÿofÿtheÿ
equityÿsectionÿisÿdesignedÿtoÿindicateÿtheÿextentÿtoÿwhichÿtheÿCityÿisÿboundÿtoÿhonorÿconstraintsÿonÿtheÿ
specificÿpurposeÿforÿwhichÿamountsÿinÿtheÿfundÿcanÿbeÿspent.ÿTheÿfiveÿcomponentsÿofÿfundÿbalanceÿareÿasÿ
follows:ÿ

x Non spendable:ÿAmountsÿnotÿinÿspendableÿformÿsuchÿasÿinventoryÿandÿpre paidÿitems.ÿ

ÿ SpendableÿFundÿbalances:ÿ

x Restricted:ÿSpendableÿresourcesÿwhichÿareÿrestrictedÿbyÿexternalÿlegalÿrestrictionsÿsuchÿasÿbondÿ
covenantsÿandÿstateÿandÿfederalÿgrants.ÿ

x Committed:ÿ Spendableÿ resourcesÿwhichÿ areÿ committedÿ byÿordinancesÿ ofÿ theÿ Cityÿ Councilÿ andÿ
contractsÿapprovedÿbyÿtheÿCityÿCouncil.ÿ

x Assigned:ÿ Spendableÿ resourcesÿwhichÿareÿ assignedÿbyÿ theÿCityÿCouncilÿ toÿspecificÿusesÿsuchÿasÿ
capitalÿprojectsÿandÿamountsÿtoÿcoverÿanticipatedÿrevenueÿshortfallsÿinÿtheÿensuingÿfiscalÿyear.ÿ

x Unassigned:ÿSpendableÿresourcesÿwhichÿcanÿbeÿusedÿforÿanyÿCityÿpurpose.ÿInÿtheÿgeneralÿfund,ÿitÿ
ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƐŚ�ĐĂƌƌǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͛Ɛ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘ÿ

�Ɛ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĨŝƐĐĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚĂů�ĨƵŶĚƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�ĞŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨƵŶĚ�
balancesÿofÿ$180.2ÿmillion,ÿanÿincreaseÿofÿ$17.5ÿmillionÿfromÿtheÿpriorÿyear.ÿTheÿprimaryÿreasonÿforÿtheÿ
increaseÿwasÿcollectionsÿ fromÿ theÿhalfÿcentsÿsalesÿ taxÿwhichÿ isÿaÿ revenueÿsourceÿ andÿ fundÿestablishedÿ
duringÿtheÿyear.ÿÿTheÿhalfÿcentÿsalesÿtaxÿisÿaÿten yearÿsalesÿtaxÿincreaseÿandÿrevenuesÿwillÿbeÿusedÿtoÿpayÿ
forÿbuildingÿmoreÿ sidewalks,ÿ improvingÿ roadsÿandÿwater qualityÿprojectsÿ toÿ improveÿ theÿhealthÿofÿ theÿ
IndianÿRiverÿLagoon.ÿ
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Theÿfollowingÿsummarizesÿinformationÿfoundÿonÿpagesÿ5ÿ ÿ8ÿ(PDFÿpagesÿ42ÿʹÿ45)ÿpagesÿinÿtheÿfollowingÿ
financialÿstatements:ÿ

FundÿBalances NetÿChangesÿin FundÿBalances
Septemberÿ30,ÿ2018 FundÿBalances Septemberÿ30,ÿ2019

General ÿFund 29,777$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,782$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 34,559$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
SWÿAnnexationÿDistrictÿ1ÿCollectionÿFund 10,194ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 411ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 10,605ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿRedevelopmentÿFund 248ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (25)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 223ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CrosstownÿParkwayÿFund 11,103ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (5,457)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,646ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
NonmajorÿGovernmentalÿFunds 111,410ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,763ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 129,173ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Totals 162,732$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,474$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 180,206$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Nonspendable 31,735$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (111)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 31,624$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Spendableÿ ÿRestricted 82,193ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,946ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 88,139ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Spendableÿ ÿCommitted,ÿAssigned,ÿUnassigned 48,804ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 11,639ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 60,443ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
TotalÿGovernmentalÿFundÿBalances 162,732$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 17,474$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 180,206$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
ChangesÿinÿGovernmentalÿFundÿBalances
FiscalÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

(inÿthousands)

ÿ

Theÿnon majorÿgovernmentalÿfundsÿincreasedÿ15.9%ÿorÿ$17.8ÿmillion.ÿTheÿmainÿreasonÿforÿtheÿincreaseÿ
wasÿtheÿadditionÿofÿtheÿhalfÿcentsÿsalesÿtaxÿfundÿwhichÿwasÿestablishedÿduringÿtheÿfiscalÿyear.ÿ

TheÿGeneralÿFundÿisÿtheÿchiefÿoperatingÿfundÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿAtÿtheÿendÿofÿtheÿcurrentÿfiscalÿyear,ÿtotalÿfundÿ
balanceÿofÿtheÿGeneralÿFundÿwasÿ$34.6ÿmillion.ÿOfÿthisÿamountÿapproximatelyÿ$31.7ÿmillionÿisÿunassignedÿ
butÿincluded͘��Ɛ�Ă�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�'ĞŶĞƌĂů�&ƵŶĚ͛Ɛ�ůŝƋƵŝĚŝƚǇ͕�ŝƚ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĨƵů�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĨƵŶĚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞƐ�
ƚŽ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĨƵŶĚ�ƌĞǀĞŶƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĞŶĚŝƚƵƌĞƐ͘�dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�fundÿbalanceÿrepresentsÿ34.5%ÿofÿrevenuesÿandÿ
36.6%ÿofÿexpendituresÿinÿtheÿGeneralÿFund.ÿ

GovernmentsÿhaveÿanÿoptionÿofÿincludingÿtheÿbudgetaryÿcomparisonÿstatementsÿforÿtheÿGeneralÿFundÿandÿ
theÿmajorÿspecialÿrevenueÿfundsÿasÿeitherÿpartÿofÿtheÿFundÿFinancialÿStatementsÿwithinÿtheÿBasicÿFinancialsÿ
Statements,ÿorÿasÿrequiredÿsupplementaryÿinformationÿ(RSI)ÿafterÿtheÿNotesÿtoÿtheÿFinancialÿStatements.ÿÿ
TheÿCityÿhasÿchosenÿtoÿpresentÿtheÿbudgetaryÿstatementsÿinÿtheÿRSIÿfollowingÿtheÿNotesÿtoÿtheÿFinancialÿ
Statements.ÿ
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TheÿfollowingÿsummarizesÿtheÿGeneralÿFundÿBudgetaryÿComparisonÿStatementÿasÿpresentedÿonÿpageÿ77ÿ
(PDFÿpageÿ114):ÿ

Final Variance
Amended Positive
Budget Actuals (Negative)

Revenues 100,949$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 100,179$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (770)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ExpendituresÿandÿEmcumbrances 100,359ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 94,485ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,874ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
DeficiencyÿofÿRevenuesÿUnderÿExpenditures 590ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,694ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,104ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

OtherÿFinancingÿSourcesÿ(Uses) (1,366)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (912)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 454ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
NetÿChangeÿinÿFundÿBalance (776)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,782ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,558ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

FundÿBalanceÿOctoberÿ1 29,778ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
FundÿBalanceÿSeptemberÿ30 34,560$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
GeneralÿFund

BudgetaryÿComparisonÿStatement
FiscalÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

(inÿthousands)

ÿ

Theÿ totalÿ revenuesÿ inÿ theÿ Generalÿ Fundÿ wereÿ withinÿ 1.0%ÿ ofÿ theÿ finalÿ amendedÿ budgetÿ andÿ totalÿ
expendituresÿwereÿlessÿthanÿtheÿfinalÿamendedÿbudget.ÿÿÿ

Theÿactualÿgeneralÿfundÿexpendituresÿwereÿ$5.9ÿmillionÿlessÿthanÿtheÿFinalÿAmendedÿBudget.ÿÿTheÿactualÿ
GeneralÿFundÿexpendituresÿreflectÿdepartmentÿefficiencies,ÿcontrollingÿcosts,ÿandÿonlyÿspendingÿwhatÿisÿ
necessaryÿduringÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿforÿoperations.ÿ

EnterpriseÿFunds.ÿÿTheÿEnterpriseÿFundÿFinancialÿStatementsÿareÿpreparedÿandÿpresentedÿusingÿtheÿsameÿ
accountingÿbasisÿandÿmeasurementÿ focusÿasÿ theÿGovernment WideÿFinancialÿ Statements,ÿbutÿ inÿmoreÿ
detail.ÿÿTheÿfollowingÿtableÿsummarizesÿtheÿstatementsÿpresentedÿonÿpagesÿ11ÿʹÿ12ÿ(PDFÿpagesÿ48ÿʹÿ49):ÿ

NetÿPositionÿ(Deficit) Changeÿinÿ NetÿPositionÿ(Deficit)
Septemberÿ30,ÿ2018 NetÿPosition Septemberÿ30,ÿ2019

UtilityÿSystemÿFund 301,056$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 32,322$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 333,378$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
StormwaterÿUtilityÿFund 14,092ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,649ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 15,741ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
NonÿMajorÿEnterpriseÿFund 5,360ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (149)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,211ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Totals 320,508$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 33,822$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 354,330$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida
ChangesÿinÿEnterpriseÿFundÿNetÿPosition
FiscalÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

(inÿthousands)
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TheÿUtilityÿSystemÿFundÿincreasedÿitsÿnetÿpositionÿbyÿ$32.3ÿmillionÿwhichÿisÿlargelyÿdueÿtoÿanÿincreaseÿinÿ
theÿcapitalÿcontributions,ÿsystemÿdevelopmentÿfees,ÿandÿconnectionÿfeesÿ(dueÿtoÿrapidÿgrowthÿinÿtheÿCity)ÿ
whichÿincreasedÿmoreÿthanÿ46.6%ÿorÿ$11.5ÿmillion.ÿÿTheÿremainingÿincreaseÿcameÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿincreasingÿ
theÿutilityÿratesÿbyÿ1.5%ÿandÿtheÿexplosiveÿgrowthÿinÿbuilding.ÿÿExpensesÿhaveÿbeenÿincreasingÿalsoÿbutÿnotÿ
asÿrapidly.ÿ

Theÿ Stormwaterÿ Utilityÿ Fundÿ increasedÿ feesÿ inÿ theÿ priorÿ yearsÿ andÿ revenuesÿ andÿ expensesÿwereÿ flatÿ
comparedÿtoÿpriorÿyear.ÿÿTheÿfundÿmaintainedÿtheirÿexpensesÿlevelÿincreasingÿbyÿlessÿthanÿ1%ÿwhichÿalsoÿ
helpedÿincreaseÿtheÿnetÿposition.ÿ

3) BasicÿFinancialÿStatementsÿʹÿNotesÿtoÿtheÿFinancialÿStatementsÿ
Theÿnotesÿprovideÿadditionalÿinformationÿthatÿisÿessentialÿtoÿaÿfullÿunderstandingÿofÿtheÿdataÿprovidedÿinÿ
theÿGovernment WideÿandÿFundÿFinancialÿStatements.ÿÿTheÿnotesÿtoÿtheÿBasicÿFinancialÿStatementsÿcanÿ
beÿfoundÿbeginningÿonÿpageÿ18ÿ(PDFÿpageÿ55)ÿofÿthisÿreport.ÿÿAdditionally,ÿgovernmentsÿareÿrequiredÿtoÿ
discloseÿcertainÿ informationÿaboutÿemployeeÿpensionÿfunds.ÿ ÿTheÿCityÿhasÿprovidedÿthisÿ informationÿ inÿ
Noteÿ4ÿ(B)ÿtoÿtheÿfinancialÿstatementsÿandÿasÿrequiredÿsupplementalÿinformation.ÿ

ECONOMICÿFACTORSÿ

x dŚĞ�ϭϵϵϬ�ĐĞŶƐƵƐ�ƌĞĐŽƌĚĞĚ�WŽƌƚ�^ƚ͘�>ƵĐŝĞ͛Ɛ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�ϱϱ͕ϴϲϲ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϬ�ĐĞŶƐƵƐ� recordedÿ
WŽƌƚ�^ƚ͘�>ƵĐŝĞ͛Ɛ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶ�Ăƚ�ϭϲϰ͕ϴϱϬ,ÿnearlyÿ200%ÿ increase.ÿ ÿAsÿofÿ Julyÿ 2019,ÿ theÿCityÿcoversÿ
approximatelyÿ120ÿsquareÿmilesÿandÿhasÿanÿestimatedÿpopulationÿofÿjustÿatÿ200,000.ÿÿ

x Unemploymentÿ ratesÿ inÿ theÿUS,ÿ Florida,ÿandÿPortÿ St.ÿ Lucieÿmetropolitanÿ statisticalÿ areaÿ (MSA)ÿ
respectivelyÿforÿDecemberÿ2019ÿareÿ3.7%,ÿ3.1%,ÿandÿ3.7%.ÿThisÿcomparesÿwellÿtoÿtheÿnationalÿandÿ
stateÿrates.ÿ

x Subsequentÿtoÿtheÿyearÿend,ÿinÿMid Marchÿofÿ2020ÿtheÿWorldÿHealthÿOrganizationÿ(WHO)ÿdeclaredÿ
aÿglobalÿpandemicÿbecauseÿofÿCOVID 19,ÿaÿnovelÿcoronavirus.ÿÿThereÿisÿneitherÿaÿtreatmentÿnorÿ
vaccineÿforÿthisÿvirus.ÿ Inÿanÿeffortÿtoÿreduceÿtheÿspread,ÿtheÿStateÿofÿFloridaÿdeclaredÿaÿstayÿatÿ
homeÿorderÿAprilÿ1,ÿ2020.ÿÿTheÿimpactÿwasÿanÿimmediateÿrecession,ÿrisingÿunemploymentÿratesÿ
andÿanÿimmediateÿdropÿinÿsalesÿandÿsalesÿtaxÿrevenues.ÿÿTheÿpredictionÿisÿthatÿforÿFY2020,ÿthereÿ
willÿbeÿaÿsignificantÿdropÿinÿrevenue,ÿand,ÿassessedÿvaluationÿofÿpropertyÿisÿexpectedÿtoÿremainÿ
theÿsameÿorÿdecrease.ÿ

x Theÿfiscalÿyearÿ2018 2019ÿassessedÿvaluationÿofÿpropertyÿ increasedÿ10.2%ÿtoÿ$10.8ÿbillion.ÿÿOnÿ
Septemberÿ23,ÿ2019ÿtheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿCityÿCouncilÿvotedÿtoÿdecreaseÿtheÿCityÿtotalÿmillageÿrateÿtoÿ
6.3000ÿfromÿ6.0740ÿmillsÿperÿ$1,000ÿofÿassessedÿvaluation.ÿ

x DataÿproducedÿbyÿtheÿRelatorsÿofÿtheÿPalmÿBeachesÿandÿGreaterÿFortÿLauderdaleÿindicatesÿthatÿ
theÿaverageÿmedianÿsalesÿpriceÿforÿanÿexistingÿsingle familyÿhomeÿinÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿhasÿincreasedÿ
5.9%ÿoverÿDecemberÿ2019.ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ

ÿ



CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ
DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ��ŶĂůǇƐŝƐÿ
ForÿtheÿYearÿEndedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019ÿ

ÿ

MDA 13ÿ
ÿ

BudgetÿOutlook.ÿ

Afterÿmanyÿpastÿyearsÿofÿdecliningÿpropertyÿvaluesÿandÿlessÿthanÿfavorableÿeconomicÿindicators,ÿtheÿlocalÿ
economyÿcontinuesÿtoÿshowÿsignsÿofÿsustainedÿhealth.ÿForÿtheÿseventhÿyearÿinÿaÿrowÿtheÿCity'sÿtaxableÿ
valueÿhasÿ increasedÿandÿtheÿyear over yearÿpercentageÿofÿ increaseÿhasÿgrownÿeachÿyearÿ (fromÿ1.7%ÿinÿ
2013 2014ÿtoÿ10.8%ÿinÿFYÿ2018 2019).ÿÿThisÿgeneratedÿanÿadditionalÿ$4.7ÿmillionÿinÿpropertyÿtaxÿrevenueÿ
forÿtheÿ2019 2020ÿfiscalÿyearÿoverÿtheÿpriorÿyear.ÿÿAsÿaÿresultÿofÿtheÿincreaseÿinÿassessedÿvalues,ÿtheÿCityÿ
Councilÿreducedÿtaxÿratesÿbyÿ0.226ÿmillsÿforÿFiscalÿYearÿ2019 2020,ÿreducingÿtheÿtotalÿCityÿtaxÿrateÿfromÿ
6.300ÿtoÿ6.0740.ÿ

InÿtheÿGeneralÿFund,ÿfiveÿmajorÿrevenuesÿ(propertyÿtaxes,ÿsalesÿtaxes,ÿ10%ÿelectricÿutilityÿtax,ÿ6%ÿelectricÿ
franchiseÿfee,ÿandÿcommunicationsÿservicesÿtax)ÿmakeÿupÿ76%ÿofÿtheÿtotalÿgeneralÿfundÿrevenuesÿandÿareÿ
budgetedÿatÿÿ7.19%ÿgreaterÿthanÿtheÿpriorÿyear,ÿprimarilyÿdueÿtoÿtheÿincreaseÿinÿpropertyÿtaxÿvalues.ÿÿÿ

Overÿtheÿpastÿyear,ÿtheÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿareaÿhasÿseenÿaÿpositiveÿtrendÿinÿcommercialÿandÿresidentialÿÿÿbuildingÿ
permitsÿissued.ÿÿÿThereÿwereÿ193ÿnewÿbusinessesÿthatÿopenedÿduringÿtheÿCalendarÿYearÿ2019ÿcomparedÿ
toÿ232ÿinÿCalendarÿYearÿ2018.ÿÿBuildingÿpermitsÿareÿatÿtheirÿhighestÿlevelÿinÿtheÿpastÿ10ÿyears,ÿcertificatesÿ
ofÿoccupancyÿareÿupÿ48.6%ÿcomparedÿtoÿ2018,ÿandÿtheÿmedianÿsalesÿpriceÿforÿaÿtraditionalÿsaleÿwasÿupÿ
5.9%.ÿ Existingÿ businessesÿ suchÿ asÿ Traditionÿ Medicalÿ Centerÿ andÿ Cityÿ Electricÿ Supplyÿ haveÿ completedÿ
substantialÿexpansions.ÿÿTheseÿallÿwillÿprovideÿadditionalÿrevenueÿandÿemploymentÿopportunitiesÿinÿtheÿ
Cityÿasÿwiůů�ƚŚĞ��ƌĚŝĞ�Z͘��ŽƉĂƐ�^ƚĂƚĞ�sĞƚĞƌĂŶ͛Ɛ�EƵƌƐŝŶŐ�,ŽŵĞ�ŽŶĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ͘�ÿ

TheÿlongÿrangeÿGeneralÿFundÿmodelÿassumesÿaÿmodestÿlevelÿofÿtaxableÿvalueÿincreaseÿgoingÿintoÿfutureÿ
yearsÿandÿincreasesÿtoÿotherÿeconomicÿrevenues.ÿÿFundÿBalanceÿContingenciesÿareÿbeingÿbudgetedÿatÿ17%ÿ
orÿgreater.ÿÿThisÿsoundÿfinancialÿpictureÿallowedÿtheÿCityÿCouncilÿtoÿenhanceÿtheÿlevelÿofÿservicesÿbeingÿ
providedÿandÿbeganÿaddressingÿtheÿdeferredÿmaintenanceÿissuesÿwhichÿwereÿlargelyÿignoredÿduringÿtheÿ
GreatÿRecession.ÿÿWithÿtheÿCityÿcontinuingÿtoÿbeÿinÿaÿstrongÿpositionÿtoÿfundÿitsÿfinancialÿobligations,ÿitÿisÿ
anticipatedÿthatÿtheÿCity'sÿcreditÿratingsÿwillÿachieveÿhigherÿclassifications.ÿ

ZĞĐĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌůĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƵŶĐůĞĂƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƚŝŵeÿhowÿ
theseÿdevelopmentsÿwillÿimpactÿtheÿbudget,ÿbutÿtheÿobviousÿimpactsÿwillÿbeÿonÿtheÿrevenueÿstreamÿside.ÿ
Ifÿtheÿcrisisÿlastsÿlongerÿthanÿanticipated,ÿandÿrevenuesÿfallÿshortÿofÿtargets,ÿitÿmayÿbeÿrequiredÿtoÿmakeÿ
on goingÿadjustmentsÿtoÿproposedÿexpenditures.ÿOverÿtheÿlongÿterm,ÿtheÿreductionÿinÿrevenueÿwillÿrequireÿ
cutsÿinÿexpendituresÿorÿincreasesÿinÿAdÿValoremÿRevenueÿ(millage).ÿÿÿÿ

RequestÿforÿInformation.ÿ
ÿ
dŚŝƐ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŝƐ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůůÿthoseÿwithÿanÿ
ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ� ŝŶ� ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ� ĨŝŶĂŶĐĞƐ͘�YƵĞƐƚŝŽŶƐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�ŽĨ� ƚŚĞ� ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ� ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ� ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�Žƌ�
requestsÿforÿadditionalÿfinancialÿinformationÿshouldÿbeÿaddressedÿtoÿtheÿChiefÿFinancialÿOfficer,ÿ121ÿS.W.ÿ
PortÿSt.ÿLucieÿBoulevard,ÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFlorida,ÿ34984 5099.ÿ
ÿ
ÿ

ÿ

ÿ
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 144,508,949 $ 52,103,944 $ 196,612,893

Receivables 187,872,298 18,668,136 206,540,434

Internal balances (423,895) 423,895 -

Prepaid and other assets 31,624,000 2,319,298 33,943,298

Restricted equity in pooled cash and investments 14,491,901 50,760,742 65,252,643

Capital assets, net of depreciation 489,679,238 571,247,649 1,060,926,887

Capital assets, not depreciated 261,438,095 73,946,402 335,384,497

Total assets 1,129,190,586 769,470,066 1,898,660,652

Deferred outflows 
Loss on bond defeasance 16,536,679 12,676,205 29,212,884

Pension related deferred outflows 11,088,645 - 11,088,645

OPEB related deferred outflows 7,413,630 4,031,348 11,444,978

Total deferred outflows 35,038,954 16,707,553 51,746,507

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 19,393,499 5,928,194 25,321,693

Unearned revenue 1,832,707 2,497,772 4,330,479

Bond interest Payable 3,898,104 - 3,898,104

Long-term liabilities due within one year 20,787,699 13,223,827 34,011,526

Long-term liabilities due in more than one year 385,212,075 389,533,212 774,745,287

Net other post employment benefits 11,221,074 5,815,682 17,036,756

Net pension liability 26,361,356 - 26,361,356

Payable from restricted assets - 9,207,696 9,207,696

Total liabilities 468,706,514 426,206,383 894,912,897

Deferred inflows 
Pensions 574,331 - 574,331

Other post employment benefits 8,217,388 5,217,332 13,434,720

Total deferred inflows 8,791,719 5,217,332 14,009,051

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 371,420,795 246,423,971 617,844,766

Debt services 189,334,752 10,344,970 199,679,722

Capital projects 32,114,578 27,364,080 59,478,658

Protective inspections 15,831,263 - 15,831,263

Housing assistance 2,197,225 - 2,197,225

Transportation 19,412,067 - 19,412,067

Other purposes 1,405,161 - 1,405,161

Claims - 92,234 92,234

Unrestricted 55,015,466 70,528,649 125,544,115

Total net position $ 686,731,307 $ 354,753,904 $ 1,041,485,211

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Expenses Charges for Services
Operating Grants and

Contributions
Capital Grants and

Contributions

Function/Programs 
Primary government: 

General government $ 21,901,294 $ 2,734,335 $ - $ 350,000
Public safety 54,881,911 13,010,530 648,292 -
Physical environment 18,792,667 30,806,604 250,902 -
Transportation 25,974,214 3,960,542 32,520 17,219,710
Economic environment 9,525,823 137,750 3,998,918 2,978,806
Human services 3,962,662 51,744 - -
Culture and recreation 18,849,670 4,518,877 26,724 69,702
Debt service - interest 16,552,602 - - -

 
Total general government 170,440,843 55,220,382 4,957,356 20,618,218

 
Business-type activities: 

Utility system 81,877,917 77,109,074 800,037 36,002,447
Stormwater utility 22,770,841 23,675,557 - -
Golf course 1,778,394 1,527,999 - -
 

Total business-type activities 106,427,152 102,312,630 800,037 36,002,447
 

Total primary government $ 276,867,995 $ 157,533,012 $ 5,757,393 $ 56,620,665

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes
Franchise and utility taxes
Communications service tax
Local business tax
Sales tax
State revenue sharing - unrestricted
Local option gas tax
Insurance premium tax

Interest 
Miscellaneous Revenue 
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers 
 

Change in net position
 

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ (18,816,959) $ - $ (18,816,959)
(41,223,089) - (41,223,089)
12,264,839 - 12,264,839
(4,761,442) - (4,761,442)
(2,410,349) - (2,410,349)
(3,910,918) - (3,910,918)

(14,234,367) - (14,234,367)
(16,552,602) - (16,552,602)

(89,644,887) - (89,644,887)

- 32,033,641 32,033,641
- 904,716 904,716
- (250,395) (250,395)

- 32,687,962 32,687,962

$ (89,644,887) $ 32,687,962 $ (56,956,925)

$ 60,801,707 $ - $ 60,801,707
24,320,736 - 24,320,736

4,778,502 - 4,778,502
2,030,504 - 2,030,504

14,032,808 - 14,032,808
6,040,623 - 6,040,623

10,544,228 - 10,544,228
1,569,087 - 1,569,087
4,557,240 3,760,370 8,317,610
6,346,273 374,577 6,720,850
3,493,586 (3,493,586) -

138,515,294 641,361 139,156,655

48,870,407 33,329,323 82,199,730

637,860,900 321,424,581 959,285,481
$ 686,731,307 $ 354,753,904 $ 1,041,485,211
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
 

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2019

General Fund

SW Annexation
District 1

Collection Fund

Community
Redevelopment

Agency Fund
Crosstown

Parkway Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33,524,021 $ 3,745,329 $ 236,014 $ 6,439,242 $ 91,086,957 $ 135,031,563
Receivables 4,777,488 119,830,111 - 25,600 51,857,047 176,490,246
Due from other governments 3,754,064 29,696 - 2,672,444 4,925,848 11,382,052
Prepaid items 66,773 - - - 34,040 100,813
Inventories 30,370 - - - 31,492,817 31,523,187
Restricted assets - 6,830,696 - - 7,661,205 14,491,901

Total assets $ 42,152,716 $ 130,435,832 $ 236,014 $ 9,137,286 $ 187,057,914 $ 369,019,762
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund

Balances 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 2,522,085 $ 400 $ 2,281 $ 3,491,309 $ 4,740,010 $ 10,756,085
Accrued salaries and wages 2,061,904 - 10,582 - 396,446 2,468,932
Due to other governments 5,952 - - - 46,463 52,415
Unearned revenue 1,691,669 - - - 100,401 1,792,070
Deposits payable 311,806 - - - 961,402 1,273,208
Retainage payable - - - - 315,404 315,404

Total liabilities 6,593,416 400 12,863 3,491,309 6,560,126 16,658,114
Deferred Inflows 

Unavailable revenue 999,846 119,830,111 - - 51,325,551 172,155,508
Total deferred inflows 999,846 119,830,111 - - 51,325,551 172,155,508

Nonspendable 97,143 - - - 31,526,857 31,624,000
Restricted - 10,605,321 223,151 5,645,977 71,665,090 88,139,539
Committed 2,806,480 - - - 25,980,290 28,786,770
Unassigned 31,655,831 - - - - 31,655,831

Total fund balances 34,559,454 10,605,321 223,151 5,645,977 129,172,237 180,206,140
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund

balances $ 42,152,716 $ 130,435,832 $ 236,014 $ 9,137,286 $ 187,057,914 $ 369,019,762

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the 
Statement of Net Position

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 180,206,140
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is $1,192,407,046 and the accumulated depreciation is
$441,289,713 751,117,333

 
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are not reported in the

governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:: (431,409,735)

Bonds Payable 382,980,000

Capital Leases 780,683

Compensated Absences 10,066,622

Net Other Post Employment Benefits 11,221,074

Net pension liability 26,361,356

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until it is due and payable. Accrued
interest must be reported as a liability in the government-wide financial statements. (3,898,104)
In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize discounts and premiums during

the current period as other financing uses. In the government-wide statements, discounts and
premiums are applied against bonds payable. (12,172,469)

Deferred inflows related to pensions and other post employment benefits are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (8,791,719)

Deferred inflows for earned but unavailable revenues are not reported in the funds, but are
reported in the statement of net position. 172,155,508

The difference between the amount required to repay previously issued debt in a refunding
transaction and the amount of the old debt is reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the
government-wide financial statements. 16,536,679

Deferred outflows related to pensions are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds. 18,502,275

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of employee health insurance.
The current assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental
activities in the statement of net position. 4,485,399

Net position of governmental activities $ 686,731,307

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

General Fund

SW Annexation
District 1

Collection Fund

Community
Redevelopment

Agency Fund
Crosstown

Parkway Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Revenues 
Taxes $ 65,737,912 $ - $ - $ - $ 14,737,085 $ 80,474,997
Licenses and permits 11,006,849 - - - 9,902,198 20,909,047
Intergovernmental 14,479,012 - 1,793,667 16,766,814 25,224,809 58,264,302
Charges for services 3,939,322 6,979,785 - - 29,233,074 40,152,181
Fines and forfeitures 1,191,992 - - - 597,259 1,789,251
Interest income 1,084,983 335,548 12,041 237,752 2,833,964 4,504,288
Impact fees 970,583 - - - 12,236,846 13,207,429
Other 1,768,239 - 20,064 25,600 4,374,092 6,187,995

Total revenues 100,178,892 7,315,333 1,825,772 17,030,166 99,139,327 225,489,490
Expenditures 

Current 
General government 21,470,489 - - - - 21,470,489
Public safety 48,452,947 - - - 8,733,138 57,186,085
Physical environment 363,145 112,239 - - 18,233,830 18,709,214
Transportation 114,750 - - 26,183,748 23,633,071 49,931,569
Economic environment 2,587,629 - 418,303 - 5,224,323 8,230,255
Human services 1,458,061 - - - 2,532,282 3,990,343
Culture and recreation 14,883,437 - - - 3,348,634 18,232,071

Debt Service 
Principal 745,000 3,085,000 2,720,000 - 12,321,768 18,871,768
Interest 4,409,864 3,705,744 1,593,150 - 7,654,349 17,363,107

Total expenditures 94,485,322 6,902,983 4,731,453 26,183,748 81,681,395 213,984,901
Excess (deficiency) of assets over (under)

expenditures 5,693,570 412,350 (2,905,681) (9,153,582) 17,457,932 11,504,589
Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 9,202,280 - 1,328,097 4,027,088 13,170,739 27,728,204
Transfers out (10,519,040) (1,073) (47,740) (355,420) (13,246,843) (24,170,116)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - 1,600,000 25,000 380,695 2,005,695
Proceeds from issuance of debt 54,360,024 - - - - 54,360,024
Payment to Escrow Agent (53,955,165) - - - - (53,955,165)

Total other financing sources (uses) (911,901) (1,073) 2,880,357 3,696,668 304,591 5,968,642

Net change in fund balances 4,781,669 411,277 (25,324) (5,456,914) 17,762,523 17,473,231

Fund balances, beginning of year 29,777,785 10,194,044 248,475 11,102,891 111,409,714 162,732,909

Fund balances, end of year $ 34,559,454 $ 10,605,321 $ 223,151 $ 5,645,977 $ 129,172,237 $ 180,206,140

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 17,473,231

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of
capital outlay recorded as expenditures in the current period. 42,181,543

The amount of depreciation expense associated with capital assets is recorded as expense in the current period. (26,798,772)
This is the amount of donated capital assets was received in the current period. 8,598,051
The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

These transactions, however, have no effect on net assets.  This is the amount of repayment of principal of long-term
debt recorded in the current period 18,890,737

Governmental funds do not recognize expenditures for the long-term accrued liability associated with compensated
absences.  This is the net change of compensated absences recorded in the current period. (397,898)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Changes related to long-term liabilities
included: 
In governmental funds, proceeds of new bonds are used to redeem outstanding bonds. The difference between the

proceeds from the new bonds and the amount paid to redeem the old bonds is recorded as a loss. In the Statement
of Activities, that difference must be amortized over the life of the bonds. (4,385,648)

Governmental funds do not recognize expenditures for the liability associated with accrued interest payable on long-
term debt.   This is the amount of accrued interest payable recorded in the current period. (873,082)

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance of premiums and discounts when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This is the amount of the difference in
treatment of unamortized bond premiums and discounts. 3,709,522

Governmental funds do not recognize expenditures for the change in the Net Pension liability from year-to-year. This
is the change of the Net Pension liabilty for the current period. (245,920)

Governmental funds do not recognize expenditures for the change in the Net OPEB liability from year-to-year. This is
the change of the Net OPEB liabilty for the current period. 1,349,957

In the governmental funds, revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to liquidate liabilities of the
current period.  In the statement of activities, revenue is recognized as soon as it is earned regardless of its
availability. (10,500,482)

Issuance of refunding bonds to provide resources to pay the outstanding balance of old debt provides an economic
gain but frequently results in an accounting loss. The accounting loss must be amortized over the life of the
refunded bonds in the Statement of Net Assets. 600,820

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of health   insurance.  The net revenue of the
internal service fund  is reported with governmental activities. (731,652)

Net change in net position - governmental activities $ 48,870,407

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

8



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2019

Utility System
Fund

Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non Major
Enterprise Fund

Total Enterprise
Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service
Fund

Assets 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,170,643 $ 13,811,795 $ 121,506 $ 52,103,944 $ 9,477,386
Receivables 9,499,288 869,578 - 10,368,866 -
Due from other governments 222,932 94,213 - 317,145 -
Prepaid items 50,817 495,708 - 546,525 -
Inventories 1,512,148 212,837 47,787 1,772,772 -
Restricted equity in pooled cash and investments 47,919,217 2,841,525 - 50,760,742 -

Total current assets 97,375,045 18,325,656 169,293 115,869,994 9,477,386
Noncurrent assets 

Noncurrent receivables 7,859,273 - - 7,859,273 -
Advances to other funds 122,852 - - 122,852 -
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 541,661,805 26,905,995 2,679,849 571,247,649 85,974
Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized 54,344,759 16,814,701 2,786,942 73,946,402 253,459

Total noncurrent assets 603,988,689 43,720,696 5,466,791 653,176,176 339,433
Total assets 701,363,734 62,046,352 5,636,084 769,046,170 9,816,819

Deferred outflows 
Loss on debt defeasance 12,635,316 40,889 - 12,676,205 -
Other post employment benefits 2,893,000 1,049,759 88,589 4,031,348 -

Total deferred outflows 15,528,316 1,090,648 88,589 16,707,553 -
Liabilities 

Current liabilities
Deposits payable - 30,514 7,200 37,714 9,042
Accounts payable 3,844,490 977,988 44,564 4,867,042 4,518,413
Accrued salaries and wages 700,623 174,710 16,601 891,934 -
Unearned revenue 2,405,883 75,976 15,913 2,497,772 40,637
Retainage payable 4,594 - - 4,594 -
Due to other governments - - 4,058 4,058 -
Current portion of long-term debt 11,971,661 1,242,803 9,363 13,223,827 -
Payable from restricted assets 8,022,998 1,184,698 - 9,207,696 -

Total current liabilities 26,950,249 3,686,689 97,699 30,734,637 4,568,092
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term portion of debt 348,609,518 40,829,025 94,669 389,533,212 -
Advances from other funds - 43,876 78,976 122,852 -
Net other post employment benefits 4,169,361 1,519,906 126,415 5,815,682 -

Total noncurrent liabilities 352,778,879 42,392,807 300,060 395,471,746 -
Total liabilities 379,729,128 46,079,496 397,759 426,206,383 4,568,092

Deferred Inflows 
Other post employment benefits 3,784,502 1,316,700 116,130 5,217,332 -

Total deferred inflows 3,784,502 1,316,700 116,130 5,217,332 -
Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 238,166,484 2,790,696 5,466,791 246,423,971 339,433
Debt service 7,595,679 2,749,291 - 10,344,970 -
Capital projects 27,364,080 - - 27,364,080 -
Claims - 92,234 - 92,234 -
Unrestricted 60,252,177 10,108,583 (256,006) 70,104,754 4,909,294

Total net position $ 333,378,420 $ 15,740,804 $ 5,210,785 $ 354,330,009 $ 5,248,727

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

9



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position of
Proprietary Funds to the Statement of Net Position

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Total net position of Enterprise Funds on the statement of net position of proprietary funds $354,330,009
The internal service fund is used by management to charge the cost of employee health insurance. The

current assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in
the statement of net position. 423,895

 
 

Net position in business-type activities $354,753,904

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Utility System
Fund

Stormwater
Utility Fund

Non Major
Enterprise Fund

Total
Enterprise

Funds

Governmental
Activities -

Internal Service
Fund

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 77,109,074 $ 23,675,557 $ 1,527,999 $ 102,312,630 $ -
Employer contributions to health insurance - - - - 16,341,412
Employee contributions to health insurance - - - - 2,894,155
Other contributions - - - - 411,591

Total operating revenues 77,109,074 23,675,557 1,527,999 102,312,630 19,647,158
Operating expenses: 

Personal services 20,587,659 5,567,086 697,240 26,851,985 216,254
Contractual services 1,834,277 10,322,318 235,904 12,392,499 1,163,820
Depreciation/amortization expense 34,293,237 1,351,383 242,853 35,887,473 6,360
Operating supplies and expense 12,890,825 2,508,744 591,541 15,991,110 392,894
Administrative expenses - - - - 679,347
Insurance premiums - - - - 2,145,085
Benefits paid - - - - 16,535,901

Total operating expenses 69,605,998 19,749,531 1,767,538 91,123,067 21,139,661
Operating income (loss) 7,503,076 3,926,026 (239,539) 11,189,563 (1,492,503)

Nonoperating revenue (expenses) 
Interest income 2,294,602 1,460,490 5,277 3,760,369 280,653
Grants 800,037 - - 800,037 -
Interest (11,914,654) (2,910,119) (856) (14,825,629) -
Gain on disposition of equipment 14,519 16,270 - 30,789 -
Miscellaneous 51,263 277,839 29,204 358,306 51,726

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (8,754,233) (1,155,520) 33,625 (9,876,128) 332,379
Income (loss) before operating transfers (1,251,157) 2,770,506 (205,914) 1,313,435 (1,160,124)

Transfers and Contributions
Capital contributions 15,026,357 - - 15,026,357 -
System developments fees 7,341,897 - - 7,341,897 -
Connection fees 13,634,193 - - 13,634,193 -
Transfers in 2,164,340 - 228,425 2,392,765 -
Transfers out (4,592,801) (1,121,962) (171,588) (5,886,351) (64,501)

Total transfers and contributions 33,573,986 (1,121,962) 56,837 32,508,861 (64,501)
Change in net position 32,322,829 1,648,544 (149,077) 33,822,296 (1,224,625)
Net position, beginning of year 301,055,591 14,092,260 5,359,862 320,507,713 6,473,352
Net position, end of year $ 333,378,420 $ 15,740,804 $ 5,210,785 $ 354,330,009 $ 5,248,727

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Net Position of Proprietary Funds the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net Change in Net Position - Enterprise Funds $ 33,822,296
The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of health   insurance.  The net

revenue of the internal service fund  is reported with governmental activities. (492,973)
Net change in net position - business-type activities  $ 33,329,323

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2019

Governmentalÿ
Activitiesÿ

Utility Stormwater NonÿMajor Total InternalÿService
SystemÿFund UtilityÿFund EnterpriseÿFunds EnterpriseÿFunds Funds

Cashÿflowsÿfromÿoperatingÿactivities
ÿÿReceiptsÿfromÿcustomers 77,714,692$ÿÿÿ 23,372,116$ÿÿÿ 1,527,999$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 102,614,807$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 19,649,562$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿPaymentsÿtoÿsuppliers (10,694,655)ÿÿÿÿ (12,373,224)ÿÿÿÿ (859,527)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (23,927,406)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (18,943,063)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿPaymentsÿtoÿemployees (20,587,659)ÿÿÿÿ (5,567,086)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (697,240)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (26,851,985)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (216,254)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿby
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿoperatingÿactivities 46,432,378ÿÿÿÿÿ 5,431,806ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (28,768)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,835,416ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 490,245ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿ
Cashÿflowsÿfromÿnoncapitalÿandÿrelated
ÿÿÿÿfinancingÿactivities
ÿÿOperatingÿgrants 800,037ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 800,037ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿTransfersÿinÿfromÿotherÿfunds 2,164,340ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 228,425ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 2,392,765ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿTransfersÿoutÿtoÿotherÿfunds (4,592,801)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (1,121,962)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (171,588)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (5,886,351)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (64,501)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿAdvancesÿfromÿ(to)ÿotherÿfunds ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (4,623)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (4,623)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿPaymentsÿreceived/(made)ÿonÿadvances
ÿÿÿÿÿ(to)/fromÿotherÿfunds 12,944ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (8,322)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,622ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿbyÿnoncapitalÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿandÿrelatedÿfinancingÿactivities (1,615,480)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (1,126,585)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 48,515ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (2,693,550)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (64,501)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Cashÿflowsÿfromÿcapitalÿandÿrelated
ÿÿÿÿfinancingÿactivities
ÿÿPurchasesÿofÿcapitalÿassets (48,835,427)ÿÿÿÿ (1,113,302)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (46,321)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (49,995,050)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿReceipts(payments)ÿonÿleasesÿandÿnotes ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (9,411)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (9,411)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿPrincipalÿpaidÿonÿrevenueÿbonds (14,507,101)ÿÿÿÿ (977,209)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (15,484,310)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿInterestÿpaidÿonÿrevenueÿbonds,
ÿÿÿÿÿÿleasesÿandÿnotes (15,404,096)ÿÿÿÿ (2,893,851)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (18,297,947)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿPrincipalÿpaidÿonÿotherÿdebt ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿInterestÿpaidÿonÿotherÿdebt ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
Issuanceÿofÿrevenue,ÿG.O.ÿbonds,ÿ
ÿÿandÿcapitalÿleases ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿContributedÿcapitalÿandÿcapitalÿgrants 36,002,447ÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 36,002,447ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,726ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿbyÿcapitalÿand
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿrelatedÿfinancingÿactivities (42,744,177)ÿÿÿÿ (4,984,362)ÿÿÿÿÿÿ (55,732)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (47,784,271)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,726ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Cashÿflowsÿfromÿinvestingÿactivities
ÿÿInterestÿearningsÿonÿcashÿandÿinvestments 2,294,602ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,460,490ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,276ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,760,368ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 280,652ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿcashÿprovidedÿbyÿ(usedÿby)ÿinvesting
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿactivities 2,294,602ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,460,490ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,276ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3,760,368ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 280,652ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿincreaseÿ(decrease)ÿinÿcash
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿandÿcashÿequivalents 4,367,323ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 781,349ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (30,709)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5,117,963ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 758,122ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿCashÿandÿcashÿequivalentsÿ ÿbeginningÿofÿyear 81,722,537ÿÿÿÿÿ 15,871,971ÿÿÿÿÿ 152,215ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 97,746,723ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 8,719,264ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿCashÿandÿcashÿequivalentsÿ ÿendÿofÿyear 86,089,860$ÿÿÿ 16,653,320$ÿÿÿ 121,506$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 102,864,686$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 9,477,386$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

September 30, 2019

Governmentalÿ
Activitiesÿ

Utility Stormwater NonÿMajor Total InternalÿService
SystemÿFund UtilityÿFund EnterpriseÿFunds EnterpriseÿFunds Funds

Reconciliationÿofÿoperatingÿincomeÿ(loss)ÿtoÿnet
ÿÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿbyÿoperatingÿactivities:
ÿÿOperatingÿincomeÿ(loss) 7,503,076$ÿÿÿÿÿ 3,926,026$ÿÿÿÿÿ (239,539)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 11,189,563$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (1,492,503)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿAdjustmentsÿtoÿreconcileÿoperatingÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿincomeÿ(loss)ÿtoÿnetÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿby
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿoperatingÿactivities:
ÿÿÿÿDepreciationÿandÿamortizationÿ 34,293,237ÿÿÿÿÿ 1,351,383ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 242,853ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 35,887,473ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 6,360ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿIncreaseÿ(decrease)ÿinÿlong termÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿassets/liabilitiesÿ 51,263ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 277,840ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 29,204ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 358,307ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

ÿÿÿÿChangeÿinÿassetsÿandÿliabilities:
ÿÿÿÿÿÿAccountsÿreceivableÿ 605,618ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (326,149)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 279,469ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 2,404ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿInventoryÿ 15,336ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 25,516ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 577ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 41,429ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿPrepaidÿexpenses (50,511)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 14,914ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (35,597)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿAccruedÿinsuranceÿclaims (89,164)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (89,164)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,960,493ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿAccountsÿpayableÿ 1,653,013ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 238,594ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (42,975)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,848,632ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,449ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿDueÿfromÿothers ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,058ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,058ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿOtherÿaccruedÿliabilities 537,669ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 20,790ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (12,554)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 545,905ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿCompensatedÿabsences 82,612ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (2,126)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 80,486ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿDueÿto/fromÿotherÿgovernments (215,000)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 21,190ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (193,810)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿCustomerÿdepositsÿ 47,299ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 40,799ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 7,200ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 95,298ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 9,042ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿRetainageÿpayable 4,594ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 4,594ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿOPEBÿpayable 1,993,336ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (159,097)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ (15,466)ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1,818,773ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿNetÿcashÿprovidedÿ(used)ÿby
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿoperatingÿactivities 46,432,378$ÿÿÿ 5,431,806$ÿÿÿÿÿ (28,768)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 51,835,416$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 490,245$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Supplementalÿcashÿflowÿinformation:
ÿÿÿNoncashÿcapitalÿimprovementsÿand
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿotherÿchanges $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Balance Sheet
Fiduciary Funds

September 30, 2019

Retirement
Trust Funds

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 523

Fixed investments 5,041,137
Corporate stocks 26,348,838
Corporate bonds 6,865,762
US Government obligations 635,133
Federal agencies 9,490,297
Municipal obligations 1,134,136
Real estate investments 12,524,756
Mutual funds 69,493,716
Accrued investment income 281,057
Prepaid items 1,418

Total assets $ 131,816,773
Liabilities and net position 

Accounts payable 196,080
Total liabilities 196,080

Net position 
Restricted for:

Employee retirement 131,620,693
Total net position 131,620,693

Total liabilities and net position $ 131,816,773

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Retirement
Trust Funds

Additions 
Contributions 

City $ 8,131,532
State 1,569,087
Employee 1,805,061

Total contributions 11,505,680
Investment income 

Net increase in fair value of investments 2,186,362
Interest and dividends 2,627,832

Total investment income 4,814,194
Investment expense (269,005)

Total additions 16,050,869
Deductions 

Benefit payments 7,560,098
Administrative costs and charges 222,178
Refunds 197,975

Total deductions 7,980,251
Change in net position 8,070,618
Net position, beginning of year 123,550,075
Net position, end of year $ 131,620,693

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Port St. Lucie, Florida (the "City") was incorporated in 1961 and covers an area of approximately 120 square miles.
The City derives authority from Article VIII, Section 2 of the Constitution of the State of Florida, and Chapter 166, Florida
Statutes, "Municipal Home Rule Powers Act".  The specific organizational governing authority of the City of Port St. Lucie is
the City of Port St. Lucie City Charter as adopted in 1976 and as from time to time subsequently amended.  The City operates
under an elected City Council (5 members) and provides services to its more than 191,000 residents in the form of law
enforcement, community enrichment and development, street maintenance, culture and recreation, planning and zoning,
human services and general administrative services.

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units.
The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

A. SCOPE OF REPORTING ENTITY  

The accompanying financial statements present the City's primary government and component units over which the City
exercises significant influence. Even though the component units are legally separate, they are so intertwined with the City
that they are, in substance, the same as the City. The following component units are included in the City's financial
statements as blended component units.

Port St. Lucie Governmental Finance Corporation - The Corporation is a not-for-profit corporation incorporated in 1990 for
the sole purpose of assisting the City in acquiring and constructing various governmental projects consisting of real and/or
personal property. The Corporation is included in the City's financial statements since the directors of the Corporation are the
Mayor and members of the City Council and the lease payments by the City to the Corporation are the primary source of
funds to pay the debt of the Corporation.

Community Redevelopment Agency - The Community Redevelopment Agency was established for the purpose of improving
the economic and social conditions within a specific boundary. Incremental property taxes collected within this area are
remitted by the various taxing entities back to the Community Redevelopment Agency. The Community Redevelopment
Agency (CRA) is included in the City's financial statements since the directors are the Mayor and members of the City Council
and the incremental property taxes received by the City are remitted to the CRA. 

The activities of the Port St. Lucie Governmental Finance Corporation are included in the combined financial statements
within the Special Revenue Funds. The activities of the Community Redevelopment Agency are included in the basic financial
statements as a major fund.

Port St. Lucie Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund - The Port St. Lucie Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust
Fund is included in the financial statements as a pension trust fund. Activities of the Trust Fund are reported in the Statement
of Fiduciary Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The Trust Fund issues separate financial
statements and are available by contacting the City of Port St. Lucie Financial Management Department, 121 S.W. Port St.
Lucie Boulevard, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34984. 
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. These
statements report financial information for the City as a whole, excluding fiduciary activities such as employee pension plans.
Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by taxes and
City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external
customers.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the
functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than
one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues
include: (1) charges for services which report fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the City's services; (2)
operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and (3)
capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees
charged to developers. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to their program uses. Taxes and other
revenue sources are reported as general revenues.

Interfund transfers were recorded to the General Fund from the other operating funds to cover the cost of services provided,
such as finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, information technology, and certain management functions.  

The Government-wide Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the Proprietary Fund and Fiduciary Fund financial statements. The government-wide statement of
net position reports all assets and liabilities of the City, including long-term assets and long-term liabilities and other
obligations. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.  The City's fiduciary funds are
presented in the fund financial statements. Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party
(plan participants and third party) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are
not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental
and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with composite columns for non-major funds.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement
focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements' governmental column, a reconciliation is presented on
the page following each statement, which briefly explains the adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial
statements into the governmental column of the government-wide presentation. Totals on the business-type activity fund
statements should directly reconcile to the business-type activity column presented in the government-wide statements.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The focus of the government-wide financial statements is on the City as a whole. The focus of the Fund Financial Statements
is on the major funds of the governmental and business-type activities. Each presentation provides valuable information that
can be analyzed to enhance the usefulness of the information.

Proprietary funds record both operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues are those that are
obtained from the operations of the proprietary fund that include charges for services and user fees. Non-operating revenues
are not related to the operations of the proprietary fund and include interest earnings and intergovernmental revenue.
Operating expenses represent the cost of operations, which includes depreciation. Non-operating expenses are not related to
operations, such as interest expense.

Modified Accrual 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (i.e., both measurable and
available). "Available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period. The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 45 days after year-end. Primary
revenue sources that have been treated as susceptible to accrual include, where material, intergovernmental revenue,
franchise taxes, communication taxes and charges for services.  

Property taxes are accounted for when measurable and available.  No accruals for the property tax levy becoming due in
November 2019 are included in the accompanying financial statements since such taxes are levied for the subsequent fiscal
year and are not considered available at September 30, 2019.

In applying the "susceptible to accrual" concept (the City may act as either provider or recipient), the provider should
recognize liabilities and expenses and the recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the applicable eligibility
requirements, including time requirements, are met.  Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met,
should under most circumstances be reported as advances by the provider and unearned revenue by the recipient.

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. Exceptions to this general rule include principal and interest on long-term debt,
expenditures related to compensated absences, and claims and judgments, which are recognized when due.

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION  

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds. The operations for each fund are accounted for with a
separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses.
Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds, based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and
the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Governmental Funds 

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement (in the Fund Financial Statements) is upon determination of financial position
and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. 
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

The following is a description of the major Governmental Funds of the City:

General Fund - to account for revenues and expenditures for the City.  All general tax revenue and other receipts that
are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund.  The general operating
expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the
general fund.

SW Annexation Special Assessment District 1 Collection Fund - to account for the annual assessment collections and
payment of principal and interest on the Special Assessment Bonds. Proceeds of the Bonds were used to pay the cost of
financing roadways, drainage facilities and water and sewer extensions and improvements within the SW Annexation
Special Assessment District.

Port St. Lucie Community Redevelopment Agency Fund - to account for revenues and expenditures of the Community
Redevelopment Agency established for the purpose of improving the economic and social conditions within a specific
boundary.  The fund receives the tax-increment revenues from the City and County for the various redevelopment
districts.

Crosstown Parkway Fund - to account for the expenditures associated with the acquisition of land and construction of
the Crosstown Parkway. Funding is provided by the issuance of ad valorem tax supported bonds and federal and state
grants.

Proprietary Funds 

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial
position, and cash flows, which is similar to businesses.  The following is a description of the major Proprietary Funds of the
City:

Utility System Fund - to account for the operations of a water and wastewater system.

Stormwater Utility Fund - to account for the operations of a program designed to maintain, replace and improve the
City's stormwater-related infrastructure.

Other Fund Types 

Additionally, the City reports the following Fund types:

Internal Service Fund - to account for medical, dental and vision benefits provided to City employees and administered
by the City.

Pension Trust/Employee Benefit Funds - to account for one defined benefit plan, three defined contribution plans, and
one other post employment benefits plan (OPEB), which accumulate resources for pension and other benefit payments
to City employees/retirees.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY, REVENUES, AND
EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES  

Pooled Cash and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits. The City has established an
investment policy in accordance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes that allows the City to invest in relatively low risk
securities, such as certificates of deposit, money market accounts, and U. S. Government Securities and Agencies. Investments
are stated at fair value or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Resources of all funds, with the exception of the
pension funds and the other post employment (OPEB) fund, have been combined into investment pools for the purpose of
maximizing investment yields. Investment revenue is comprised of interest and dividends and realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments. Investment revenue on pooled investments is allocated monthly based upon equity balances of
the respective funds. Accrued interest on pooled investments is grouped with pooled cash and investments on the balance
sheet at year-end.

Receivables

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.  Unbilled service revenues of the utility system are accrued at
the end of the year by prorating actual subsequent billings.

Due To/Due From

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other
funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due
to/from other funds". Any residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances".

Prepaid and Other Assets

Inventories are composed of expendable supplies held for consumption, and are stated at cost using the first-in, first-out
method.  The governmental fund type inventories are recorded using the consumption method.

The Neighborhood Stabilization Program Fund has acquired various distressed improved properties with funding from federal
government grant programs.  The City renovates these properties or, in some cases, demolishes the structure, and sells the
property to qualified individuals in the City.  The Governmental Finance Fund has acquired property held for resale when the
previous owner topped making tax payments. These properties are accounted for as an item of inventory based on the
acquisition price plus applicable carrying costs, amounting to $31,492,817 at September 30, 2019, as presented in the non-
major governmental funds.

For certain bond issues, the City purchased bond insurance to lower the cost of borrowing. Prepaid insurance is amortized
over the terms of the respective bonds using the straight line method. The carrying value as of September 30, 2019 is
$457,922.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restricted Assets

Certain revenue bond proceeds of the various funds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified
as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by
contracts or applicable bond covenants.

Capital Assets

The City's property, plant, equipment, intangible and infrastructure assets  with useful lives of more than one year are stated
at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The City maintains
infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Proprietary and component unit capital assets are also
reported in their respective fund financial statements. Donated assets are stated at acquisition value on the date donated.
The City generally capitalizes assets with cost of $5,000 or more as purchases and construction outlays occur.  The costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of assets constructed net of any interest income earned.  

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years

Buildings 5 - 50

Improvements, other than buildings 2 - 50

Infrastructure 20 - 50

Mobile equipment 3 - 30

Furniture, machinery, and equipment 3 - 30

Intangible 5 - 10

Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits, which will be paid
to employees upon separation from City service if they meet certain criteria.  These benefits, plus their related taxes, are
classified as compensated absences. The accumulated compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-
wide financial statements and proprietary funds for both the current and long-term portions.  The General Fund, Road and
Bridge Fund, and Building Department Fund typically are the governmental-type funds that liquidate the compensated
absences liability. Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured and are due and
payable as of September 30, 2019. 
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NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Long-Term Debt and Bond Discounts/Premiums

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, outstanding
debt is reported as liabilities. Bond discounts or premiums are amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using the
effective interest rate method. 

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources and
discounts as other financing uses of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

Deferred Outflows

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense). In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types
in the fund financial statements, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying value of refunded debt is
amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using the effective interest rate method and reported as deferred outflows.
The amounts for pensions and OPEB relate to certain differences between projected and actual actuarial results, and certain
differences between projected and actual investment earnings.

In the government-wide financial statements, imposed nonexchange transactions that will be collected in future periods are
reported as revenues in the statement of activities. The governmental fund financial statements report imposed nonexchange
transactions that will be collected in future periods as deferred inflows.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resource (revenue) until that time. The amounts for pensions and OPEB relate to certain
differences between projected and actual actuarial results and certain differences between projected and actual investment
earnings.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Actual results could differ from management's estimates.
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NOTE 1. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Property Taxes

The City's property tax is levied annually on October 1 on the real and personal property located in the City on January 1 (the
lien date) of the fiscal year.  The assessed value on which the 2018 levy was based was approximately $9.7 billion.  The
assessed values are established by the St. Lucie County Property Appraiser.  Tax collections by the St. Lucie County Tax
Collector normally begin in November of each year with a due date of March 31 of the following year.  Discounts are allowed
for early payment of 4% in November, 3% in December, 2% in January, and 1% in February.  Unpaid property taxes become
delinquent as of April 1.  Current tax collections for the year ended September 30, 2019 were approximately 96% of the total
tax levied.  The City is permitted by state law to levy taxes up to 10 mills of assessed valuation.  The tax rate for the year
ended September 30, 2019 was 5.0807 mills for general operating purposes plus a voter-approved 1.2193 mill levy for debt
service on general-obligation bonds.

E. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS   

Effective October 1, 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 83, Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations (ARO). "The principal objective of this Statement is to provide financial statement users with
information about asset retirement obligations (AROs) that were not addressed in GASB standards by establishing uniform
accounting and financial reporting requirements for these obligations."

Effective October 1, 2018, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 88, Certain Debt
Disclosures.  "The principal objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in the information that is disclosed in notes
to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements, and to provide
financial statement users with additional essential information about debt."
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NOTE 2. NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING  

The City's Financial Management Department prepares an annual operating budget for the General, Debt Service, Special
Revenue, and Enterprise Funds. Major capital facilities and improvements, which are accounted for within the Capital Projects
Funds, are subject to budgetary control on a project basis whereas other capital outlay accounted for within these funds are
subjected to the standard budgetary control.

The City includes anticipated cash carryforwards from the prior year as budgeted revenues in the formal budget.  These
amounts, however, are excluded from budgeted revenues in the accompanying financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

a. The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing on
October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing them.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

c. The budget is legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance by City Council on or before the thirtieth day of
September of the fiscal year currently ending.

d. The level of budgetary control is the department.  The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts
within departments of any fund.  Revisions that alter the budgeted totals of any department require approval of the City
Council.  Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

e. Budgets for general and special revenue funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles, except encumbrances are presented as expenditures.

f. Formal budget integration is not employed for proprietary, capital project or trust funds because effective budgetary
control is achieved by alternate measures.

g. Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation in the governmental
funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as assigned fund balance for construction and long-term
contracts and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year.

B. FUND BALANCE DISCLOSURE  

Fund balance classifications reflect not only the nature of funds, but also provide clarity to the level of restriction placed upon
fund balance.  Fund balance can have different levels of restraint, such as external versus internal compliance requirements.
Unassigned fund balance is a residual classification within the general fund.  The general fund is the only fund that reports a
positive unassigned balance.  In all other funds, unassigned is limited to negative residual fund balance. 
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NOTE 2. NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

B. FUND BALANCE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)  

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable

Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as
inventories and prepaid amounts.

Spendable Fund Balance 

Restricted - fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally imposed through debt
covenants or amounts constrained by federal and state law.

Committed - fund balance amounts that can only be used for the specific purposes that are internally imposed by City
Council Ordinances.  Commitments may be changed by the City Council amending or repealing the Ordinance that
imposed the constraint initially.  Contractual obligations are included to the extent that existing resources in the fund
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual obligations.

Assigned - fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither considered
restricted or committed.  This indicates that resources in these funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used for the
purposes of that fund.  Fund balance may be assigned by City Council Resolution, by transfer to a special revenue or
capital project fund as authorized by City Council, or an appropriation of existing fund balance to eliminate a projected
budgetary deficit in the subsequent year's budget.

Unassigned - the residual positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified within the other
above mentioned categories.  Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any governmental fund if
expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed, or assigned for those specific purposes.

The City considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are available
unless there are legal requirements that prohibit this, such as grant agreements that require a local spending match.  Also,
the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund balance when
expenditures are made.
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NOTE 2. NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

B. FUND BALANCE DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)  

The fund balance classifications at September 30, 2019 are as follows:

Fund Balance by Category General Fund

SW Annexation
District 1

Collection Fund

Community
Redevelopment

Agency Fund
Crosstown

Parkway Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items $ 2,143 $ - $ - $ - $ 20,751 $ 22,894

Deposits 64,630 - - - 13,289 77,919

Inventories 30,370 - - - 31,492,817 31,523,187

Restricted:
Protective inspections - - - - 15,831,263 15,831,263

Law enforcement - - - - 1,267,039 1,267,039

Pollution control - - - - 138,122 138,122

Housing
assistance/rehabilitation - - - - 2,197,225 2,197,225

Transportation - - - 5,645,977 19,412,067 25,058,044

Water/sewer capital projects - - - - 14,759,047 14,759,047

Parks and recreation capital
improvements - - - - 5,096,517 5,096,517

Road and bridge capital
projects - - - - 6,613,037 6,613,037

Debt service - 10,605,321 223,151 - 6,350,773 17,179,245

Committed:
Transportation - - - - 8,952,811 8,952,811

General projects 104,110 - - - 3,491,704 3,595,814

Street lights - - - - 79,946 79,946

Neighborhood improvements - - - - 1,280,732 1,280,732

Economic development 1,500 - - - 8,591,880 8,593,380

Conservation - - - - 1,112,775 1,112,775

Public art 898,312 - - - - 898,312

Capital projects 600,211 - - - - 600,211

Law enforcement 1,202,347 - - - - 1,202,347

Encumbrances, other - - - - 2,470,442 2,470,442

Unassigned: 31,655,831 - - - - 31,655,831

$ 34,559,454 $ 10,605,321 $ 223,151 $ 5,645,977 $ 129,172,237 $ 180,206,140
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS  

The City operates using pooled cash and investments and cash balances from all funds which are combined and invested to
the extent available.  Earnings are allocated monthly to each fund based on average daily balances of cash and investments.  

As of September 30, 2019, pooled cash, cash equivalents and investments including restricted amounts of the primary
government, consisted of the following:

City Primary
Government

Fiduciary Funds
Pension Trust

Fiduciary Funds
OPEB Total

 
Deposits with financial institutions and cash on hand $ 18,513,141 $ - $ 523 $ 18,513,664

Cash equivalents and investments 243,352,395 113,064,857 18,468,918 374,886,170

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 261,865,536 $ 113,064,857 $ 18,469,441 $ 393,399,834

Investment Type
U.S. Government obligations $ 26,104,844 $ 635,133 $ - $ 26,739,977

U.S. Government agencies 89,118,799 9,490,297 - 98,609,096

Municipal obligations 820,350 1,134,136 - 1,954,486

Corporate obligations 25,813,894 6,865,762 - 32,679,656

Commercial paper 4,906,921 - - 4,906,921

Domestic fixed income funds - 5,041,137 - 5,041,137

Domestic equity investment funds - 30,654,248 18,468,918 49,123,166

Domestic stocks - 26,348,838 - 26,348,838

Foreign equity investment funds - 16,059,660 - 16,059,660

Real estate investment funds - 12,524,756 - 12,524,756

Temporary investment funds - 4,310,890 - 4,310,890

Money market funds 38,514,665 - - 38,514,665

Investment pools 51,072,922 - - 51,072,922

Certificates of deposits 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000

Total cash equivalents and investments $ 243,352,395 $ 113,064,857 $ 18,468,918 $ 374,886,170
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

As of September 30, 2019, the City's cash and cash equivalents included deposits with financial institutions.  Cash deposits are
subject to custodial risk and custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be
returned.  Deposits with financial institutions were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance and collateral pool pledged
to the State Treasurer of Florida by financial institutions that comply with the requirement of Florida Statutes and have been
designated as Qualified Public Depositories ("QPD") by the State Treasurer of Florida.  The Florida bank deposit insurance
exists because Florida Statutes require state and local governmental units to only deposit monies with financial institutions
classified as QPD.  For a financial institution to qualify as QPD, it must participate in the state's deposit insurance pool that
requires collateral to be deposited based on the financial institution's rating and the value of public funds it has on deposit.
Upon default of any QPD, the pooled collateral is used to guarantee the state and local government deposits.  This pool is
additional insurance above the federal depository insurance.  As of September 30, 2019, the City has bank deposits only with
QPD institutions.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments held separately or where contractual arrangement or bond covenants require
otherwise, are classified as "restricted assets".  When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.  For purposes of the Statement
of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as all liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

The following schedule reconciles the deposit and investment information above to the City's financial statements:

Fund Type

Equity in Pooled
Cash and

Investments

Restricted Equity
in Pooled Cash

and Investments Total

Governmental Activities 
General $ 33,524,021 $ - $ 33,524,021

Community Redevelopment 236,014 - 236,014

Crosstown Parkway Fund 6,439,242 - 6,439,242

SW Annexation District 1 3,745,329 6,830,696 10,576,025

Other Governmental Funds 91,086,957 7,661,205 98,748,162

Internal Service Fund 9,477,386 - 9,477,386

Total Governmental 144,508,949 14,491,901 159,000,850

Business Type Activities
Utility System Fund 38,170,643 47,919,217 86,089,860

Stormwater Utility Fund 13,811,795 2,841,525 16,653,320

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 121,506 - 121,506

Total Business Type 52,103,944 50,760,742 102,864,686

Subtotal $ 196,612,893 $ 65,252,643 $ 261,865,536
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

The Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust fund's investments are maintained by an independent third-party
investment management firm that is permitted by the City to invest those monies in their managed mutual funds.

Fair Value
Rating
S &P Level

 
Mutual funds $ 18,468,918 n/a Level 1

Cash and equivalents 523 n/a n/a

 $ 18,469,441

Investments 

The City's investment policy applies to all investment activity and shall include all available funds in excess of amounts needed
to meet short-term expenses, but shall not apply to pension funds, trust funds, or funds related to the issuance of debt where
there are other existing policies or indentures in effect.  The policy objective is to invest funds in a manner with highest
priority on preservation of principal and safety of liquidity with optimization of investment returns being secondary
consideration.  Treasury securities are the benchmark used for riskless investment transactions with a minimum standard for
rate of return.

The investment guidelines allow the following investments:

- Negotiable obligations unconditionally guaranteed by the United States Government and its agencies.

- Fully collateralized United States Agency obligations which carry an implied guarantee and the implied full faith and
credit of the United States Government.

- Other United States Agency obligations which carry an implied guarantee and the implied full faith and credit of the
United States Government.

- Interest-bearing savings accounts, money market accounts, certificates of deposit, or time deposits constituting direct
obligations of any bank or savings and loan association certified as a Qualified Public Depository by the State of Florida.

- Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury Bills or Notes.

- State of Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (F.S. Chapter 218).

- Local government investment pool shares organized under F.S. Chapter 163 and rated AAA.

- Money market mutual fund shares of any money market fund registered as an investment company under the federal
"Investment Company Act of 1940", as amended.
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

The policy also establishes guidelines for diversification by the above classification varying from a maximum of 5% to 90% in
each category and to maintain no more than 20% of available resources in any one financial institution. 

Except for the investments held in local government investment pools, the City's pooled investments are 100% insured
through a combination of the implied guarantee of the United States Government, the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), and Florida's Qualified Public Depository coverage. United States Agency and Treasury obligations are
held for the City by a third-party safe-keeping custodian through a "delivery-versus-payment" (DVP) process.

The Florida local government investment pool balance consists of six governmental investment pools: Florida Cooperative
Liquid Assets Securities System (FLCLASS), Florida Surplus Asset Fund (FLSAFE), Florida Public Assets for Liquidity Management
(FL PALM), Florida Fixed Income Trust (FLFIT), Florida Short Term Asset Reserve (FLSTAR), and Florida Local Government
Investment Trust.  The pools are organized under Florida Statutes Section 163, the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, by
Florida public agencies for the purpose of operating an independent investment pool for location governments in Florida and
administered by a Board of Trustees elected by the participants in the pool.  FLCLASS and FLSAFE are operated in a manner
consistent with SEC Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.  Rule 2a7 allows SEC registered mutual funds to use
amortized cost rather than fair value, to report net position used to compute share prices if certain conditions are met.  Those
conditions included restrictions on the types of investments held, restrictions on the term to maturity of individual
investment and the dollar weighted average of the portfolio, requirement for portfolio diversification, and requirement of for
divestiture considerations in the event of security downgrades and defaults and required actions if the fair value of the
portfolio deviates from amortized cost by a specified amount.  The fair value of the position in the pools is considered to be
the same as the City's account balance (amortized cost) in the pool.  The investment in FL PALM includes shares in the Term
Series which are purchased to mature at pre-determined maturity dates selected by the City.  FL PALM shares are redeemable
at fair value with at least 7 days notice, less a premature redemption penalty.

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust 

The Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund (MPORT) is authorized to invest in:

- U.S. Government obligations and U.S. agencies

- Domestic and foreign high quality bonds, notes and fixed income securities

- General market common stocks and equity securities, preferred stocks and pooled equity funds (maximum investment
of 70% of total assets and no one stock or equity-related security would exceed 5% of the total portfolio on the cost
basis)

- Real estate investment trusts (REIT), limited to 5% of the total portfolio
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value of Investments: The City follows the provisions of GASB Codification, I50: Investments, which establishes a
framework for measuring the fair value of investments in a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value.  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under GASBC I50 are described below:

Level 1 - Investments reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Investments reflect prices that are based on inputs that are either directly or indirectly observable for an asset
(including quoted prices for similar assets), which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable inputs.
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The table below represents all investments City Primary Government and Fiduciary Funds categorized in the fair value
hierarchy.

Investments by fair value level Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fixed Income Securities 
U.S. government obligations $ 26,739,977 $ - $ 26,739,977 $ -

U.S. government agencies 98,609,096 - 98,609,096 -

Municipal obligations 1,954,486 - 1,954,486 -

Corporate obligations 32,679,656 - 32,679,656 -

Commercial paper 4,906,921 - 4,906,921 -

Domestic fixed investment funds 5,041,137 5,041,137 - -

Domestic equity investment funds 49,123,166 49,123,166 - -

Domestic stocks 26,348,838 26,348,838 - -

Foreign equity investment funds 16,059,660 16,059,660 - -

Temporary investments 4,310,890 4,310,890 - -

Alternative fund 18,453,664 - 18,453,664 -

Subtotal 284,227,491 100,883,691 183,343,800 -

Investments measured at net asset value (NAV):
Real estate investment funds 12,524,756 - - -

FLSAFE 14,815,642 - - -

FLCLASS 5,319,890 - - -

FLFIT 9,329,269 - - -

Florida Local Government Investment Trust 8,142,212 - - -

FLPALM 13,465,909 - - -

Total investments at NAV 63,597,678 - - -

Total Investment at cost
Certificates of deposit (exempt) 7,000,000 - - -

Total investments 354,825,169 $ 100,883,691 $ 183,343,800 $ -

Money market funds 38,514,665

Total cash equivalents and investments $ 393,339,834

Real estate investment funds are open ended, commingled private real estate portfolios.  These REIT-based funds are
structured as limited partnerships.  Their primary focus is to invest in well-based income producing properties within major
U.S. markets.  The fair values of the investments in these funds have been determined using the NAV per unit of the trust's
ownership interest in partner's capital.  The investments of the fund are valued quarterly.  Withdrawal requests must be
made 60 days in advance and may be paid in one or more installments.
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Investment Risks 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair market value of fixed income securities.
In order to limit interest rate risk the City's investment policy provides for maximum maturity period of 5 years.

Credit risk for fixed income securities is the risk that the issuer will not fulfill its obligations.  Nationally recognized statistical
rating organization ("NRSRO"), such as Moody's and Standard and poor's, assign credit ratings to security issuers and issues
that indicate a measure of potential credit risk to investors.  The City's investment policy addresses credit risk by limiting
investments to the safest types of securities which are generally those receiving the highest credit ratings from NRSRO.

Concentration risk is the risk of amplified losses that may occur from having a large portion of your holdings in a particular
investment, asset class or market segment relative to the overall portfolio. The City's investment policy requires
diversification of investments to minimize potential losses on individual securities.  

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that the plan may not recover cash and investment held by another party in the
event of a financial failure. The Pension Trust Plan requires all securities to be held by a third-party custodian in the name of
the Plan. Securities transactions between a broker-dealer and the custodian involving the purchase or sale of securities must
be made on a "delivery vs. payment" basis to ensure that the custodian will have the security or money, as appropriate, in
hand at the conclusion of the transaction. The investments in mutual funds are considered unclassified pursuant to the
custodial credit risk categories of GASBC I50, because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book-entry
form.

The Pension Trust Plan allows for foreign investments.  Investing in foreign markets may involve special risks and
considerations not typically associated with investing in companies in the United States of America. These risks include
revaluation of currencies, high rates of inflation, repatriation restrictions on income and capital, and future adverse political,
social, and economic developments. Moreover, securities of foreign governments may be less liquid, subject to delayed
settlements, taxation on realized or unrealized gains, and their prices are more volatile than those of comparable securities in
U.S. companies.

Primary Government NRSRO Rating
Average
Duration Fair Value

 
U.S. government obligations AA 0.53 $ 26,104,844

U.S. government mortgage and asset back securities AA 0.49 89,118,799

Municipal obligations AA 2.945 820,350

Corporate obligations A-AAA 1.932 25,813,894

Pension Trust Funds
U.S. government obligations AA 9.5 635,133

U.S. government agencies AA 5.3 9,490,297

Municipal obligations AA-AAA 4.7 1,134,136

Corporate obligations BBB-AA 9.2 $ 6,865,762
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NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

B. RECEIVABLES  

At September 30, 2019, receivables for the City's individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts of $19,408,646 for the nonmajor funds, are as follows:

Governmental Funds: General Fund

SW Annexation
District 1

Collection Fund
Crosstown

Parkway Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

 
Receivables $ 4,777,488 $ 119,830,111 $ 25,600 $ 51,857,047 $ 176,490,246

Due from other governments 3,754,064 29,696 2,672,444 4,925,848 11,382,052

Gross Receivables $ 8,531,552 $ 119,859,807 $ 2,698,044 $ 56,782,895 $ 187,872,298

Accounts receivable for enterprise funds are net of allowance for uncollectible accounts of $1,414,264 for the Utility System
and $92,597 for the Stormwater Utility System. In addition, the enterprise funds have long term accounts receivable for 10
year, non-interest bearing water and sewer connection fees loans. The following schedule summarizes the receivable
balances in the following fund types at September 30, 2019:

 

Business-Type Activities:
Utility

System Fund
Stormwater
Utility Fund Total

 
Receivables $ 9,499,288 $ 869,578 $10,368,866

Due from other governments 222,932 94,213 317,145

Noncurrent receivables 7,859,273 - 7,859,273

Advances to other funds 122,852 - 122,852

 $17,704,345 $ 963,791 $18,668,136

C. ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE  

The City issued special assessment debt for the expansion of the Utility System (Water and Sewer).  The expansion occurred in
multiple phases and projects at various times in the City. The levies have occurred in prior years and are reflected as special
revenue funds.  The City is assessing property owners for the expansion of the water and sewer system.   Property owners
were given the option of prepaying the full assessment amount or financing the amount over 20 years.  The City issued special
assessment debt to fund the construction for property owners who elected not to prepay.  When financed, the payment is
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C. ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)  
included within the property-owners annual real property tax bill and includes interest and an amount to cover the additional
costs of financing.  Property owners may pay off their assessment at any time plus accrued interest.

The City also issued special assessment debt for funding infrastructure improvements of roads, drainage, and water and
sewer within particular benefited areas.  These have been implemented at the request of those property-owners.  The
benefited properties are assessed annually for the necessary amounts to fund the current debt service requirements on the
applicable debts.  

The following schedule summarizes the current year transactions and balances at September 30, 2019:

SW Annexation
Other

Governmental Total

 
Assessments Receivables Balance, October 1, 2018 $ 122,353,963 $ 59,302,181 $ 181,656,144

Collections and Credits During the Year Ended September 30,
2019 (2,523,852) (9,322,896) (11,846,748)

Interest on Delinquent Assessments - 1,346,266 1,346,266

Assessments Receivable Balance, September 30, 2019 $ 119,830,111 $ 51,325,551 $ 171,155,662

Delinquent special assessments and interest on delinquent special assessments for the current fiscal year in the amount of
$629,719 are included in the assessments receivable year end balance reported in the above schedule. An allowance for
doubtful accounts of $16,512,688 has been provided for special assessments receivable at September 30, 2019.

In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the assessments are reported as "deferred inflows - unavailable
revenues" on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet since the assessments will be billed and collected in future years and
are unavailable to pay current obligations. In the Statement of Net Position, the special assessments were recorded as
revenues at the time of the assessment and are a component of Net Position
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D. CAPITAL ASSETS  

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions Transfers Ending Balance

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized
Land $ 123,308,718 $ 8,663,386 $ - $ - $ 131,972,104

Construction work in progress 99,866,396 29,599,595 - - 129,465,991

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 223,175,114 38,262,981 - - 261,438,095

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated/Amortized:
Buildings 120,924,610 14,008,612 - - 134,933,222

Improvements other than buildings 54,435,847 4,192,158 - - 58,628,005

Machinery and equipment 39,639,771 1,425,090 (5,411,348) - 35,653,513

Intangible 265,746 33,176 - - 298,922

Infrastructure 696,904,867 4,588,469 (38,047) - 701,455,289

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 912,170,841 24,247,505 (5,449,395) - 930,968,951

Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization for:
Buildings 44,214,086 2,880,722 - - 47,094,808

Improvements other than buildings 23,720,589 2,330,969 - - 26,051,558

Machinery and equipment 27,153,361 3,049,869 (5,405,100) - 24,798,130

Intangible 63,993 25,523 - - 89,516

Infrastructure 324,781,059 18,511,689 (37,047) - 343,255,701

* Total Accumulated Depreciation 419,933,088 26,798,772 (5,442,147) - 441,289,713

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated - Net 492,237,753 (2,551,267) (7,248) - 489,679,238

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $ 715,412,867 $ 35,711,714 $ (7,248) $ - $ 751,117,333

* Depreciation/Amortization expense was charged to functions as follow:

Governmental Activities: 
General Government $ 605,884

Public Safety 2,220,864

Physical Environment 450,060

Transportation 18,935,634

Economic Environment 2,178,631

Human Services 37,622

Culture & Recreation 2,370,077

Total Depreciation $ 26,798,772
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D. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)  

There is $12,000,000 included in the additions as a result of reclassifying Vaccine and Gene Therapy Institute (VGTI) from  an
asset held for resale to Capital Assets.  The City is currently leasing VGTI and plans to hold the asset. 
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Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Increase Decrease Transfers Ending Balance

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated/amortized
Land $ 55,694,348 $ 353,593 $ - $ - $ 56,047,941

Construction work in progress 3,821,601 14,076,860 - - 17,898,461

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 59,515,949 14,430,453 - - 73,946,402

Capital assets, being depreciated/amortized
Plant 326,626,616 4,159,318 - - 330,785,934

Water and Sewer system 631,162,391 29,032,144 - - 660,194,535

Machinery and equipment 35,088,425 1,961,472 (572,249) - 36,477,648

Buildings 5,110,008 - - - 5,110,008

Improvements other than buildings 3,433,357 339,462 - - 3,772,819

Intangible 948,505 72,200 - - 1,020,705

Infrastructure 26,959,631 - - - 26,959,631

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 1,029,328,933 35,564,596 (572,249) - 1,064,321,280

Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization for:
Plant 115,270,061 9,302,038 - - 124,572,099

Water and Sewer system 311,497,687 23,623,310 - - 335,120,997

Machinery and equipment 22,402,264 1,785,231 (572,249) - 23,615,246

Buildings 1,813,269 161,374 - - 1,974,643

Improvements other than buildings 2,282,692 155,271 - - 2,437,963

Intangible 393,210 102,193 - - 495,403

Infrastructure 4,099,224 758,056 - - 4,857,280

* Total Accumulated Depreciation 457,758,407 35,887,473 (572,249) - 493,073,631

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated - Net 571,570,526 (322,877) - - 571,247,649

Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation $ 631,086,475 $ 14,107,576 $ - $ - $ 645,194,051

* Depreciation/Amortization expense was charged to functions as follow:

Business-Type Activities: 
Utility system $ 34,293,710

Stormwater Utility 1,350,910

Nonmajor enterprise 242,853

Total Depreciation $ 35,887,473
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E. ENCUMBRANCES  

The City has outstanding commitments for engineering and construction projects in process.  Those commitments are
approximated for the respective funds at September 30, 2019:

 
General Fund $ 1,908,168

Crosstown Parkway Fund 6,955,735

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 8,196,883

Stormwater Utility 409,514

Utility System 13,740,723

Total Encumbrances $ 31,211,023

42



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 3. NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

F. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS  

The following balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and payments between funds are
made and adjustments recorded subsequent to year end.

The following is a summary of amounts advanced to other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Utility System Stormwater Utility $ 43,876

Utility System Nonmajor Enterprise Fund $ 78,976

The following is a summary of interfund transfers:

Transfers-In

Transfers-Out General Fund

Community
Redevelopment

Fund
Crosstown

Parkway Fund

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
Utility System

Fund

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Fund Total

 
General Fund $ - $ 1,237,844 $ - $ 8,649,280 $ 433,733 $ 198,183 $ 10,519,040

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3,017,947 90,252 4,027,088 4,381,459 1,730,097 - 13,246,843

SW Annex District 1 Fund 1,073 - - - - - 1,073

Community Redevelopment Fund 47,740 - - - - - 47,740

Crosstown Parkway Fund 355,420 - - - - - 355,420

Utility System Fund 4,422,559 - - 140,000 - 30,242 4,592,801

Stormwater Utility Fund 1,121,962 - - - - - 1,121,962

Nonmajor Enterprise Fund 171,588 - - - - - 171,588

Internal Service Fund 63,991 - - - 510 - 64,501

Totals $ 9,202,280 $ 1,328,096 $ 4,027,088 $ 13,170,739 $ 2,164,340 $ 228,425 $ 30,120,968

The City's routine transfers include transfers made to move unrestricted revenues or balances that have been collected or
accumulated in the General Fund to other funds based on budgetary authorization, and the transfer of revenues from a fund
that by statute or budgetary authority must collect them to a fund that by statute or budgetary authority to expend them.
Additionally, several funds transferred to the Road & Bridge Fund their allocable share of construction project expenditures.
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G. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  

Governmental Activities Debt 

The following is a summary of the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2019:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance

Due within one
year

Governmental Activities: 
Sales Tax Refunding bonds, Series 2011 $ 9,410,000 $ - $ 1,705,000 $ 7,705,000 $ 1,785,000

General Obligation & Refunding Bonds Series 2014 65,660,000 - 3,715,000 61,945,000 4,115,000

General Obligation & Refunding Bonds Series 2016 35,945,000 - - 35,945,000 -

Public Service Tax Bonds, Series 2014 19,775,000 - 445,000 19,330,000 465,000

Public Service Tax Bonds, Series 2016 26,100,000 - 2,365,000 23,735,000 2,485,000

CRA TIF Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 33,495,000 - 2,720,000 30,775,000 3,120,000

Taxable Special Obligation bonds, Series 2017 20,735,000 - 925,000 19,810,000 945,000

Taxable Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2018 - 54,085,000 300,000 53,785,000 1,465,000

Subtotal 211,120,000 54,085,000 12,175,000 253,030,000 14,380,000

Special Assessment District Bonds 
Series 2003 D, East Lake Village 3,540,000 - 645,000 2,895,000 675,000

Series 2005 A, St Lucie Land Holdings 7,975,000 - - 7,975,000 1,200,000

Series 2005 B, USA #9 675,000 - - 675,000 250,000

Series 2011 B, USA #5, 6, 7A Refunding 2,720,000 - 2,720,000 - -

Series 2016, SW Annex Refunding 121,490,000 - 3,085,000 118,405,000 3,125,000

Unamortized bond premium 15,881,991 275,024 3,984,546 12,172,469 -

Subtotal 152,281,991 275,024 10,434,546 142,122,469 5,250,000

Total bonds payable, net 363,401,991 54,360,024 22,609,546 395,152,469 19,630,000

 
Compensated Absences 9,668,724 5,585,249 5,187,351 10,066,622 905,996

Capital lease 1,037,420 - 256,737 780,683 251,703

Nonexchange Financial Guarantee 54,555,985 - 54,555,985 - -

Subtotal 65,262,129 5,585,249 60,000,073 10,847,305 1,157,699

Total $ 428,664,120 $ 59,945,273 $ 82,609,619 $ 405,999,774 $ 20,787,699
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$13,915,000 Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 - payable from and collateralized by a lien upon and a
pledge of the state shared Sales Tax Revenues, due in annual principal installments ranging from $640,000 to $2,070,000
plus interest ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% through September 2023.  Proceeds used to refund a majority portion of the
$20,000,000 Sales Tax Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003, which proceeds were used for roadway
improvements.

$74,740,000 General Obligation Bonds and Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 - due in annual principal installments ranging
from $505,000 to $5,155,000 plus semiannual interest at a rate ranging from 1.5% to 5.0%. Proceeds used to provide
$36,000,000 of project funds for the Crosstown Parkway project and to advance refund $29,505,000 of the General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2005, and $12,510,000 of the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006.

$33,300,000 Public Service Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A & 2014B - payable from and collateralized by a lien upon
and a pledge of the public service tax revenues, due in annual principal installments ranging from $760,000 to
$2,170,000 plus interest semiannually at a rate ranging from 2.611% to 5.0%. Proceeds used to refund the $39,900,000
Lease Revenue bonds, Series 2010A & 2010B.

$38,260,000 Community Redevelopment Agency Redevelopment Trust Fund  Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 -
payable from and collateralized by a lien upon and pledge of the net tax increment revenues generated in the
Community Redevelopment Area, due in annual principal installments ranging from $2,225,000 to $5,715,000 plus
interest semiannually at a rate ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% through January 2026. Proceeds were used to refund the
remaining balances of the outstanding $11,870,000 CRA Bonds, Series 2004, and the $46,450,000 CRA Bonds, Series
2006.

$30,875,000 Public Service Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2016  - payable from and collateralized by a lien upon and a
pledge of the public service tax revenues, due in annual principal installments ranging from $2,255,000 to $3,495,000
plus interest semiannually at a rate of 5.0%. Proceeds used to refund the remaining balance of the $45,600,000
Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2008. The refunding resulted in a future cash flow savings of $4,725,392
and a net present value savings of $4,163,207. The economic loss of $3,255,772 will be amortized over 20 years.

$37,075,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 - due in annual principal installments ranging from
$1,960,000 to $6,000,000 plus semiannual interest at a rate ranging from 3.125% to 5.0%. Proceeds used to refund the
remaining balances of the $49,285,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005, and $44,545,000 General Obligation
Bonds, Series 2006. The refunding resulted in a future cash flow savings of $6,079,171 and a net present value savings of
4,392,084. The economic gain of $1,285,901 will be amortized over 19 years.

$22,345,000 Taxable Special Obligation Bonds, Series 2017 - payable from amounts budgeted and appropriated by the
City from non-ad valorem revenues, due in annual principal installments ranging from $905,000 to $1,655,000 plus
semiannual interest at a rate ranging from 1.892% to 4.357%. Proceeds used to advance refund the remaining balance
of the $31,360,000 Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A. The refunding resulted in a future cash flow
savings of $15,743,297 and a net present value savings of $3,989,340. The economic loss of $3,843,556 will be amortized
over 10 years.
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$54,085,000 Taxable Special Obligation Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2018A - payable from amounts budgeted and
appropriated by the City from non-ad valorem revenues, due in annual principal installments ranging from $300,000 to
$3,680,000 plus semiannual interest at a rate ranging from 2.825% to 4.555%. There was an economic loss of $600,820
resulting fom the transaction.

Special Assessment Debt with Government Commitment 

$10,350,000 Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2003D (East Lake Village Special Assessment District) - payable from
assessments levied on subject properties within the assessment area, due in annual principal installments ranging from
$200,000 to $775,000 plus interest ranging from 4.25% to 4.625% through July 2023. Due to the early call of certain
bonds, no principal payments were due until July 2016. The City has a secondary obligation to budget sufficient Non-Ad
Valorem Revenues to cover the annual debt service requirements if the amounts within the fund are not available to
meet the coming debt service payment.

$18,725,000 Special Assessment District Bonds, Series 2005A - (St. Lucie Land Holdings Special Assessment District) -
payable from assessments levied on subject properties within the assessment area, due in annual principal installments
ranging from $700,000 to $1,365,000 plus interest ranging from 3.75% to 4.625% through July 2027. Due to the early call
of certain bonds, no principal payments are due until July 2017. Proceeds used to finance a portion of the cost of
acquisition and improvements of roadway and drainage system additions, improvements and extensions and the
potable water distribution and wastewater collection system within the SAD.  The City has a secondary obligation to
budget sufficient Non-Ad Valorem Revenues to cover the annual debt service requirements if the amounts within the
fund are not available to meet the coming debt service payment.

$4,765,000 Special Assessment District Bonds, Series 2005B - (Utility Service Area 9 - Water and Wastewater Expansion
Project) - payable from assessments levied on subject properties within the service area, due in annual principal
installments beginning in 2018, ranging from $105,000 to $345,000 plus interest ranging from 4.125% to 4.5% through
July 2025. Due to the early call of certain bonds, no principal payments are due until July 2020. Proceeds used for water
and wastewater system expansion within the SAD.  The City has a secondary obligation to budget sufficient net income
of the Utility System to cover the annual debt service requirements if the amounts within the fund are not available to
meet the coming debt service payment.

$126,895,000 Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, Series 2016 (Southwest Annexation Special Assessment District No.
1) - payable from assessments levied on subject properties within the assessment area, due in annual principal
installments ranging from $2,350,000 to $6,580,000 plus interest semiannually ranging from 1.0% to 4.0% through July
2045. The City has a secondary obligation to budget sufficient Non-Ad Valorem Revenues to cover the annual debt
service requirements if the amounts within the fund are not available to meet the upcoming debt service payment.
Proceeds were used to refund the $129,440,000 remaining balance of the outstanding $155,840,000 Special Assessment
District Bonds, Series 2016 (Southwest Annexation Special Assessment District No. 1).
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Long-term debt service requirements for each of the years subsequent to September 30, 2019 are:

Governmental Activities

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 19,630,000 $ 15,531,381 $ 35,161,381

2021 19,370,000 14,782,877 34,152,877

2022 20,715,000 13,943,385 34,658,385

2023 22,175,000 13,034,671 35,209,671

2024 21,270,000 12,047,026 33,317,026

2025 22,445,000 11,111,138 33,556,138

2026 23,165,000 10,095,618 33,260,618

2027 18,155,000 9,252,381 27,407,381

2028 13,815,000 8,497,974 22,312,974

2029 14,365,000 7,954,282 22,319,282

2030 14,950,000 7,370,109 22,320,109

2031 15,580,000 6,740,792 22,320,792

2032 16,210,000 6,104,832 22,314,832

2033 16,835,000 5,425,906 22,260,906

2034 17,550,000 4,716,830 22,266,830

2035 18,260,000 4,017,109 22,277,109

2036 8,695,000 3,285,907 11,980,907

2037 9,010,000 2,965,801 11,975,801

2038 9,345,000 2,633,542 11,978,542

2039 9,695,000 2,288,299 11,983,299

2040 10,060,000 1,922,445 11,982,445

2041 10,450,000 1,531,143 11,981,143

2042 10,855,000 1,123,692 11,978,692

2043 7,430,000 684,400 8,114,400

2044 6,370,000 420,875 6,790,875

2045 6,580,000 213,850 6,793,850

Total $ 382,980,000 $ 167,696,265 $ 550,676,265
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Business-Type Activity Debt: 

The following summary reflects the transactions of long-term obligations in the enterprise funds for the year ended
September 30, 2019:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance Current Portion

Stormwater Utility System Fund: 

Series 2010 A&B Stormwater Revenue Bonds $ 36,000,000 $ - $ - $ 36,000,000 $ -

Series 2011 Stormwater Refunding Revenue Bonds 6,020,000 - 1,090,000 4,930,000 1,145,000

Utility System Fund:

Series 2007 Utility Refunding & Improvement Revenue Bonds 78,970,000 - 7,090,000 71,880,000 7,460,000

Series 2012 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds 18,985,000 - 860,000 18,125,000 900,000

Series 2014 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds 29,585,000 - - 29,585,000 1,465,000

Series 2016 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds 206,515,000 - 2,970,000 203,545,000 1,630,000

Series 2018 Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds 8,305,000 - 260,000 8,045,000 265,000

Unamortized bond premium 31,914,322 - 5,254,242 26,660,080 -

Total bonds payable, net 416,294,322 - 17,524,242 398,770,080 12,865,000
Compensated Absences 3,685,959 310,399 9,401 3,986,957 358,825

Total Long-term Obligations $ 419,980,281 $ 310,399 $ 17,533,643 $ 402,757,037 $ 13,223,825

The Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds are collateralized by a lien upon and a pledge of the stormwater revenues derived
from the operation of the stormwater utility system, the franchise revenues derived from the electric franchise fees collected
from Florida Power & Light Company, and income earned on bond related investment accounts.

$36,000,000 Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010 A & B - comprised of the Taxable Series 2010A
(Build America Bonds - Direct Payment) for $26,895,000 and the Taxable Series 2010B (Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds) - due in annual principal and sinking fund installments of $1,285,000 to $3,630,000, plus interest of
7.376% on Series A subject to a 35% subsidy and 6.516% and 7.176% on Series B subject to a 45% subsidy.  Principal
payments begin May 2024.

$11,325,000 Stormwater Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 - due in annual principal installments of
$320,000 to $1,325,000, plus interest ranging from 2% - 5% through May 2023.  The proceeds of this issue were used to
advance refund $11,610,000 of the outstanding balance of the Series 2002 Stormwater Bonds, which were issued to
provide funds for the payment of a lawsuit relating to the City's stormwater collection and drainage system.
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The Utility System Revenue Bonds are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the net revenues derived
from the operation of the water and sewer system and the Capital Facilities Charges (limited to the debt service component)
of the Utility System.

$119,445,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 - due in annual principal installments of $670,000 to
$10,675,000 plus interest semiannually ranging from 4.0% to 5.25% through September 2027.

$21,375,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 - due in annual principal installments beginning in
2016, ranging from $770,000 to $3,300,000 plus interest semiannually ranging from 3.75% to 5.00% through September
2029.

$29,585,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 - due in annual principal installments beginning in
2020, ranging from $1,265,000 to $5,155,000 plus interest semiannually of 5.00% through September 2023. The Series
2014 Bonds were issued in November 2014 to refund $7,190,000 of Series 2003 Bonds, $12,260,000 of Series 2004
Bonds and $16,460,000 of Series 2006 Bonds.

$206,970,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 - due in annual principal installments ranging from
$205,000 to $27,070,000 plus interest semiannually ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% through September 2036. The Series
2016 Bonds were issued in August 2016 to refund all of the $51,645,000 Series 2004A Bonds, refund the $52,270,000
outstanding balance of the $78,435,000 Series 2006 Bonds, refund the $33,507,230 outstanding balance of the
$35,197,230 Series 2006A Bonds, and advance refund $88,075,000 of the $110,200,000 Series 2009 Bonds. The
refunding resulted in a future cash flow savings of $58,757,788 and a net present value savings of $43,528,370. The
economic loss of $18,895,088 will be amortized over 20 years.

$8,305,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2018 - due in annual principal installments of $260,000 and
$1,475,000 beginning in 2019 plus interest semiannually ranging from 2.25% to 5.00% through September 2035.  The
Series 2018 Bonds were issued in May 2018 to refund all of the Series 2009 Bonds. The refunding resulted in a future
cash flow savings of $4,395,964 and a net present value savings of $2,899,018. The economic loss of $1,039,035 will be
amortized over 18 years.
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Long-term debt service requirements for each of the years subsequent to September 30, 2019 are:

Business-Type Activities

September 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 12,865,000 $ 17,737,737 $ 30,602,737

2021 13,510,000 17,094,787 30,604,787

2022 15,630,000 16,424,262 32,054,262

2023 16,430,000 15,629,799 32,059,799

2024 17,170,000 14,799,812 31,969,812

2025 18,065,000 13,898,943 31,963,943

2026 19,010,000 12,950,837 31,960,837

2027 20,000,000 11,960,354 31,960,354

2028 21,060,000 10,899,938 31,959,938

2029 22,150,000 9,810,708 31,960,708

2030 23,255,000 8,705,725 31,960,725

2031 24,310,000 7,656,894 31,966,894

2032 25,410,000 6,558,267 31,968,267

2033 26,520,000 5,446,126 31,966,126

2034 27,675,000 4,287,765 31,962,765

2035 28,895,000 3,063,764 31,958,764

2036 30,000,000 2,047,950 32,047,950

2037 3,145,000 749,033 3,894,033

2038 3,380,000 517,058 3,897,058

2039 3,630,000 267,749 3,897,749

Total $ 372,110,000 $ 180,507,508 $ 552,617,508

Utility System Fund 

A summary of significant bond ordinance terms and covenants for the Utility System Revenue Bonds are as follows:

1. Principal and interest are payable from and secured by a pledge of the net revenues from the operation of the
system.  Pledged revenues may include ad valorem taxes, special assessments, capital facilities charges, and certain
investment earnings thereon, or any combination thereof. Currently, ad valorem taxes and special assessments are not
pledged as a Pledged Revenue for the bonds.  The bonds do not constitute a lien on the system.
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2. The Utility System is required to maintain certain depository accounts, such as a Sinking Fund for annual debt service,
Reserve Account for the maximum annual debt service requirement, Capital Facilities Charges Account for the deposit of
connection fees and a Renewal and Replacement Account to fund replacement of System capital assets. 

3. The City has covenanted to establish and maintain rates at a level sufficient to provide net revenues from operation of
the System equal to 100% of the current debt service requirement plus the required deposits into the Reserve account
and the Renewal and Replacement Fund. Rates also must be sufficient to equal 110% of the current debt service
requirement and the required deposits, including the investment income from the Project Fund, a calculated percentage
of the capital facilities charges, and any transfers from the Rate Stabilization fund.

Stormwater Utility Fund 

A summary of significant bond ordinance terms and covenants for the Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds are as follows:

1. Principal and interest are payable from and secured by a pledge of the gross revenues from the operation of the
stormwater utility. Additionally, electric franchise fees can be used to ensure there will be sufficient amounts on hand to
pay the debt service requirement.

2. The Utility is required to maintain certain depository accounts, such as a Sinking Fund for annual debt service and a
Renewal and replacement Fund for replacement of capital assets.

3. Extraordinary Option Redemption - The Series 2010 A & B bonds are subject to redemption  on any date prior to
maturity at the option of the City upon the occurrence of an extraordinary event which is when a material adverse
change has occurred to the applicable Section of the Internal Revenue Code pertaining to the "Build America Bonds" and
the "Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds" pursuant to which the City's subsidy payment is reduced or
eliminated.

H. DEFEASED DEBT  

Defeased Debt: 

Refunding provides for an irrevocable deposit with an escrow agent of sufficient funds to pay principal and interest, when
due, on the refunded bonds to the earliest call date. These obligations are no longer considered a liability of the City. The City
has the following defeased refunded debt issues:

Outstanding as of

Issue Series Date Refunded Refund Date 9/30/2019

Research Facilities Revenue Bonds 2010 November 14, 2018 $ 54,085,000 $ 53,785,000
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I. CRA TRUST FUND  

The Community Redevelopment  Agency has responsibility for the tax increment districts.  Pursuant to Section 163.387,
Florida Statutes, a Redevelopment Trust Fund serves to process the transactions relating to the tax increment district.  The
following schedule shows the amount and source of funds and the amount and use of funds for the trust fund during the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, as well as principal and interest paid during the year on the debt which is pledged with
tax increment revenues.  The balance of the debt remaining is presented as part of governmental activities debt. 

Source of Funds Date Amount

City of Port St. Lucie Various $ 1,328,097

St. Lucie County 12/28/18 1,793,667

Sale of Capital Assets Various 1,600,000

City of Port St. Lucie Utility Department Monthly 20,064

Interest Earnings Monthly 12,042

Total Deposits $ 4,753,870

Use of Funds Date Amount

Debt Service - Principal 1/2/19 $ 2,720,000

Debt Service - Interest Semi-annual 1,593,150

Stormwater Utility Payment 4/19/19 8,962

CRA Operating Expenses Various 409,342

City of Port St. Lucie - Indirect Costs Various 47,740

Total Withdrawals $ 4,779,194

Principal and interest on indebtedness Principal Interest Total

 
Series 2016 bonds $ 30,775,000 $ 6,031,625 $ 36,806,625
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A. RISK MANAGEMENT  

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and omissions,
injuries to employees and third parties, and natural disasters.  The City is a member of the Treasure Coast Risk Management
Program (TRICO, a cooperative of local governments created under Florida Statute 163).   As a participant in the risk pool, the
City may be assessed for any deficits of the pool, which would be required to be funded.  Presently, an actuarially projected
amount is being assessed to the members of the pool on an annual basis.  

The City has commercial property, automobile physical damage, flood, equipment breakdown,  auto/ general/ cyber/ law
enforcement liability, public officials and employment practices liability,  crime, terrorism and active shooter, and statutory
accidental death and dismemberment  coverage through TRICO which also carries various excess and reinsurance policies
through different carriers.  The property coverage is subject to a $100,000 deductible per occurrence except wind, flood and
earthquake.  The equipment breakdown coverage is subject to a $10,000 deductible per occurrence.  The City is a qualified
self-insurer in the State of Florida and granted sovereign immunity under Florida Statute 768.28. Liability is limited to
$200,000 per claimant/$300,000 per occurrence. An excess general liability, law enforcement and automobile liability policy is
in force with policy limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 annual aggregate which is subject to $1,000,000 self-
insured retention and tracks Florida Statute 768.28. A Cyber liability policy is in force providing
$5,000,000/incident/$10,000,000 combined policy aggregate. Crime coverage is subject to $2,000,000 limit for employee
theft and $5,000,000 for computer & funds transfer fraud, subject to a $25,000 per occurrence deductible.  Terrorism
coverage is subject to $75,000,000 limit and a $100,000 deductible.  Active shooter/workplace violence coverage is
$1,000,000 aggregate per member.  The Workers Compensation liability policy is statutory per Florida Statute 440, including
employer's liability of $1,000,000 occurrence, and is subject to a self-insured retention of $1,000,000.  The limits for Public
Officials and Employment Practices Liability are $1,000,000 per claim/per member/$1,000,000 aggregate per member,
subject to a TRICO pool aggregate limit of $4,000,000, with a $250,000 self-insured retention, except for sexual molestation
which is $225,000.  The accidental death and dismemberment coverage tracks Florida Statute 112.18, 112.181, 112.1815,
112.19 and 112.191 as respects benefits payable.  .  

The City is self-insured for health benefits provided to employees.  The various departments fund the Medical Insurance Fund
(Internal Service Fund) based on the experience rate of the prior year on a per employee basis for total claims and expenses
paid.  The City has contracted with Florida Blue to provide administration services for the plan.  Administrative fees are based
upon a flat rate per employee per month and are paid out of this fund.  The City purchased stop-loss insurance from Symetra
Life Insurance Company.  The individual stop-loss limit is $250,000 with an additional aggregate deductible of $168,000 and a
maximum stop loss limit of $19,358,180 in paid claims.  Stop-loss payments for the past year were $0. 

The following claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) liability, was estimated based on actuarial valuation, IBNR as of
September 30, 2019 is reflected below:

Balance at September 30 2018 $ 650,512

Current Year Claims 16,276,925

Current Year Payments (16,190,046)

Balance at September 30, 2019 $ 737,391
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B. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS  

The City has one single employer defined  pension plan and is a participant in one multi-employer defined pension plan,
Florida Retirement System (FRS).

The City accounts for single employer plan as pension trust funds; which is substantially in the same manner as proprietary
funds with economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Plan member contributions,
employer contributions, and contributions from other entities, including rollovers by participants from other plans, are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due in accordance
with terms of the plans.  Plan assets are valued at fair value for financial statement purposes, as reported by the custodial
agents.   

The City has three Defined Contribution Plans: General Employees Plan, Police Officers 401A Plan, and the Employees 401A
Plan. Ordinance (77-25), as amended by subsequent City Ordinances, established Defined Contribution Plans for City
employees. Currently the Defined Contribution Plan for General Employees 401A Plan is 10.9%, and the Police Officers 401A
Plan is 10.5%.  Vesting allows 100% after five (5) years or when reaching 55 years of age. 

Both the City's defined pension plans are presented in accordance with GASB Statement No. 67, "Financial Reporting for
Pension Plans" and GASB Statement No. l8, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  These statements replace
GASB Statement No. 27 "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers", and GASB Statement No. 50,
"Pension Disclosures".  GASB 68, enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures and
required supplementary information (RSI).

Current Membership of Pension Plans:

Current membership, as of September 30, 2019 in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Municipal Police Officers'
Retirement Trust Fund were as follows:

Municipal
Police Officers'

Retirement Trust
Fund

Florida
Retirement

System

Inactive plan members of beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 77

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 8

Active plan members 215 5

 300 5
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B. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)  

The following summarizes the pension related amounts for the City as of the indicated measurement dates:

Measurement
Date

Net Pension
(Asset) Liability

Deferred
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Pension
Expense

Police Pension 9/30/2019 $ 25,543,255 $ 10,770,419 $ 446,488 $ 6,930,564

FRS 6/30/2019 758,172 307,316 116,046 235,168

HIS 6/30/2019 59,930 10,910 11,797 3,868

 $ 26,361,357 $ 11,088,645 $ 574,331 $ 7,169,600

Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund 

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund (plan), which is a single-employer defined benefit public employee's
retirement system (PERS), was established under the provisions of Chapter 185 of the Statutes of the State of Florida, and is
accounted for in the Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund.  The plan is managed and administered by the five-
member Retirement Board, which includes two Council appointees, two members of the department elected by the
membership, and a fifth member elected by the other four and appointed by the Council. 

Plan Membership as of October 1, 2019

Inactive plan members of beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 77

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 8

Active plan members 215

 300

Benefits Provided 

The plan provides for normal retirement at age 55 with 10 years of service or age 52 with 25 years of service.  Normal
retirement benefits are calculated at 3.27% per service year based on the participant's compensation of the highest 5 years
during the past 10 years of employment.  Early retirement is provided for members age 50 with 10 years of credited service,
reduced by 3.00% per year. Under the provisions of the plan, pension benefits vest fully after 5 years of full-time employment
as a sworn police officer; however, if an employee terminates with the City, funds must remain in the plan until normal
retirement age to realize that vesting.
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B. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED)  

Contributions 

Plan Members contribute 9.0% of pensionable wages and the City contributes 10.5% of total pay contributed for each
member plus any remaining amount necessary for payment of normal (current year's) cost. For the year ending September
30, 2019, the City contributed 36.12% of covered payroll. Additionally, the State collects a 0.85% tax on premiums for casualty
insurance and remits those collections to the City annually. The state contributions are recorded as revenue and personnel
fringe benefit expenditures in the City's general fund before being recorded as a contribution to the plan.

 Net Pension Liability 

The City's net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by the actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2019.

The components of the Net Pension Liability of the City on September 30, 2019 were as follows:
Total pension liability $ 138,812,309

Plan fiduciary net position (113,269,054)

Sponsor's net pension liability $ 25,543,255

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 81.60%

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2018, updated to September 30, 2019,
using the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases Service based

Discount rate 7.30%

Investment rate of return 7.30%
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Mortality Rate Healthy Active Lives:

Female: RP-2000 Generational, 100% Combined Healthy White collar, Scale BB.

Male: RP2000 Generational, 10% Combined Healthy White Collar / 90% Combine Healthy Blue Collar, Scale BB.

Mortality Rate Disabled Lives:

Female: 60% RP2000 Disabled set forward two years/40% Annuitant White Collar with no setback, no projection scale.

Male: 60% RP2000 Disabled set back four years/40% Annuitant White Collar/ with no setback, no projection scale.

The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
dated July 10, 2017.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Pension Plan investment expenses and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. For 2019 the inflation rate assumption of the investment advisor was
2.50%. These ranges are combined to produce the long-range expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of geometric real
rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2019 are
summarized as follows:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

All cap value equity 22.50% 7.50%
Broad growth equity 22.50% 7.50%
Index Core 5.00% 7.50%
International Equity 15.00% 8.50%
Fixed Income (Core) 20.00% 2.50%
Global Bond 5.00% 3.50%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50%

Total 100%

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.30%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that the City's
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the
member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability
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Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension
Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position

Net Pension
Liability

Changes in Net Pension Liability (a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at beginning of year $ 126,278,033 $ 107,870,004 $ 18,408,029

Charges for the year 

Service cost 4,163,067 - 4,163,067

Interest 9,528,114 - 9,528,114

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,237,596 - 2,237,596

Changes in assumptions 3,301,642 - 3,301,642

Contributions - employer - 5,282,573 (5,282,573)

Contributions - state - 1,569,087 (1,569,087)

Contributions - employee - 1,716,997 (1,716,997)

Contributions - buy back 103,010 103,010 -

Net investment income - 3,744,171 (3,744,171)

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (6,799,153) (6,799,153) -

Administrative expenses - (217,635) 217,635

Net change 12,534,276 5,399,050 7,135,226

Balances at end of year $ 138,812,309 $ 113,269,054 $ 25,543,255

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate:

1% Decrease
(6.30%)

Current Discount
Rate (7.30%)

1% Increase
(8.30%)

City's net pension liability $ 44,018,618 $ 25,543,255 $ 10,167,548

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in a separately issued plan financial report.
That report may be obtained by contacting the Financial Management Department at the City of Port St. Lucie, 121 S.W. Port
St. Lucie Blvd, Port St. Lucie, FL 34984.
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized a pension expense of $6,930,564. On September 30, 2019, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 2,958,117 $ 446,488

Changes of assumptions 6,929,035 -

Net difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 883,267 -

Total $ 10,770,419 $ 446,488

The following table represents amounts recognized in Deferred Inflows of Resources and Outflows of Resources related to
pension expense.

Year Ending September 30,

2021 $ 1,723,245

2022 2,002,194

2023 2,421,568

2024 2,442,105

2025 943,499

Thereafter $ 791,320
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C. FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM  

Defined Benefit Plan - Florida Retirement System 

The City participates in two defined benefit pension plans that are administered by the State of Florida, Department of
Management Services, Division of Retirement.  The plans provide retirement, disability or death benefits to retirees or their
designated beneficiaries.  Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, establishes the authority for benefit provisions.  Changes to the law
can only occur through an act of the Florida Legislature.  The State of Florida issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plans.  That report is available from the Florida
Department of Management Services' website (www.dms.myflorida.com).

The Florida Retirement System (FRS) Pension Plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) available for eligible employees. The FRS was established and is administered in
accordance with Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Retirees receive a lifetime pension benefit with joint and survivor payment
options. FRS membership is compulsory for employees filling regularly established positions in a state agency, county agency,
state university, state college, or district school board, unless restricted from FRS membership under Sections 121.053 or
121.122, Florida Statutes, or allowed to participate in a defined contribution plan in lieu of FRS membership. Participation by
cities, municipalities, special districts, charter schools and metropolitan planning organizations is optional.

The Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
established and administered in accordance with Section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist
retirees and surviving beneficiaries of the state-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs.  To be
eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under a state administered retirement system must provide proof of eligible health
insurance coverage, which can include Medicare.

a. Benefits Provided 

Benefits under the FRS Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, average final compensation,
and service credit. Credit for each year of service is expressed as a percentage of the average final compensation. For
members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the average of the five highest fiscal years'
earnings; for members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is the average of the eight
highest fiscal years' earnings.  The total percentage value of the benefit received is determined by calculating the total value
of all service, which is based on the retirement plan and/or class to which the member belonged when the service credit was
earned.

Eligible retirees and beneficiaries receive a monthly HIS payment equal to the number of years of service credited at
retirement multiplied by $5.  The minimum payment is $30 and the maximum payment is $150 per month, pursuant to
Section 112.363, Florida Statutes.
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b. Contributions 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the employer are established and may be amended by the Florida
Legislature.  Employees are required to contribute 3.00% of their salary to the FRS Pension Plan. The employer's contribution
rates as of September 30, 2019, were as follows:

FRS HIS

Regular class 6.81% 1.66%
Special risk class 23.82% 1.66%
Senior management service class 23.75% 1.66%
Elected officials 47.16% 1.66%
DROP 12.94% 1.66%

The employer's contributions for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $68,263 to the FRS Pension Plan and $2,974 to
the HIS Program.

c. Pension Liabilities and Pension Expense 

In its financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability of the FRS Pension Plan and its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the HIS Program.
The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019.  The City's proportions of the net pension liabilities were based
on its share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the contributions of all participating entities, actuarially
determined.

FRS HIS

Net Pension Liability $ 758,172 $ 59,930

Proportion at:
Current measurement date 0.0022% 0.0005%
Prior measurement date 0.0026% 0.0006%

Pension expense (benefit) $ 235,168 $ 3,868
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d. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions  

At September 30, 2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

FRS HIS

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Deferred
outflows of
resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 44,969 $ 471 $ 728 $ 73

Change of assumptions 194,731 - 6,939 4,898

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 41,946 39 -

Changes in proportion and differences
between City pension plan contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 48,623 73,629 2,402 6,826

City pension plan contribution subsequent to
the measurement date 18,993 - 802 -

Total $ 307,316 $ 116,046 $ 10,910 $ 11,797

e. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions paid subsequent to the measurement date and prior to the
employer's fiscal year end will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the reporting period ending
September 30, 2020.  Other pension-related amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending September 30: FRS HIS

2020 $ 88,412 $ 447

2021 15,528 111

2022 40,596 (149)

2023 29,787 (1,207)

2024 (1,063) (490)

Thereafter (983) (401)

Total $ 172,277 $ (1,689)
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f. Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability for each of the defined benefit plans was measured as of June 30, 2019.  The total pension liability
for the FRS Pension Plan was determined by an actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2019. For the HIS Program, the total pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated July 1, 2018 and using standard actuarial rolled-forward to develop
the liability at June 30, 2019.  The individual entry age normal actuarial cost method was used for each plan, along with the
following significant actuarial assumptions:

FRS HIS

Inflation 2.60% 2.60%

Salary increase 3.25% 3.25%

Investment rate of return 6.90% N/A

Discount rate 6.90% 3.50%

Morality assumptions for the FRS Pension Plan were based on PUB2010 base tables projected generationally with Scale MP-
2018. Mortality assumptions for the HIS Program were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

For both plans, the actuarial assumptions were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1,
2013, through June 30, 2018.

The following changes in key actuarial assumptions occurred in 2019:

FRS: The long-term expected rate of return and the discount rate used to determine the total pension liability decreased
from 7.00% to 6.90%.

HIS: The municipal bond index rate and the discount rate used to determine the total pension liability increased from
3.87% to 3.50%.

The long-term expected investment rate of return was not based on historical returns, but instead was based on a forward-
looking capital market economic model. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions,
and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. For the FRS Pension Plan, the table below summarizes the consulting
actuary's assumptions based on the long-term target asset allocation.
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Target Allocation
(1)

Annual
Arithmetic

Return

Compound
Annual

Geometric
Return

Cash 1% 3.3% 3.3%

Fixed income 18% 4.1% 4.1%

Global equity 54% 8.0% 6.8%

Real estate 10% 6.7% 6.1%

Private equity 11% 11.2% 8.4%

Strategic investments 6% 5.9% 5.7%

100%

g. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the FRS Pension Plan was 6.90%. FRS' fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.

Because the HIS Program is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, a municipal bond rate of 3.50% was used to
determine the total pension liability for the program. The Bond Buyer General Obligation Bond 20-Bond Municipal Bond
Index was used as the applicable municipal bond index.

h. Sensitivity Analysis 

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.  The sensitivity
analysis shows the impact to the employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability if the discount rate was 1.00%
higher or 1.00% lower than the current discount rate.

FRS HIS

1% Decrease
Current

Discount Rate 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Current

Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%) (2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)

City's proportionate share of the net
pension liability $ 1,310,627 $ 758,172 $ 296,779 $ 68,413 $ 59,930 $ 52,864

Pension Plans' Fiduciary net Position detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is available in the
state's separately issued financial reports.
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i. Pension Plans' Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is available in the State's separately issued financial
reports.

j. Defined Contribution Plan 

Pursuant to Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, the Florida Legislature created the Florida Retirement Investment Plan ("FRS
Investment Plan"), a defined contribution pension plan qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The FRS
Investment Plan is an alternative available to members of the Florida Retirement System in lieu of the defined benefit plan.
There is a uniform contribution rate covering both the defined benefit and defined contribution plans, depending on
membership class. Required employer contributions made to the plan during the year ended September 30, 2019, totaled .

Plan Description 

Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, requires all public employers to allow their retirees to participate in the same health group
plan offered to their active employees. The City operates a self-funded plan for health, dental, vision and life insurance
benefits. All financial activities of the self-funded plan are recorded in the Internal Service Fund. Substantially all the City's
full-time employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the City.
The City recognizes the costs associated with providing these benefits as claims are paid. Funding of the plan is from various
funds of the City that incur payroll related expenses, such as the General Fund, Road & Bridge Fund and Utility System Fund.
These funds have also expended money in the past to liquidate the other post-employment benefit (OPEB) net OPEB liability.

The Other Post Employment Benefit plan is a single-employer benefit plan administered by the City.  Retirees' are charged the
same rate by the City as active employees.  Premiums charged by the City are a blended rate based on the experience of
younger active employees and older retired employees.  Since retirees have higher costs yet pay the same rate as younger
active employees, the blended rate creates an implicit rate subsidy for retirees.

The City offers a Health Insurance Premium Subsidy to select retirees. The Health Insurance Subsidy is not contingent on
continuing medical coverage through the City. The Subsidy is equivalent to a portion of the cost of single medical coverage
through the City. The portion payable at retirement is 5% per each year of service up to a maximum of 80%. The portion
payable for total and permanent disability incurred in the line of work is 100%. To be eligible for the Premium Subsidy a
participant must meet the following qualifications:

a) be an eligible employee as of the inception of the policy on 10/1/2005 and hired prior to 10/25/2010, and

b) retire:

1) at age 55 with 10 years of service for general employees, or

2) at age 52 with 10 years of covered service for sworn officers.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

OPEB Trust Account 

In March 2010, City Council adopted Resolution 10-R11 establishing a retiree health savings plan (the Plan) for employees'
health needs during retirement. An irrevocable trust was established with ICMA Retirement Corporation and is 100% funded
by city contributions. The assets of the Plan are held in trust, with the City Manager, or his/her designee, and the City Finance
Director, or his/her designee, as trustee for the exclusive benefit of the Plan participants. Each year the City contributes to the
Other Postemployment Plan Trust Account an amount based on the actuarially determined contribution. For the year ended
September 30, 2019, the City contributed $1,739,000. The City's contributions to the Trust Account and the earnings of the
Trust Account are dedicated to providing benefits for eligible retirees. An actuarial valuation of the OPEB obligation is
prepared each year to determine the annual contribution to the Trust Account.

OPEB Trust Fund 

The City established an OPEB Trust Fund to account for the costs of retiree health insurance, the resources required to pay
retiree health insurance benefits and the accumulation of funds in the OPEB Trust Account. Separate financial statements for
the OPEB Trust Fund are not available. A Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net
Position are included in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Since the City self-funds health insurance for active
and retired employees, costs of retiree health insurance and amounts to be contributed by retirees are calculated annually
based on recommendations provided by the City's health insurance consultant. Contributions by retirees to the OPEB Trust
Fund for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019 were $2,848,960.

Plan Membership as of September 30, 2019 
Inactive plan members currently receiving benefits 107

Active plan members with coverage 951

Active plan members without coverage 60

1,118

Investments 

Resolution 10-R11 required all Plan assets to be invested in the ICMA Retirement Corporation's VantageCare Retirement
Health Savings Plan (RHS Plan).  Investment options in the RHS Plan include:

-  Cash Management Fund

-  Bond funds

-  Balanced/Asset allocation funds

-  U.S. stock funds

-  International/Global funds
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

As authorized by the resolution, the City Manager and City Finance Director have directed ICMA Retirement Corporation to
invest the Plan assets in a Broad U.S. Stock Market Index Fund (Stock Fund) and a Core U.S. Bond Index Fund (Bond Fund).
Plan assets are allocated as follows:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Stock Fund 60%

Bond Fund 40%

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on the investments, net of investment
expense, was 3.36%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

Net OPEB Liability of the City 

The components of the net OPEB liability of the City at September 30, 2019, were as follows:
Total OPEB liability $ 35,505,674

Plan fiduciary net position (18,468,918)

Net OPEB liability $ 17,036,756

Plan fiduciary net position as % of total OPEB liability 52.00%

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of September 30, 2019, using the following assumptions.

Discount Rate 

7.00% 

Payroll Growth 

Payroll growth includes general inflation of 3.25% plus merit/productivity increases based on the FRS valuation as of July 1,
2019. General employees are assumed to follow the Regular table while Police employees are assumed to follow the Special
Risk table.

Inflation Rate Components

General inflation:  2.60% per year

Real wage inflation: 0.65% 
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Cost Method 

Entry Age Normal Level  

Health Care Coverage Election Rate 

Disability

Sample rates of disability are as shown below:
General Police

Age Male Female Unisex

20 0.002% 0.001% 0.03%

30 0.003% 0.001% 0.04%

40 0.009% 0.005% 0.07%

50 0.022% 0.010% 0.18%

60 0.048% 0.022% 0.90%

Turnover Rate

Assumption used to project terminations (voluntary and involuntary) prior to meeting minimum retirement eligibility for
retiree health coverage. The rates represent the probability of termination in the next 12 months. Sample annual turnover
rates are shown below:

General Police
Male Female

Age 0 YOS 5 YOS 10+ YOS 0 YOS 5 YOS 10+ YOS All YOS

20 32.85% 11.69% 9.77% 30.27% 13.47% 11.55% 12.00%

30 25.85% 8.83% 4.71% 25.39% 9.42% 5.37% 10.00%

40 24.38% 7.37% 2.97% 24.40% 7.02% 3.33% 5.20%

50 23.45% 6.03% 2.95% 23.21% 6.16% 2.95% 1.60%

60 27.37% 6.76% 5.31% 23.21% 6.06% 2.95%

56+ N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.40%

62+ 27.37% 6.76% 3.68% 23.21% 6.06% 2.95%
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Retirement Rate 

Assumed annual rates of retirement are as shown below. DROP participants are assumed to be retired as of the measurement
date.

General Police
Age All YOS Age 10-24 YOS 25+ YOS

55-61 2% 50 5% 5%

62 25% 51 5% 5%

63-64 10% 52 5% 100%

65-69 20% 53 5% 100%

70+ 100% 54 5% 100%

55 100% 100%

Mortality

RPH-2017 Total data set Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2019 for health retirees

RHP-2017 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2019 for disabled retirees

Health Care Trend Rates -8.5% decreasing to 4.5%

The initial trend rate was based on a combination of employer history, national trend surveys, and professional
judgment. The ultimate trend rate was selected based on historical medical CPI information.

HIS Trend Rates -7.8% decreasing to 4.45%

HIS trend rates are based on (1) health care trend rates shown above and; (2) assumed dental / vision trend rates which
begin at an initial 4.5% and decrease to 3.5% by FYE 2022 by 0.25% steps each year.

Retiree Contributions

Retiree contributions are assumed to increase according to health care trend rates.
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Investment Returns 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments is 7.00% based on the City's OPEB Trust Account expected
targets. This was validated using a building block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These expected future real rates of
return are then combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting them based on the target asset
allocation percentage and adding in expected inflation (2.25%). The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in the OPEB Plan's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized below:

Long-Term Rate
Asset Class Target Allocation of Return

U.S. Stock 60% 4.55%

U.S. Bond 40% 1.57%

Total 100% 6.12%

The City's funding policy is to pay the pay-go costs out of the City's Operating Funds and to partially pre-fund the Actuarially
Determined Contribution. The final single equivalent discount rate used for this year's valuation is 7.00% as of September 30,
2019 with the assumption that the City will eventually pay the pay-go costs out of the OPEB Trust Account at the time when
the OPEB Trust Account is expected to be sufficient to finance all future benefit payments. 

Changes in Net OPEB Liability Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability

(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

Net OPEB
Liability
(a) - (b)

Beginning balances $ 28,273,495 $ 15,738,100 $ 12,535,395

Changes for the year:
Service cost 511,755 - 511,755

Interest 1,976,780 - 1,976,780

Changes in assumptions (1,155,879) - (1,155,879)

Differences between expected and actual experience 7,009,368 - 7,009,368

Contributions - employer - 2,848,960 (2,848,960)

Net investment income - 991,703 (991,703)

Benefit payments (1,109,845) (1,109,845) -

Net changes 7,232,179 2,730,818 4,501,361

Ending balance $ 35,505,674 $ 18,468,918 $ 17,036,756
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the
net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.0 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease
(6.0%)

Discount Rate
(7.0%) 1% Increase (8.0%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 21,447,505 $ 17,036,756 $ 13,366,684

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the net OPEB liability
of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1-percentage-point lower (7% percent decreasing to 3.5% percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 percent decreasing to 5.5
percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease(7%
decreasing to 3.5%)

Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates (8% decreasing

to 4.5%)
1% Increase (9%

decreasing to 5.5%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 13,199,853 $ 17,036,756 $ 21,655,786

OPEB plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued SCERS financial report. 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $785,360. At September 30, 2019, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

 

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 6,133,197 $ 12,020,404

Changes of assumptions 5,175,938 1,011,394

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments 135,843 402,922

Total $ 11,444,978 $ 13,434,720

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are recognized in
OPEB expenses as follows:

Year ended:

2020 $ (541,668)

2021 (541,666)

2022 (444,882)

2023 (375,099)

2024 (409,059)

Thereafter $ 322,626
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Fiduciary Net Pension Activity:

Municipal Police
Officers

Other Post
Employment

Benefits Total

Assets

Cash and equivalents $ - $ 523 $ 523

Fixed investment 5,041,137 - 5,041,137

Corporate stocks 26,348,838 - 26,348,838

Corporate bonds 6,865,762 - 6,865,762

US Government obligations 635,133 - 635,133

Federal agencies 9,490,297 - 9,490,297

Municipal obligation 1,134,136 - 1,134,136

Real estate investments 12,524,756 - 12,524,756

Mutual funds 51,024,798 18,468,918 69,493,716

Accrued investment income 281,057 - 281,057

Prepaid expenses 1,418 - 1,418

Total assets 113,347,332 18,469,441 131,816,773

Liabilities and net position

Liabilities

Broker deals 84,296 - 84,296

Accounts payable 111,784 - 111,784

Total liabilities 196,080 - 196,080
Net position

Restricted for employees retirement 113,151,252 18,469,441 131,620,693

Total net position 113,151,252 18,469,441 131,620,693

 Total liabilities and net position $ 113,347,332 $ 18,469,441 $ 131,816,773
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Police
Officers

Other Post
Employment Benefits Total

Additions 

Contributions
City $ 5,282,572 $ 2,848,960 $ 8,131,532

State 1,569,087 - 1,569,087

Employee 1,805,061 - 1,805,061

Total Contributions 8,656,720 2,848,960 11,505,680

Investment Income
Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments 1,194,285 992,077 2,186,362

Interest and Dividends 2,627,832 - 2,627,832

Total Investment Income 3,822,117 992,077 4,814,194
Investment Expense (269,005) - (269,005)

Net Investment Income 3,553,112 992,077 4,545,189

Total Additions 12,209,832 3,841,037 16,050,869

Deductions
Benefit Payments 6,450,253 1,109,845 7,560,098

Administrative Costs and Charges 222,178 - 222,178

Refunds 197,975 - 197,975

Total Deductions 6,870,406 1,109,845 7,980,251

Net Increase in Net Pension 5,339,426 2,731,192 8,070,618

Total Net Position - beginning 107,811,826 15,738,249 123,550,075

Total Net Position - ending $ 113,151,252 $ 18,469,441 $ 131,620,693

D. CONTINGENCIES  

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the normal course of business, including claims for property damages,
personal injuries, and personnel practices.  In the opinion of management, the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits, some of
which are covered by insurance, will not have a material adverse effect on the City's financial position.
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NOTE 4. NOTE 4. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

E. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

On February 13, 2020 the City issued $30,145,000 City of Port St Lucie, Stormwater Utility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
2020.  The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to provide funds, together with other legally available funds to refund the City's
Stormwater utility revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010A (Build America Bonds - Direct Payment) and the Stormwater utility
Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2010B (Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds).  The proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds
were used by the City to (i) finance the cost of acquisition, construction and equipping of capital improvements to the System,
(ii) purchase a reserve fund financial guaranty policy in the amount of the Reserve Account Requirement of the Series 2010
Bonds for deposit to the Series 2010 Bonds Reserve Subaccount in the Reserve Account, and (iii) pay costs of issuance
associated with the Series 2010 Bonds including the cost of the financial guaranty policy.

In March 2020, the World Health Organization made the assessment that the outbreak of a novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is  a
pandemic. As a result, uncertainties have arisen that may have a significant negative impact on the operating activities and
results of the City. The occurrence and extent of such an impact will depend on future developments, including: (i) the
duration and spread of the virus, (ii) government quarantine measures, (iii) voluntary and precautionary restrictions on travel
or meetings, (iv) the effects on the financial markets, and (v) the effects on the economy overall, all of which are uncertain.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues 
Taxes $ 64,635,497 $ 64,898,030 $ 65,737,912 $ 839,882
Licenses and permits 10,889,474 10,889,474 11,006,849 117,375
Intergovernmental 13,077,992 13,226,677 14,479,012 1,252,335
Charges for services 3,384,266 3,485,266 3,939,322 454,056
Fines and forfeitures 1,013,449 1,119,073 1,191,992 72,919
Interest income 408,005 408,005 1,084,983 676,978
Impact fees 475,000 475,000 970,583 495,583
Other 1,514,195 6,447,754 1,768,239 (4,679,515)

Total revenues 95,397,878 100,949,279 100,178,892 (770,387)
Expenditures 

General government 22,383,814 22,464,635 21,470,489 994,146
Public safety 46,643,005 50,346,378 48,452,947 1,893,431
Physical environment 484,364 484,364 363,145 121,219
Transportation 106,443 123,443 114,750 8,693
Economic environment 5,687,039 5,669,216 2,587,629 3,081,587
Human services 1,574,519 1,596,417 1,458,061 138,356
Culture and recreation 16,774,153 16,935,456 14,883,437 2,052,019
Principal - 302,000 745,000 (443,000)
Interest 1,318,844 2,437,320 4,409,864 (1,972,544)

Total expenditures 94,972,181 100,359,229 94,485,322 5,873,907
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 425,697 590,050 5,693,570 5,103,520

Transfers in 9,207,475 9,207,475 9,202,280 (5,195)
Transfers out (9,759,006) (10,573,084) (10,519,040) 54,044
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - 54,360,024 54,360,024
Payment to escrow agent - - (53,955,165) (53,955,165)

Total other financing sources (uses) (551,531) (1,365,609) (911,901) 453,708
Net change in fund balance $ (125,834) $ (775,559) 4,781,669 $ 5,557,228

Fund balance, beginning of year 29,777,785

Fund balance, end of year $ 34,559,454
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - SW Annexation District 1 Collection Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 7,005,000 $ 7,005,000 $ 6,979,785 $ (25,215)
Interest income 55,500 55,500 335,548 280,048

Total revenues 7,060,500 7,060,500 7,315,333 254,833
Expenditures 

Physical environment 164,000 164,000 112,239 51,761
Principal 2,350,000 2,350,000 3,085,000 (735,000)
Interest 4,440,000 4,440,000 3,705,744 734,256

Total expenditures 6,954,000 6,954,000 6,902,983 51,017
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  106,500 106,500 412,350 305,850

Transfers out (1,073) (1,073) (1,073) -
Net change in fund balance $ 105,427 $ 105,427 411,277 $ 305,850

Fund balance, beginning of year 10,194,044
Fund balance, end of year $ 10,605,321
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Community Redevelopment Agency Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
with Final 
Positive 

(Negative)

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 1,697,028 $ 1,756,970 $ 1,793,667 $ 36,697
Interest income 1,025 1,025 12,041 11,016
Other 20,600 20,600 20,064 (536)

Total revenues 1,718,653 1,778,595 1,825,772 47,177
Expenditures 

Economic environment 542,949 631,949 418,303 213,646
Principal 2,614,800 2,614,800 2,720,000 (105,200)
Interest 1,698,350 1,698,350 1,593,150 105,200

Total expenditures 4,856,099 4,945,099 4,731,453 213,646
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (3,137,446) (3,166,504) (2,905,681) 260,823

Transfers in 1,362,752 1,387,522 1,328,097 (59,425)
Transfers out (47,740) (47,740) (47,740) -
Proceeds from sale of assets 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600,000 -

Total other financing sources (uses) 2,915,012 2,939,782 2,880,357 (59,425)
Net change in fund balance $ (222,434) $ (226,722) (25,324) $ 201,398

Fund balance, beginning of year 248,475
Fund balance, end of year $ 223,151

79



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Notes to Schedules of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual
General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Theÿ�ŝƚǇ͛ƐÿOfficeÿofÿManagementÿandÿBudgetÿpreparesÿanÿannualÿoperatingÿbudgetÿforÿallÿgovernmentalÿ fundsÿ
exceptÿCapitalÿProjectÿFundsÿwhichÿareÿsubjectÿtoÿbudgetaryÿcontrolÿonÿaÿprojectÿbasis.ÿTheÿlevelÿofÿbudgetaryÿ
controlÿisÿtheÿdepartment.ÿTheÿCityÿManagerÿisÿauthorizedÿtoÿtransferÿbudgetedÿamountsÿwithinÿdepartmentsÿ
ofÿanyÿfund.ÿRevisionsÿthatÿalterÿtheÿbudgetedÿtotalsÿofÿanyÿdepartmentÿ requireÿapprovalÿofÿtheÿCityÿCouncil.ÿ
Unencumberedÿappropriationsÿlapseÿatÿyear end.ÿ
ÿ
Budgetsÿ forÿ generalÿ andÿ specialÿ revenueÿ fundsÿ areÿ adoptedÿ onÿ aÿ basisÿ consistentÿ withÿ generallyÿ acceptedÿ
accountingÿprinciples,ÿexceptÿencumbrancesÿareÿpresentedÿasÿexpenditures.ÿ
ÿ
Encumbrancesÿʹÿunderÿencumbranceÿaccounting,ÿpurchaseÿorders,ÿcontractsÿandÿotherÿcommitmentsÿforÿtheÿ
expenditureÿ ofÿ fundsÿ areÿ recordedÿ inÿ orderÿ toÿ reserveÿ thatÿ portionÿ ofÿ theÿ applicableÿ appropriationÿ inÿ theÿ
governmentalÿfunds.ÿ Encumbrancesÿoutstandingÿatÿyear endÿareÿreportedÿasÿfundÿbalanceÿ ÿcommittedÿandÿ doÿ
notÿconstituteÿexpendituresÿorÿ liabilitiesÿbecauseÿ theÿ commitmentsÿwillÿ beÿhonoredÿduringÿ theÿ subsequentÿ
yearÿwhenÿtheÿcorrespondingÿexpenditureÿwillÿbeÿrecordedÿasÿpaid.ÿ

ÿ
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

2019 2018 2017 2016

Total Pension Liability 
Service cost $ 4,163,067 $ 3,909,651 $ 3,558,152 $ 3,431,980
Interest 9,317,565 8,831,558 8,161,944 5,860,296
Change in excess state money - - - (1,508,953)
Changes of benefit terms - - - 2,751,119
Differences between expected and actual experience 2,237,596 1,065,253 488,739 660,201
Change of assumptions 3,301,642 - 3,830,114 2,757,260
Contributions - buy back 103,010 63,446 246,153 362,053
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee

contributions (6,648,228) (2,841,518) (3,707,511) (2,505,630)
Net change in total pension liability 12,474,652 11,028,390 12,577,591 11,808,326
 
Total pension liability - beginning 126,219,855 115,191,465 102,613,874 90,805,548
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 138,694,507 $ 126,219,855 $ 115,191,465 $ 102,613,874
 
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Contributions - city $ 5,282,572 $ 4,015,851 $ 4,018,282 $ 3,781,111
Contributions - state 1,569,087 1,439,785 1,296,741 1,247,468
Contributions - employees 1,702,051 1,661,523 1,559,054 1,489,224
Contributions - buy back 103,010 63,446 246,153 362,053
Net investment income 3,553,112 8,873,271 10,004,086 6,951,772
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee

contributions (6,648,228) (2,841,518) (3,707,511) (2,505,630)
Administrative expense (222,178) (190,294) (167,554) (173,825)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 5,339,426 13,022,064 13,249,251 11,152,173
 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 107,811,826 94,789,762 81,540,511 70,388,338
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 113,151,252 $ 107,811,826 $ 94,789,762 $ 81,540,511
 
Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 25,543,255 $ 18,408,029 $ 20,401,703 $ 21,073,363
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total pension

liability %81.60 %85.42 %82.29 %79.46
Covered payroll * $ 18,967,279 $ 18,475,097 $ 17,322,812 $ 16,546,924
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll %134.67 %99.64 %117.77 %127.36

* The covered payroll numbers shown are in compliance with GASB 82, except for the 9/30/2015 measurement period which
includes DROP payroll
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

2015 2014 2013

Total Pension Liability 
Service cost $ 3,098,598 $ 2,960,477 $ 2,741,182
Interest 6,533,502 5,664,535 5,237,834
Change in excess state money 364,937 309,802 -
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience (572,414) - -
Change of assumptions 2,550,583 - -
Contributions - buy back 20,069 4,436,554 -

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (2,572,372) (2,465,108) (2,273,086)
Net change in total pension liability 9,422,903 10,906,260 5,705,930
 
Total pension liability - beginning 81,314,693 70,408,433 64,702,503
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 90,737,596 $ 81,314,693 $ 70,408,433
 
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Contributions - city $ 3,291,256 $ 3,226,099 $ 3,085,280
Contributions - state 1,082,037 1,026,902 972,480
Contributions - employees 1,407,055 1,407,206 1,238,897
Contributions - buy back 20,069 4,436,554 -
Net investment income (308,449) 4,908,147 6,621,223

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (2,572,372) (2,465,108) (2,273,086)
Administrative expense (185,455) (147,333) (93,764)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,734,141 12,392,467 9,551,030
 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 67,654,197 55,261,730 45,710,700
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $ 70,388,338 $ 67,654,197 $ 55,261,730
 
Net pension liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 20,349,258 $ 13,660,496 $ 15,146,703
 

Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total pension liability %77.57 %83.20 %78.69
Covered payroll * $ 16,788,921 $ 15,644,848 $ 13,765,222
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll %121.21 %87.32 %109.00

* The covered payroll numbers shown are in compliance with GASB 82, except for the 9/30/2015 measurement period which
includes DROP payroll
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

NotesÿtoÿSchedule:

Changesÿofÿassumptions:
Forÿmeasurementÿdateÿ09/30/2019,ÿamountsÿreportedÿasÿchangesÿofÿassumptionsÿresultedÿfromÿloweringÿ
theÿinvestedÿrateÿofÿreturnÿfromÿ7.5%ÿtoÿ7.3%

Forÿmeasurementÿdateÿ09/30/2017,ÿasÿresultÿofÿtheÿExperienceÿStudyÿdatedÿJulyÿ20,ÿ2017,ÿtheÿBoardÿhasÿ
adoptedÿchangesÿto:

ÿPayrollÿgrowth
ÿSalaryÿincreases
ÿInvestmentÿreturn
ÿMortalityÿrates
ÿNormalÿandÿearlyÿretirementÿrates
ÿWithdrawalÿrates

MortalityÿratesÿwereÿchangedÿtoÿtheÿassumptionsÿusedÿbyÿtheÿFloridaÿRetirementÿSystemÿforÿspecialÿriskÿ
employees.
Forÿmeasurementÿdateÿ09/30/2016,ÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿChapterÿ2015 157,ÿLawsÿofÿFlorida,ÿtheÿassumedÿratesÿofÿ
mortalityÿwereÿchangedÿtoÿtheÿassumptionsÿusedÿbyÿtheÿFloridaÿRetirementÿSystemÿforÿspecialÿriskÿ
employees.ÿÿ

Theÿinflationÿassumptionÿwasÿloweredÿfromÿ3.0%ÿtoÿ2.5%,ÿmatchingÿtheÿlong termÿinflationÿassumptionÿ
utilizedÿbyÿtheÿPlan'sÿinvestmentÿconsultant.

Forÿmeasurementÿdateÿ09/30/2015,ÿamountsÿreportedÿasÿchangesÿofÿassumptionsÿresultedÿfromÿloweringÿ
theÿinvestmentÿrateÿofÿreturnÿfromÿ8.0%ÿtoÿ7.75%.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Schedule of Contributions

2019 2018 2017 2016

Actuarially determined contribution $ 6,794,017 $ 5,793,686 $ 5,100,319 $ 4,498,211
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 6,851,660 5,455,636 5,315,023 5,028,579
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (57,643) $ 338,050 $ (214,704) $ (530,368)
 
Covered payroll * $ 18,967,279 $ 18,475,097 $ 17,322,812 $ 16,546,924
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %36.12 %29.53 %30.68 %30.39

* The covered payroll numbers shown are in compliance with GASB 82, except for the 9/30/2015 measurement period which
includes DROP payroll.

85



2015 2014 2013

Actuarially determined contribution $ 4,007,828 $ 3,944,168 $ 3,802,380

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions 4,007,828 3,944,168 3,802,380
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ -
 
Covered payroll * $ 16,788,921 $ 15,644,848 $ 13,765,522
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %23.87 %25.21 %27.62

* The covered payroll numbers shown are in compliance with GASB 82, except for the 9/30/2015 measurement period which
includes DROP payroll.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Notes to Schedule of Contributions

NotesÿtoÿSchedule

ValuationÿDate:

Methodsÿandÿassumptionsÿusedÿtoÿdetermineÿcontributionÿrates:

MortalityÿRates:

InterestÿRate:

PayrollÿIncreases:

EarlyÿRetirement:

3.00%,ÿinÿcomplianceÿwithÿChapterÿ112,ÿFloridaÿStatutes.ÿThisÿassumptionÿisÿreasonable,ÿ
ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�WůĂŶ͛Ɛ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ƚĞŶͲǇĞĂƌ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ͘�EŽ�ƉĂǇƌŽůů�
growthÿassumptionÿisÿutilizedÿforÿUAALÿbasesÿdevelopedÿonÿandÿafterÿOctoberÿ1,ÿ2017.

Age
Probabilityÿofÿ
Retirement

50 0%

withÿnoÿsetback,ÿnoÿprojectionÿscale.
TheÿaboveÿassumptionÿratesÿwereÿmandatedÿbyÿChapterÿ2015 157,ÿLawsÿofÿFlorida.ÿThisÿlawÿ
mandatesÿtheÿuseÿofÿtheÿassumptionÿusedÿinÿeitherÿofÿtheÿtwoÿmostÿrecentÿvaluationsÿofÿ
ƚŚĞ�&ůŽƌŝĚĂ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�;&Z^Ϳ͘�dŚĞ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�DŝůůŝŵĂŶ͛Ɛ�:ƵůǇ�
1,ÿ2016ÿFRSÿvaluationÿreportÿforÿspecialÿriskÿparticipants.ÿWeÿfeelÿthisÿassumptionÿ
sufficientlyÿaccommodatesÿfutureÿmortalityÿimprovements.

ActuariallyÿdeterminedÿcontributionÿratesÿareÿcalculatedÿasÿofÿOctoberÿ1,ÿtwoÿyearsÿpriorÿtoÿtheÿendÿofÿtheÿfiscalÿ
yearÿinÿwhichÿcontributionsÿareÿreported.

7.50%ÿperÿyearÿcompoundedÿannually,ÿnetÿofÿinvestment relatedÿexpenses.ÿThisÿ
ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�WůĂŶ͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ĂůůŽĐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�
returnsÿbyÿassetÿclass.

Male:ÿRP2000ÿGenerational,ÿ10%ÿCombinedÿHealthyÿWhiteÿCollarÿ/ÿ90%ÿCombined
HealthyÿBlueÿCollar,ÿScaleÿBB.
DisabledÿLives:
Female:ÿ60%ÿRP2000ÿDisabledÿFemaleÿsetÿforwardÿtwoÿyearsÿ/ÿ40%ÿAnnuitantÿWhite
Collarÿwithÿnoÿsetback,ÿnoÿprojectionÿscale.
Male:ÿ60%ÿRP2000ÿDisabledÿMaleÿsetbackÿfourÿyearsÿ/ÿ40%ÿAnnuitantÿWhiteÿCollar

HealthyÿInactiveÿLives:
Female:ÿRPÿ2000ÿGenerational,ÿ100%ÿAnnuitantÿWhiteÿCollar,ÿScaleÿBB.
Male:ÿRPÿ2000ÿGenerational,ÿ10%ÿAnnuitantÿWhiteÿCollarÿ/ÿ90%ÿAnnuitantÿBlue
Collar,ÿScaleÿBB.
HealthyÿActiveÿLives:
Female:ÿRP2000ÿGenerational,ÿ100%ÿCombinedÿHealthyÿWhiteÿCollar,ÿScaleÿBB.

TheÿaboveÿratesÿwereÿdevelopedÿandÿadoptedÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿourÿJulyÿ10,ÿ2017ÿexperienceÿ
study.

4%
17%
5%
13%

51
52
53
54

10/1/2017
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Notes to Schedule of Contributions

NormalÿRetirement:

SalaryÿIncreases:

FinalÿSalaryÿLoad:

FundingÿMethod:

DisabilityÿRate:

Lessÿthanÿ25ÿyearsÿofÿCreditedÿService

Age
Probabilityÿofÿ
Retirement

55

60+ 100%

50%

25ÿorÿmoreÿyearsÿofÿCreditedÿService

Age
Probabilityÿofÿ
Retirement

56
57

10%
25%
33%
60%

58
59

55+ 100%
TheÿaboveÿratesÿwereÿdevelopedÿandÿadoptedÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿourÿJulyÿ10,ÿ2017ÿexperienceÿ
study.

52 60%
53 0%
54 50%

6.50%
5.00%

TheÿaboveÿratesÿwereÿdevelopedÿandÿadoptedÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿourÿJulyÿ10,ÿ2017ÿexperienceÿ
study.

CreditedÿServiceÿonÿ10/01/2012 LoadÿAssumption
10ÿorÿmoreÿyears 20.00%

YearsÿofÿService IncreaseÿinÿCompensation
0
1
2

3ÿorÿmore

19.00%
8.40%

^ĂůĂƌǇ�ʹ���ĨƵůů�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϱ͘ϴϮй͘

Seeÿtableÿbelowÿforÿsampleÿrates.ÿItÿisÿassumedÿthatÿ75%ÿofÿdisablementsÿandÿactiveÿ
memberÿdeathsÿareÿservice related.

Age
%ÿBecomingÿDisabledÿ

DuringÿtheÿYear

Betweenÿ5ÿandÿ10ÿyears 15.00%
Lessÿthanÿ5ÿyears 0.00%

20
30
40
50

0.03%
0.04%
0.07%
0.18%

EntryÿAgeÿNormalÿActuarialÿCostÿMethod.ÿTheÿfollowingÿloadsÿareÿappliedÿforÿdeterminationÿ
ofÿtheÿSponsorÿfundingÿrequirement:
/ŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ʹ���ŚĂůĨ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ϳ͘ϱϬй�ĂƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶ͘
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Notes to Schedule of Contributions

TerminationÿRate:

AssetÿValuation:

TheÿaboveÿratesÿwereÿdevelopedÿandÿadoptedÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿourÿJulyÿ10,ÿ2017ÿexperienceÿ
study.

Eachÿyear,ÿtheÿpriorÿActuarialÿValueÿofÿAssetsÿisÿbroughtÿforwardÿutilizingÿtheÿhistoricalÿ
geometricÿ4 yearÿaverageÿMarketÿValueÿreturn.ÿItÿisÿpossibleÿthatÿoverÿtimeÿthisÿtechniqueÿ
willÿproduceÿanÿinsignificantÿbiasÿaboveÿorÿbelowÿMarketÿValue.

5 14
15+

17%
7%
3%
2%

CreditedÿService
Probabilityÿofÿ
Withdrawal

0 2
3 4
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund
Schedule of Investment Returns

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net
of investment expense %3.47 %9.21 %12.08 %9.79 %(0.44) %8.27 %14.40

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend
is compiled, Pension plans should present information for those years for which information is available.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Florida Retirement System
Schedule of Proportionate Share in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios

Florida Retirement System (FRS) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

 
City's portion of the net pension liability %0.0022 %0.0025 %0.0026 %0.0025 %0.0025 %0.0025
City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability $ 758,172 $ 781,013 $ 729,960 $ 644,865 $ 326,606 $ 119,960
City's covered payroll $ 190,283 $ 184,009 $ 179,734 $ 177,642 $ 175,422 $ 169,287
City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a percentage of its covered payroll %395.56 %424.44 %406.13 %363.01 %186.18 %70.86
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability %82.61 %84.26 %83.89 %84.88 %92.00 %96.00

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

 
City's portion of the net pension liability %0.0005 %0.0006 %0.0006 %0.0005 %0.0005 %0.0005
City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability $ 59,930 $ 62,168 $ 60,654 $ 69,615 $ 58,983 $ 55,582
City's covered payroll $ 190,283 $ 184,009 $ 179,734 $ 177,642 $ 175,422 $ 169,287
City's proportionate share of the net pension

liability as a percentage of its covered payroll %31.50 %33.79 %33.75 %39.19 %33.62 %32.83
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of

the total pension liability %2.63 %2.15 %1.64 %0.97 %0.50 %0.99

Note 1: GASB 68 requires information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City is presenting
information for only the years for which information is available.

Note 2: The Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability is published in Note 3K of the Plan's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Note 3: amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of 6/30.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Florida Retirement System
Schedule of Contributions and Related Ratios

Florida Retirement System (FRS) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions $ 68,263 $ 73,897 $ 64,243 $ 62,281 $ 61,650 $ 60,418
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contributions (68,263) (73,897) (64,243) (62,281) (61,650) (60,418)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
 
City's covered payroll $ 191,673 $ 185,367 $ 181,076 $ 178,967 $ 176,701 $ 170,566
Contributions as a percentage of covered

payroll %35.61 %39.87 %35.48 %34.80 %34.89 %35.42

Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contributions $ 2,974 $ 3,185 $ 3,002 $ 3,062 $ 2,210 $ 2,314
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required
contributions (2,974) (3,185) (3,002) (3,062) (2,210) (2,314)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
 
City's covered payroll $ 191,673 $ 185,367 $ 181,076 $ 178,967 $ 176,701 $ 170,566
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll %1.55 %1.72 %1.66 %1.71 %1.25 %1.36

Note 1: GASB 68 requires information for 10 years.  However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the City is presenting
information for only the years for which information is available.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost $ 511,755 $ 500,907 $ 971,028
Interest 1,976,780 2,007,817 2,366,665
Change in assumptions (1,155,879) - 7,763,903
Changes of benefit terms - - -
Differences between expected and actual experience 7,009,368 (1,943,901) (15,843,718)
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,109,845) (931,283) (840,620)
Net change in total OPEB liability 7,232,179 (366,460) (5,582,742)
 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 28,273,495 28,639,955 34,222,697
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 35,505,674 $ 28,273,495 $ 28,639,955
 
Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 
Contributions - city $ 2,848,960 $ 1,651,283 $ 1,600,620
Contributions - employee - - -
Net investment income 991,703 1,331,739 1,322,358
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (1,109,845) (931,283) (840,620)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,730,818 2,051,739 2,082,358
 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 15,738,100 13,686,361 11,604,003
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 18,468,918 15,738,100 13,686,361
 
Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 17,036,756 $ 12,535,395 $ 14,953,594
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of the total OPEB liability %52.02 %55.66 %47.79
Covered payroll 60,185,939 54,739,433 53,016,400
Net pension liability as a % of covered payroll %28.31 %22.90 %28.21

Notes to Schedule:

Changes of assumptions in 2017:

Actuarial cost method updated from Projected Unit Credit to Entry Age Normal.  Payroll growth updated to most recent FRS actuarial
valuation of June 30, 2016.  Mortality table updated from RP-2000 Combined Mortility Table to SOA RPH-2-014 Total dataset Mortality
Table.  Percentage of retirees that are assumed to elect spousal coverage at retirement updated from 50% to 10%.  Health Insurance
Subsidy election rate for future retirees updated from 35% to 40% before age 65 and from 17.5% to 20% after age 65.

Changes in assumptions in 2018: 

Health care trend rates updated to an initial rate of 8.5% decreasing by 0.5% annually to an ultimate rate of 5.0%. Dental and vision trend
rates updated to an initial rate of 4.25% decreasing by 0.25% annually to an ultimate rate of 3.5%.

Changes of assumptions in 2019:

Health care trend rates updated to an initial rate of 8.0% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.5%.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund
Schedule of Required Contributions

2019 2018 2017 2016

Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) $ 1,557,761 $ 1,741,027 $ 2,261,886 $ 2,687,958
Contributions in relation to the ADC 2,848,960 1,651,283 1,600,620 2,086,609
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (1,291,199) $ 89,744 $ 661,266 $ 601,349
 
Covered payroll 60,185,939 54,739,433 53,016,400 49,992,602
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %4.73 %3.02 %3.02 %4.17

Note: information prior to fiscal year 2014 is not available.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund
Schedule of Required Contributions

2015 2014

Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) $ 1,541,210 $ 1,538,791
Contributions in relation to the ADC 1,617,361 1,767,900
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (76,151) $ (229,109)
 
Covered payroll 47,880,443 46,524,996
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %3.38 %3.80
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Other Post Employment Benefits Trust Fund
Schedule of Investment Returns

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Annual money-weighted rate of return,
net of investment expense %3.36 %9.05 %10.63 %10.31 %0.61 %11.68 %13.08 %18.83
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NONMAJORÿGOVERNMENTÿFUNDSÿÿ

SPECIALÿREVENUEÿFUNDSÿ

Specialÿrevenueÿfundsÿareÿusedÿtoÿaccountÿforÿandÿreportÿtheÿproceedsÿofÿspecificÿrevenueÿ sourcesÿthatÿareÿrestrictedÿorÿcommittedÿ
toÿexpenditureÿforÿspecifiedÿpurposesÿotherÿthanÿdebtÿ serviceÿorÿcapitalÿprojects.ÿ

ÿ
TheÿCityÿmaintainsÿtheÿfollowingÿSpecialÿRevenueÿFunds:ÿ

ÿ
RoadÿandÿBridgeÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿexpendituresÿassociatedÿwithÿtheÿmaintenanceÿandÿrepairÿofÿtheÿ�ŝƚǇ͛Ɛÿroads,ÿbridgesÿ
andÿrightÿofÿway.ÿRevenuesÿareÿprovidedÿbyÿgasÿtaxes,ÿanÿassignmentÿofÿadÿvaloremÿtaxes,ÿchargesÿforÿservicesÿandÿinterfundÿ
transfers.ÿ

ÿ
Streetÿ Lightingÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ expendituresÿ ofÿ residentialÿ streetÿ lightingÿ districts.ÿ Revenuesÿ areÿ providedÿ byÿ
assessmentsÿonÿallÿbenefitingÿpropertiesÿasÿauthorizedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ09 64.ÿ

ÿ
LawÿEnforcementÿImpactÿFeeÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿreceiptÿofÿlawÿenforcementÿimpactÿfeesÿauthorizedÿ byÿOrdinanceÿ
89 134ÿ (asÿ amendedÿ byÿ Ordinanceÿ 13 27).ÿ Proceedsÿ mustÿ beÿ usedÿ forÿ expendituresÿassociatedÿwithÿlawÿenforcementÿ
capitalÿimprovementsÿandÿcapitalÿneedsÿofÿnewÿpoliceÿ officersÿrequiredÿasÿaÿresultÿofÿcommunityÿgrowth.ÿ

ÿ
GovernmentalÿFinanceÿCorporationÿ Fund ÿtoÿaccountÿ forÿ leaseÿpaymentsÿ fromÿ theÿCityÿ andÿpublicÿ buildingÿimpactÿfeesÿ
authorizedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ06 64ÿ(asÿamendedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ13 24)ÿwhichÿareÿusedÿ toÿ payÿ theÿ principalÿ andÿ interestÿ onÿ theÿ
Certificatesÿ ofÿ Participationÿ issuedÿ byÿ theÿ Governmentalÿ FinanceÿCorporation.ÿ

ÿ
BuildingÿDepartmentÿFundÿʹÿSectionÿ553.80(7),ÿFloridaÿStatutes,ÿrequiresÿallÿrevenuesÿandÿexpendituresÿ associatedÿwithÿ
theÿprotectiveÿ inspectionsÿprovidedÿbyÿtheÿbuildingÿdepartmentÿtoÿbeÿ accountedÿforÿinÿaÿseparateÿfund.ÿ

ÿ
Waterÿ &ÿ Sewerÿ Assessmentÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ SADÿ I,ÿ Phaseÿ I ÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿandÿ
paymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿ interestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿ ProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿ
waterÿandÿsewerÿextensionsÿandÿimprovementsÿinÿ SpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿI,ÿPhaseÿI.ÿ

ÿ
Waterÿ&ÿ Sewerÿ Assessmentÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ SADÿ I,ÿ Phaseÿ IIÿʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿandÿ
paymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿ interestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿ ProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿ
waterÿandÿsewerÿextensionsÿandÿimprovementsÿinÿ SpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿI,ÿPhaseÿII.ÿ

ÿ
Waterÿ&ÿSewerÿAssessmentÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿUSAÿ3 4ÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿ wereÿ usedÿ toÿ payÿ theÿ costÿ ofÿ waterÿ
andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ inÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿ3 4.ÿ

ÿ
Waterÿ&ÿSewerÿAssessmentÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿUSAÿ5 6 7Aÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿ wereÿ usedÿ toÿ payÿ theÿ costÿ ofÿ waterÿ
andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ inÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿ5 6 7A.ÿ

ÿ
Waterÿ&ÿ Sewerÿ AssessmentÿCollectionÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ USAÿ 9ÿʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿ assessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿ wereÿ usedÿ toÿ payÿ theÿ costÿ ofÿ waterÿ
andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ inÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿUSAÿ9.ÿ
NeighborhoodÿServicesÿFundÿ ÿ toÿaccountÿ forÿgeneralÿ capitalÿ andÿnon capitalÿ improvementsÿ inÿspecificÿareasÿofÿtheÿcity.ÿ
Fundingÿisÿprovidedÿbyÿrecyclingÿrevenuesÿandÿrebatesÿreceivedÿfromÿtheÿ city'sÿwasteÿdisposalÿcontractor.ÿ

ÿ
SouthÿLennardÿRoadÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿandÿ
paymentÿofÿprincipalÿ andÿ interestÿonÿ theÿ Specialÿ AssessmentsÿBonds.ÿ ProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿ
roadway,ÿdrainageÿandÿwaterÿandÿsewerÿextensionsÿ andÿimprovementsÿinÿtheÿSouthÿLennardÿRoadÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
ÿ
ÿ



RiverÿPointÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿ costÿofÿ financingÿ
roadways,ÿdrainageÿfacilitiesÿandÿwaterÿandÿsewerÿextensionsÿandÿimprovementsÿwithinÿtheÿRiverÿPointÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿ
Districtÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
Tesoroÿ Specialÿ Assessmentÿ Districtÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿ assessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿfinancingÿ
roadways,ÿ drainageÿ facilities,ÿ communications,ÿ publicÿ safety,ÿ re useÿ irrigationÿ andÿ waterÿ andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ
improvementsÿwithinÿtheÿTesoroÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
Glassmanÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿ assessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿ theÿ costÿofÿ financingÿ
roadways,ÿdrainageÿ facilitiesÿ andÿwaterÿandÿ sewerÿextensionsÿandÿimprovementsÿwithinÿtheÿGlassmanÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿ
Districtÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
Eastÿ Lakeÿ Villageÿ Specialÿ Assessmentÿ Districtÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿandÿ
paymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿ interestÿonÿ theÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿ ProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿ
financingÿroadways,ÿdrainageÿfacilitiesÿandÿwaterÿ andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ withinÿ theÿ Eastÿ Lakeÿ Villageÿ
SpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿ project.ÿ

ÿ
St.ÿLucieÿLandÿHoldingÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿcollectionsÿandÿ
paymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿ interestÿonÿ theÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿ ProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostÿofÿ
financingÿroadways,ÿdrainageÿfacilitiesÿandÿwaterÿ andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ withinÿ theÿ St.ÿ Lucieÿ Landÿ
Holdingÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
CityÿCenterÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿDistrictÿCollectionÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿannualÿassessmentÿ collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿpayÿ theÿ costÿofÿ financingÿ
roadways,ÿdrainageÿfacilitiesÿandÿwaterÿandÿsewerÿextensionsÿandÿimprovementsÿwithinÿtheÿCityÿCenterÿSpecialÿAssessmentÿ
Districtÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
Peacockÿ andÿ Lowryÿ Combinedÿ Specialÿ Assessmentÿ Districtÿ Collectionÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ annualÿ assessmentÿ
collectionsÿandÿpaymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿ interestÿonÿ theÿ SpecialÿAssessmentsÿBonds.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿBondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿ
payÿtheÿcostÿofÿfinancingÿroadways,ÿdrainageÿfacilitiesÿandÿ waterÿ andÿ sewerÿ extensionsÿ andÿ improvementsÿ withinÿ theÿ
Peacockÿ andÿ LowryÿCombinedÿ Specialÿ AssessmentÿDistrictÿproject.ÿ

ÿ
Economicÿ Developmentÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ developerÿ contributionsÿ dedicatedÿ toÿ expendituresÿ associatedÿwithÿ
developmentÿthatÿstimulatesÿtheÿeconomy.ÿ

ÿ
WyndcrestÿDDMGÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿleaseÿpaymentsÿfromÿDigitalÿDomainÿMediaÿGroupÿ pledgedÿforÿtheÿpaymentÿ
ofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿ2010ÿLeaseÿRevenueÿBonds.ÿ

ÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrantÿ(CDBG)ÿEntitlementÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿrevenuesÿ andÿexpendituresÿofÿtheÿ
FederalÿCommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrantÿFundsÿwhichÿareÿusedÿforÿtheÿpurposeÿofÿfinancingÿservicesÿandÿimprovementsÿ
beneficialÿtoÿtheÿmoderate to lowÿincomeÿearnersÿofÿ theÿcommunity.ÿ

ÿ
LocalÿHousingÿAssistanceÿTrustÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿproceedsÿandÿexpendituresÿofÿtheÿfundsÿ providedÿbyÿtheÿStateÿofÿ
FloridaÿunderÿtheÿStateÿHousingÿInitiativeÿPartnershipÿ(SHIP)ÿprogram.ÿTheÿ sourceÿofÿtheseÿfundsÿisÿfromÿtheÿdocumentaryÿ
stampÿtaxÿandÿisÿusedÿtoÿprovideÿfinancingÿforÿaffordableÿhousingÿtoÿ individualsÿ inÿcertainÿ incomeÿrangesÿ toÿassistÿ inÿmakingÿ
repairsÿ toÿ theirÿ homesÿ orÿ inÿ purchasingÿaÿnewÿorÿexistingÿhome.ÿ

ÿ
NeighborhoodÿStabilizationÿProgramÿNSPÿIÿandÿNSPÿIIIÿGrantÿFundsÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿFederalÿGrantÿprogramÿrevenuesÿandÿ
expendituresÿtoÿacquire,ÿrehabilitate,ÿdemolishÿandÿredevelopÿforeclosedÿandÿabandonedÿresidentialÿpropertiesÿinÿorderÿtoÿ
helpÿstabilizeÿneighborhoods.ÿ

ÿ
ÿ



Nationalÿ PollutionÿNPDESÿ Fundÿʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ revenuesÿ andÿ expendituresÿ toÿ complyÿwithÿ theÿ stateÿ andÿ federalÿ
regulationÿplacedÿuponÿtheÿCityÿbyÿEPAÿwithÿtheÿcleanÿwaterÿact.ÿ

ÿ
Lawÿ Enforcementÿ Trustÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ revenuesÿ fromÿ confiscatedÿ propertyÿ inÿ accordanceÿ withÿ theÿ "Floridaÿ
Contrabandÿ Forfeitureÿ Act"ÿ andÿ expendituresÿ forÿ theÿ supportÿ ofÿ specialÿ crimeÿ fightingÿactivities.ÿ

ÿ
ConservationÿTrustÿ Fundÿʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ revenuesÿ fromÿ developersÿ asÿ requiredÿ byÿOrdinanceÿ 92 ÿ 30ÿ(asÿamendedÿbyÿ
Ordinanceÿ96 90)ÿandÿinterestÿincomeÿusedÿforÿconservationÿprogramsÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿ

ÿ
SolidÿWasteÿFundÿ ÿtoÿaccountÿforÿannualÿspecialÿassessmentsÿimposedÿonÿallÿresidentialÿpropertiesÿ inÿtheÿCity.ÿSolidÿwasteÿ
specialÿassessmentÿrevenuesÿareÿusedÿtoÿpayÿtheÿcostsÿofÿwasteÿcollectionÿforÿ allÿresidentialÿpropertiesÿinÿtheÿCityÿandÿtheÿ
costsÿrelatedÿtoÿadministrationÿofÿtheÿassessmentÿprogram.ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

DEBTÿSERVICEÿFUNDÿ
ÿ
TheÿDebtÿServiceÿFundÿisÿusedÿtoÿaccountÿforÿandÿreportÿtheÿaccumulationÿofÿresourcesÿthatÿareÿrestricted,ÿcommitted,ÿorÿassignedÿfor,ÿ
andÿtheÿpaymentÿofÿgeneralÿlong termÿdebtÿprincipalÿandÿinterest.ÿ

ÿ
TheÿCityÿmaintainsÿtheÿfollowingÿDebtÿServiceÿFund:ÿ

ÿ
GeneralÿObligationÿDebtÿServiceÿFundÿ ÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿrevenuesÿderivedÿfromÿtheÿvoter approvedÿadÿvaloremÿtaxÿlevyÿ
forÿtheÿpaymentÿofÿprincipalÿandÿinterestÿonÿtheÿGeneralÿObligationÿBonds,ÿSeriesÿ2005,ÿ2006ÿandÿ2014.ÿProceedsÿofÿtheÿ
BondsÿwereÿusedÿtoÿconstructÿtheÿCrosstownÿParkway,ÿaÿsix laneÿeast westÿcorridorÿinÿtheÿCity.ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

CAPITALÿPROJECTSÿFUNDSÿ
ÿ
Capitalÿ Projectsÿ Fundsÿareÿ usedÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ andÿ reportÿ financialÿ resourcesÿ thatÿ areÿ restricted,ÿ committed,ÿ orÿassignedÿ toÿ
expenditureÿforÿcapitalÿoutlaysÿincludingÿtheÿacquisitionÿorÿ constructionÿofÿcapitalÿfacilitiesÿandÿotherÿcapitalÿassets.ÿ

ÿ
TheÿCityÿmaintainsÿtheÿfollowingÿCapitalÿProjectsÿFunds:ÿ

ÿ
ParksÿCapitalÿImprovementÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿtheÿreceiptÿofÿparksÿandÿrecreationÿimpactÿfeesÿauthorizedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ
05 86ÿ (asÿ amendedÿ byÿ Ordinanceÿ 13 25).ÿ Proceedsÿ mustÿ beÿ usedÿ forÿ theÿ acquisitionÿofÿlandÿandÿconstructionÿofÿmajorÿ
capitalÿparksÿimprovements.ÿ

ÿ
Capitalÿ Improvementÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ revenuesÿ andÿ expendituresÿ associatedÿ withÿ generalÿ majorÿ capitalÿ
improvementsÿandÿacquisitions.ÿ Theÿfundingÿresourcesÿ includeÿgeneralÿtaxÿrevenue,ÿ interestÿincome,ÿbondÿproceeds,ÿandÿ
transfersÿfromÿotherÿfunds.ÿ

ÿ
RoadÿandÿBridgeÿCapitalÿImprovementÿFundÿʹÿtoÿaccountÿforÿrevenuesÿandÿexpendituresÿassociatedÿ withÿ majorÿ roadÿ andÿ
culvertÿ improvements,ÿ includingÿ theÿ annualÿ streetÿ resurfacingÿ program.ÿ Theÿ fundingÿ resourcesÿ includeÿ generalÿ taxÿ
revenues,ÿroadÿimpactÿfeesÿauthorizedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ05 87ÿ(asÿ amendedÿbyÿOrdinanceÿ13 26),ÿinterestÿincome,ÿandÿtransfersÿ
fromÿotherÿfunds.ÿ

ÿ
Parksÿ MSTUÿ Capitalÿ Improvementÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ useÿ ofÿ specificÿ voterÿ approvedÿ ad ÿ valoremÿtaxesÿandÿ
expendituresÿassociatedÿwithÿtheÿParksÿandÿRecreationÿimprovementÿprojects.ÿ
ÿ
Half Centÿ Salesÿ Taxÿ Capitalÿ Improvementÿ Fundÿ ʹÿ toÿ accountÿ forÿ theÿ useÿ ofÿ specificÿ voterÿ approvedÿ salesÿ taxesÿandÿ
expendituresÿassociatedÿwithÿstreet,ÿrepaving,ÿandÿsidewalkÿimprovementÿprojects.ÿ

ÿ



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

September 30, 2019

Nonmajor Special
Revenue Funds

Nonmajor Debt
Service Fund

Nonmajor
Capital Project

Funds

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 67,826,701 $ 4,490,998 $ 18,769,258 $ 91,086,957
Receivables 51,857,047 - - 51,857,047
Due from other governments 1,673,662 584 3,251,602 4,925,848
Prepaid items 34,040 - - 34,040
Inventories 31,492,817 - - 31,492,817
Restricted Assets 4,901,532 - 2,759,673 7,661,205

Total assets $ 157,785,799 $ 4,491,582 $ 24,780,533 $ 187,057,914
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances 
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 3,607,398 $ - $ 1,132,612 $ 4,740,010
Accrued salaries and wages 396,446 - - 396,446
Due to other governments 46,463 - - 46,463
Unearned revenue 100,025 - 376 100,401
Deposits payable 961,402 - - 961,402
Retainage payable 17,246 - 298,158 315,404

Total liabilities 5,128,980 - 1,431,146 6,560,126

Deferred Inflows 
Unavailable revenue 51,325,551 - - 51,325,551

Total deferred inflows 51,325,551 - - 51,325,551

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 31,526,857 - - 31,526,857
Restricted 49,720,622 4,491,582 17,452,886 71,665,090
Committed 20,083,789 - 5,896,501 25,980,290

Total fund balances 101,331,268 4,491,582 23,349,387 129,172,237
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 157,785,799 $ 4,491,582 $ 24,780,533 $ 187,057,914
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Nonmajor Special
Revenue Funds

Nonmajor Debt
Service Fund

Nonmajor Capital
Project Funds

Total Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

Revenues 
Taxes $ 3,368,352 $ 11,368,733 $ - $ 14,737,085
Licenses and permits 9,902,198 - - 9,902,198
Intergovernmental 9,079,149 - 16,145,660 25,224,809
Charges for services 29,233,074 - - 29,233,074
Fines and forfeitures 597,259 - - 597,259
Interest income 2,175,472 192,745 465,747 2,833,964
Impact fees 7,252,395 - 4,984,451 12,236,846
Other 4,374,092 - - 4,374,092

Total revenues 65,981,991 11,561,478 21,595,858 99,139,327

Current 
Current 

Public safety 8,733,138 - - 8,733,138
Physical environment 18,233,830 - - 18,233,830
Transportation 10,750,884 1,537 12,880,650 23,633,071
Economic environment 5,224,323 - - 5,224,323
Human services 2,532,282 - - 2,532,282
Culture and recreation 89,206 - 3,259,428 3,348,634

Debt Service 
Principal 8,606,768 3,715,000 - 12,321,768
Interest 3,194,743 4,459,606 - 7,654,349

Total current 57,365,174 8,176,143 16,140,078 81,681,395
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 8,616,817 3,385,335 5,455,780 17,457,932

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 9,205,865 - 3,964,874 13,170,739
Transfers out (9,636,214) (1,599,643) (2,010,986) (13,246,843)
Proceeds from sale of assets 380,695 - - 380,695

Total other financing sources (uses) (49,654) (1,599,643) 1,953,888 304,591

Net change in fund balances 8,567,163 1,785,692 7,409,668 17,762,523
Fund balances, beginning of year 92,764,105 2,705,890 15,939,719 111,409,714
Fund balances, end of year $ 101,331,268 $ 4,491,582 $ 23,349,387 $ 129,172,237
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

September 30, 2019

Road and Bridge
Fund

Street Lighting
Fund

Law
Enforcement

Impact Fee Fund

Governmental
Finance

Corporation
Fund

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 5,946,447 $ 108,393 $ 1,182,469 $ 7,295,565
Receivables - - - 7,205
Due from other governments 1,145,156 1,916 - -
Prepaid items 11,762 - - -
Inventories - - - 31,492,817
Restricted Assets 3,009,913 - - -

Total assets $ 10,113,278 $ 110,309 $ 1,182,469 $ 38,795,587
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances  
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 823,617 $ 30,363 $ 15,519 $ 8,997
Accrued salaries and wages 160,943 - - -
Due to other governments - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - -
Deposits payable 164,146 - - 763,966
Retainage payable - - - -

Total liabilities 1,148,706 30,363 15,519 772,963

Deferred Inflows 
Unavailable revenue - - - -

Total deferred inflows - - - -

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable 11,761 - - 31,492,817
Restricted - - 1,101,306 -
Committed 8,952,811 79,946 65,644 6,529,807

Total fund balances 8,964,572 79,946 1,166,950 38,022,624
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances  $ 10,113,278 $ 110,309 $ 1,182,469 $ 38,795,587
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Building
Department

Fund Phase I Phase II USA 3 and 4 USA 5 6 7A USA 9
Neighborhood
Services Fund

$ 18,218,357 $ 231,532 $ 446,061 $ 12,633,006 $ 1,020,073 $ 406,948 $ 1,338,947
- - 15,422 70,292 5,317,783 1,528,424 -
- - 18 31 18,444 2,936 -

2,504 - - - - - 129
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -

$ 18,220,861 $ 231,532 $ 461,501 $ 12,703,329 $ 6,356,300 $ 1,938,308 $ 1,339,076

$ 2,015,248 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 53,122
212,908 - - - - - 5,093

46,463 - - - - - -
100,025 - - - - - -

63 - - - - - -
12,387 - - - - - -

2,387,094 - - - - - 58,215

- - 15,423 70,292 5,317,783 1,528,424 -

- - 15,423 70,292 5,317,783 1,528,424 -

2,504 - - - - - 129
15,831,263 231,532 446,078 12,633,037 1,038,517 409,884 -

- - - - - - 1,280,732

15,833,767 231,532 446,078 12,633,037 1,038,517 409,884 1,280,861
$ 18,220,861 $ 231,532 $ 461,501 $ 12,703,329 $ 6,356,300 $ 1,938,308 $ 1,339,076
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

September 30, 2019

S Lennard Rd Riverpoint Tesoro Glassman

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 323,825 $ 1,617,736 $ 6,171,094 $ 1,010,342
Receivables 453,948 2,521,747 4,519,836 3,765,905
Due from other governments 1,050 5,711 32,235 3,626
Prepaid items - - - -
Inventories - - - -
Restricted Assets - - - -

Total assets $ 778,823 $ 4,145,194 $ 10,723,165 $ 4,779,873
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances  
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 500 $ -
Accrued salaries and wages - - - -
Due to other governments - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - -
Deposits payable - - - -
Retainage payable - - - -

Total liabilities - - 500 -

Deferred Inflows 
Unavailable revenue 453,948 2,521,747 4,519,836 3,765,905

Total deferred inflows 453,948 2,521,747 4,519,836 3,765,905

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted 324,875 1,623,447 6,202,829 1,013,968
Committed - - - -

Total fund balances 324,875 1,623,447 6,202,829 1,013,968
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances  $ 778,823 $ 4,145,194 $ 10,723,165 $ 4,779,873
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East Lake Village
Fund

St Lucie Land
Holding City Center Fund

Peacock and
Lowry

Combined Fund

Economic
Development

Fund
Wyndcrest

DDMG Fund

CDBG
Entitlement

Fund

$ 1,554,901 $ 2,515,427 $ 19,528 $ 371,159 $ 1,868,999 $ 535,997 $ -
2,330,431 10,798,418 18,014,251 1,989,094 - - -

31,461 9,779 79 1,280 - - 337,817
- - - - - - 19,645
- - - - - - -
- - - - - 1,323,194 457,070

$ 3,916,793 $ 13,323,624 $ 18,033,858 $ 2,361,533 $ 1,868,999 $ 1,859,191 $ 814,532

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 372,859
- - - - - - 7,640
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - 4,859

- - - - - - 385,358

2,330,431 10,798,418 18,014,251 1,989,094 - - -

2,330,431 10,798,418 18,014,251 1,989,094 - - -

- - - - - - 19,645
1,586,362 2,525,206 19,607 372,439 - 1,859,191 409,529

- - - - 1,868,999 - -

1,586,362 2,525,206 19,607 372,439 1,868,999 1,859,191 429,174
$ 3,916,793 $ 13,323,624 $ 18,033,858 $ 2,361,533 $ 1,868,999 $ 1,859,191 $ 814,532
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

September 30, 2019

Local Housing
Assistance Trust

Fund

Neighborhood
Stabilization

Program Funds

National
Pollution NPDES

Fund

Law
Enforcement

Trust Fund

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 1,330,439 $ 174,280 $ 147,655 $ 224,904
Receivables - 507,841 - -
Due from other governments - 5,275 - -
Prepaid items - - - -
Inventories - - - -
Restricted Assets - - - -

Total assets $ 1,330,439 $ 687,396 $ 147,655 $ 224,904
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances  
Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 215,257 $ 371 $ 4,892 $ 38,270
Accrued salaries and wages - 2,185 4,641 -
Due to other governments - - - -
Unearned revenue - - - -
Deposits payable 12,326 - - 20,901
Retainage payable - - - -

Total liabilities 227,583 2,556 9,533 59,171

Deferred Inflows 
Unavailable revenue - - - -

Total deferred inflows - - - -

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable - - - -
Restricted 1,102,856 684,840 138,122 165,733
Committed - - - -

Total fund balances 1,102,856 684,840 138,122 165,733
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances  $ 1,330,439 $ 687,396 $ 147,655 $ 224,904
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Conservation
Trust Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

$ 1,132,617 $ - $ 67,826,701
- 16,450 51,857,047
- 76,848 1,673,662
- - 34,040
- - 31,492,817
- 111,355 4,901,532

$ 1,132,617 $ 204,653 $ 157,785,799

$ 19,842 $ 8,543 $ 3,607,398
- 3,036 396,446
- - 46,463
- - 100,025
- - 961,402
- - 17,246

19,842 11,579 5,128,980

- - 51,325,551

- - 51,325,551

- - 31,526,857
- - 49,720,622

1,112,775 193,074 20,083,789

1,112,775 193,074 101,331,268
$ 1,132,617 $ 204,653 $ 157,785,799
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Road and Bridge
Fund

Street Lighting
Fund

Law
Enforcement

Impact Fee Fund

Governmental
Finance

Corporation
Fund

Revenues 
Taxes $ 3,368,352 $ - $ - $ -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental 7,777,232 - - -
Charges for services 426,293 450,255 - -
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Interest income 239,866 7,664 25,215 155,635
Impact fees - - 733,285 6,195,589
Other 3,211,829 - - 10,020

Total revenues 15,023,572 457,919 758,500 6,361,244

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety - - 84,999 -
Physical environment - - - 1,239
Transportation 10,161,085 422,949 - -
Economic environment - - - 5,008,140
Human services - - 45 -
Culture and recreation - - - -

Debt Service 
Principal 1,705,000 - 246,768 2,365,000
Interest 470,500 - 25,683 1,305,000

Total expenditures 12,336,585 422,949 357,495 8,679,379
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures  2,686,987 34,970 401,005 (2,318,135)

Other financing sources (uses)  
Transfers in 1,327,599 - - 5,732,549
Transfers out (975,988) (150,630) - -
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - 380,695

Total other financing sources (uses) 351,611 (150,630) - 6,113,244

Net change in fund balances 3,038,598 (115,660) 401,005 3,795,109
Fund balances, beginning of year 5,925,974 195,606 765,945 34,227,515
Fund balances, end of year $ 8,964,572 $ 79,946 $ 1,166,950 $ 38,022,624
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Building
Department

Fund Phase I Phase II USA 3 and 4 USA 5 6 7A USA 9
Neighborhood
Services Fund

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
9,902,198 - - - - - -

- - - - - - -
- - 909 21,941 2,898,374 314,873 320,000
243,027 - - - - - -
510,378 24,036 36,844 396,111 61,773 8,800 37,683
323,520 - - - - - -
378,463 - - - - - 290,772

11,357,586 24,036 37,753 418,052 2,960,147 323,673 648,455

8,321,715 - - - - - -
- - 14 78 45,504 5,527 -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - 364,937
- - - - - - -

- - - - 2,720,000 - -
- - - - 87,913 30,375 -

8,321,715 - 14 78 2,853,417 35,902 364,937
3,035,871 24,036 37,739 417,974 106,730 287,771 283,518

- - - - - - -
(800,913) (650,000) (1,295,158) (2,268,148) (13,052) (3,929) (281,282)

- - - - - - -

(800,913) (650,000) (1,295,158) (2,268,148) (13,052) (3,929) (281,282)

2,234,958 (625,964) (1,257,419) (1,850,174) 93,678 283,842 2,236
13,598,809 857,496 1,703,497 14,483,211 944,839 126,042 1,278,625

$ 15,833,767 $ 231,532 $ 446,078 $ 12,633,037 $ 1,038,517 $ 409,884 $ 1,280,861
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

S Lennard Rd Riverpoint Tesoro Glassman

Revenues 
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Charges for services 246,761 748,944 1,891,342 745,821
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Interest income 11,736 48,608 161,385 36,875
Impact fees - - - -
Other - - - -

Total revenues 258,497 797,552 2,052,727 782,696

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety - - - -
Physical environment 3,909 12,839 30,431 12,514
Transportation - - - -
Economic environment - - - -
Human services - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -

Debt Service 
Principal - - - -
Interest - - - -

Total expenditures 3,909 12,839 30,431 12,514
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures  254,588 784,713 2,022,296 770,182

Other financing sources (uses)  
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (246,892) (597,611) (761,671) (807,458)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (246,892) (597,611) (761,671) (807,458)

Net change in fund balances 7,696 187,102 1,260,625 (37,276)
Fund balances, beginning of year 317,179 1,436,345 4,942,204 1,051,244
Fund balances, end of year $ 324,875 $ 1,623,447 $ 6,202,829 $ 1,013,968
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East Lake Village
Fund

St Lucie Land
Holding City Center Fund

Peacock and
Lowry

Combined Fund

Economic
Development

Fund
Wyndcrest

DDMG Fund

CDBG
Entitlement

Fund

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - 40,000 - 919,274
810,872 1,661,569 18,656 300,904 - - -
- - - - - - -
47,141 57,935 909 11,692 52,464 50,804 -

- - - - - - -
- - - - - - 71,779

858,013 1,719,504 19,565 312,596 92,464 50,804 991,053

- - - - - - -
14,632 26,861 902 7,143 - - -

- - - - - - -
- - - - 216,182 - -
- - - - - - 1,056,882
- - - - - - -

645,000 - 925,000 - - - -
163,725 361,669 749,879 - - - -

823,357 388,530 1,675,781 7,143 216,182 - 1,056,882
34,656 1,330,974 (1,656,216) 305,453 (123,718) 50,804 (65,829)

- - 1,674,879 - - - 470,838
(4,612) (6,845) (64,694) (203,616) - - -

- - - - - - -

(4,612) (6,845) 1,610,185 (203,616) - - 470,838

30,044 1,324,129 (46,031) 101,837 (123,718) 50,804 405,009
1,556,318 1,201,077 65,638 270,602 1,992,717 1,808,387 24,165

$ 1,586,362 $ 2,525,206 $ 19,607 $ 372,439 $ 1,868,999 $ 1,859,191 $ 429,174
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Local Housing
Assistance Trust

Fund

Neighborhood
Stabilization

Program Funds

National
Pollution NPDES

Fund

Law
Enforcement

Trust Fund

Revenues 
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental 305,233 37,410 - -
Charges for services - - 136,265 -
Fines and forfeitures - - - 354,232
Interest income 43,887 5,957 4,599 5,714
Impact fees - - - -
Other 383,934 - - 27,294

Total revenues 733,054 43,367 140,864 387,240

Expenditures 
Current 

Public safety - - - 326,424
Physical environment - - - -
Transportation - - 166,850 -
Economic environment - - - -
Human services 1,152,821 (42,403) - -
Culture and recreation - - - -

Debt Service 
Principal - - - -
Interest - - - -

Total expenditures 1,152,821 (42,403) 166,850 326,424
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures  (419,767) 85,770 (25,986) 60,816

Other financing sources (uses)  
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - (470,838) (22,877) (10,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - (470,838) (22,877) (10,000)

Net change in fund balances (419,767) (385,068) (48,863) 50,816
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,522,623 1,069,908 186,985 114,917
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,102,856 $ 684,840 $ 138,122 $ 165,733
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Conservation
Trust Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

Total Nonmajor
Special Revenue

Funds

$ - $ - $ 3,368,352
- - 9,902,198
- - 9,079,149
73,820 18,165,475 29,233,074

- - 597,259
30,992 100,769 2,175,472

- - 7,252,395
- - 4,374,092

104,812 18,266,244 65,981,991

- - 8,733,138
- 18,072,238 18,233,830
- - 10,750,884
- - 5,224,323
- - 2,532,282
89,206 - 89,206

- - 8,606,768
- - 3,194,743

89,206 18,072,238 57,365,174
15,606 194,006 8,616,817

- - 9,205,865
- - (9,636,214)
- - 380,695

- - (49,654)

15,606 194,006 8,567,163
1,097,169 (932) 92,764,105

$ 1,112,775 $ 193,074 $ 101,331,268
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

September 30, 2019

Debt Service
Fund

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 4,490,998
Due from other governments 584

Total assets $ 4,491,582
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances  
Liabilities 

Deferred Inflows 

Total deferred inflows -

Fund Balances 
Restricted 4,491,582

Total fund balances 4,491,582
Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances  $ 4,491,582
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Debt Service
Fund

Revenues 
Taxes $ 11,368,733
Interest income 192,745
Other -

Total revenues 11,561,478

Current 
Current 

Transportation 1,537
Culture and recreation -

Debt Service 
Principal 3,715,000
Interest 4,459,606

Total current 8,176,143
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures  3,385,335

Other financing sources (uses)  
Transfers out (1,599,643)

Net change in fund balances 1,785,692
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,705,890
Fund balances, end of year $ 4,491,582
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

September 30, 2019

Parks Capital
Improvement

Fund

Capital
Improvement

Fund

Road and
Bridge Capital
Improvement

Fund

Parks MSTU
Capital

Improvement
Fund

Half Cent Sales
Tax

Total
Nonmajor

Capital Project
Funds

Assets 
Equity in pooled cash and investments $ 4,065,057 $ 5,921,535 $ 7,852,593 $ 930,073 $ - $ 18,769,258
Due from other governments - - 1,815,767 107,640 1,328,195 3,251,602
Restricted equity in pooled cash and investments - - - - 2,759,673 2,759,673

Total assets $ 4,065,057 $ 5,921,535 $ 9,668,360 $ 1,037,713 $ 4,087,868 $ 24,780,533

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Fund Balances 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 2,346 $ 25,034 $ 843,389 $ - $ 261,843 $ 1,132,612
Unearned revenue - - 376 - - 376
Retainage payable 3,907 - 292,312 - 1,939 298,158

Total liabilities 6,253 25,034 1,136,077 - 263,782 1,431,146

Deferred Inflows 

Total deferred inflows - - - - - -

Fund Balances 
Restricted 4,058,804 - 8,532,283 1,037,713 3,824,086 17,452,886
Committed - 5,896,501 - - - 5,896,501

Total fund balances 4,058,804 5,896,501 8,532,283 1,037,713 3,824,086 23,349,387

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances $ 4,065,057 $ 5,921,535 $ 9,668,360 $ 1,037,713 $ 4,087,868 $ 24,780,533

117



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Capital Project Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Parks Capital
Improvement

Fund

Capital
Improvement

Fund

Road and
Bridge Capital
Improvement

Fund

Parks MSTU
Capital

Improvement
Fund

Half Cent
Sales Tax

Total
Nonmajor

Capital
Project Funds

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ - $ 419,702 $ 7,992,639 $ 2,064,790 $ 5,668,529 $ 16,145,660
Interest income 109,449 103,023 213,326 16,362 23,587 465,747
Impact fees 2,246,583 - 2,737,868 - - 4,984,451

Total revenues 2,356,032 522,725 10,943,833 2,081,152 5,692,116 21,595,858

Expenditures 

Current 
Transportation - - 11,012,620 - 1,868,030 12,880,650
Culture and recreation 587,789 1,071,640 - 1,599,999 - 3,259,428

Total expenditures 587,789 1,071,640 11,012,620 1,599,999 1,868,030 16,140,078

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,768,243 (548,915) (68,787) 481,153 3,824,086 5,455,780

Other financing sources (uses) 
Transfers in - 3,033,022 931,852 - - 3,964,874
Transfers out (763,290) - (1,247,696) - - (2,010,986)

Total other financing sources (uses) (763,290) 3,033,022 (315,844) - - 1,953,888

Net change in fund balances 1,004,953 2,484,107 (384,631) 481,153 3,824,086 7,409,668

Fund balances, beginning of year 3,053,851 3,412,394 8,916,914 556,560 - 15,939,719
Fund balances, end of year $ 4,058,804 $ 5,896,501 $ 8,532,283 $ 1,037,713 $ 3,824,086 $ 23,349,387
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Taxes $ 11,372,590 $ 11,368,733 $ (3,857)
Interest income 90,000 192,745 102,745

Total revenues 11,462,590 11,561,478 98,888

Expenditures 
Transportation 5,000 1,537 3,463
Principal 4,983,794 3,715,000 1,268,794
Interest 3,190,813 4,459,606 (1,268,793)

Total expenditures 8,179,607 8,176,143 3,464
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  3,282,983 3,385,335 102,352

Transfers out (1,599,643) (1,599,643) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 1,683,340 $ 1,785,692 $ 102,352
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Road and Bridge Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Taxes $ 3,372,696 $ 3,368,352 $ (4,344)
Intergovernmental 7,084,005 7,777,232 693,227
Charges for services 469,669 426,293 (43,376)
Interest income 83,594 239,864 156,270
Other 147,000 3,211,829 3,064,829

Total revenues 11,156,964 15,023,570 3,866,606

Expenditures 
Transportation 10,545,084 10,161,083 384,001
Principal 470,500 1,705,000 (1,234,500)
Interest 1,705,000 470,500 1,234,500

Total expenditures 12,720,584 12,336,583 384,001
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (1,563,620) 2,686,987 4,250,607

Transfers in 1,327,599 1,327,599 -
Transfers out (976,067) (975,988) 79

Total other financing sources (uses) 351,532 351,611 79
Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (1,212,088) $ 3,038,598 $ 4,250,686
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Street Lighting Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 450,000 $ 450,255 $ 255
Interest income 4,148 7,664 3,516

Total revenues 454,148 457,919 3,771

Expenditures 
Transportation 436,000 422,949 13,051

Total expenditures 436,000 422,949 13,051
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  18,148 34,970 16,822

Transfers out (150,630) (150,630) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (132,482) $ (115,660) $ 16,822
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Law Enforcement Impact Fee Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Interest income $ 6,848 $ 25,215 $ 18,367
Impact fees 414,194 733,285 319,091

Total revenues 421,042 758,500 337,458

Expenditures 
Public safety 201,987 84,999 116,988
Human services 45 45 -
Principal 246,768 246,768 -
Interest 25,684 25,683 1

Total expenditures 474,484 357,495 116,989
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (53,442) 401,005 454,447

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (53,442) $ 401,005 $ 454,447
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Governmental Finance Corporation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Interest income $ 32,260 $ 155,635 $ 123,375
Impact fees 5,000,000 6,195,589 1,195,589
Other - 10,020 10,020

Total revenues 5,032,260 6,361,244 1,328,984

Expenditures 
Physical environment 25,000 1,239 23,761
Economic environment - 5,008,140 (5,008,140)
Principal 7,732,809 2,365,000 5,367,809
Interest 1,670,000 1,305,000 365,000

Total expenditures 9,427,809 8,679,379 748,430
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (4,395,549) (2,318,135) 2,077,414

Transfers in 5,732,549 5,732,549 -
Proceeds from sale of assets - 380,695 380,695

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,732,549 6,113,244 380,695
Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 1,337,000 $ 3,795,109 $ 2,458,109
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Building Department Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Licenses and permits $ 6,537,417 $ 9,902,198 $ 3,364,781
Fines and forfeitures 178,700 243,027 64,327
Interest income 160,000 510,378 350,378
Impact fees 186,775 323,520 136,745
Other 447,411 378,463 (68,948)

Total revenues 7,510,303 11,357,586 3,847,283

Expenditures 
Public safety 8,705,087 8,321,715 383,372

Total expenditures 8,705,087 8,321,715 383,372
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (1,194,784) 3,035,871 4,230,655

Transfers out (797,342) (800,913) (3,571)

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (1,992,126) $ 2,234,958 $ 4,227,084
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Phase I
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 10,000 $ - $ (10,000)
Interest income 12,000 24,036 12,036

Total revenues 22,000 24,036 2,036

Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  22,000 24,036 2,036

Transfers out (650,000) (650,000) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (628,000) $ (625,964) $ 2,036
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Phase II
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ - $ 909 $ 909
Interest income 20,000 36,844 16,844

Total revenues 20,000 37,753 17,753

Expenditures 
Physical environment 500 14 486

Total expenditures 500 14 486
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  19,500 37,739 18,239

Transfers out (1,287,001) (1,295,158) (8,157)

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (1,267,501) $ (1,257,419) $ 10,082
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

USA 3 and 4
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 1,418,331 $ 21,941 $ (1,396,390)
Interest income 174,000 396,111 222,111

Total revenues 1,592,331 418,052 (1,174,279)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 85,000 78 84,922

Total expenditures 85,000 78 84,922
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  1,507,331 417,974 (1,089,357)

Transfers out (2,260,311) (2,268,148) (7,837)

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (752,980) $ (1,850,174) $ (1,097,194)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

USA 5 6 7A
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 3,000,000 $ 2,898,374 $ (101,626)
Interest income 14,000 61,773 47,773

Total revenues 3,014,000 2,960,147 (53,853)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 60,000 45,504 14,496
Principal 3,000,000 2,720,000 280,000
Interest 90,000 87,913 2,087

Total expenditures 3,150,000 2,853,417 296,583
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (136,000) 106,730 242,730

Transfers out (13,052) (13,052) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (149,052) $ 93,678 $ 242,730

128



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

USA 9
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 335,000 $ 314,873 $ (20,127)
Interest income 1,000 8,800 7,800

Total revenues 336,000 323,673 (12,327)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 325,106 5,527 319,579
Principal 41,094 - 41,094
Interest - 30,375 (30,375)

Total expenditures 366,200 35,902 330,298
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (30,200) 287,771 317,971

Transfers out (3,929) (3,929) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (34,129) $ 283,842 $ 317,971
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Neighborhood Services Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 264,000 $ 320,000 $ 56,000
Interest income 15,214 37,683 22,469
Other 450,000 290,772 (159,228)

Total revenues 729,214 648,455 (80,759)

Expenditures 
Human services 466,430 364,937 101,493

Total expenditures 466,430 364,937 101,493
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  262,784 283,518 20,734

Transfers out (281,282) (281,282) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (18,498) $ 2,236 $ 20,734
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

S Lennard Rd
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 246,500 $ 246,761 $ 261
Interest income 5,392 11,736 6,344

Total revenues 251,892 258,497 6,605

Expenditures 
Physical environment 5,000 3,909 1,091

Total expenditures 5,000 3,909 1,091
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  246,892 254,588 7,696

Transfers out (246,892) (246,892) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ - $ 7,696 $ 7,696
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Riverpoint
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 685,000 $ 748,944 $ 63,944
Interest income 11,000 48,608 37,608

Total revenues 696,000 797,552 101,552

Expenditures 
Physical environment 20,000 12,839 7,161

Total expenditures 20,000 12,839 7,161
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  676,000 784,713 108,713

Transfers out (597,611) (597,611) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 78,389 $ 187,102 $ 108,713
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Tesoro
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 1,200,000 $ 1,891,342 $ 691,342
Interest income 10,000 161,385 151,385

Total revenues 1,210,000 2,052,727 842,727

Expenditures 
Physical environment 65,000 30,431 34,569

Total expenditures 65,000 30,431 34,569
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  1,145,000 2,022,296 877,296

Transfers out (761,671) (761,671) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 383,329 $ 1,260,625 $ 877,296
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Glassman
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 832,300 $ 745,821 $ (86,479)
Interest income 5,000 36,875 31,875

Total revenues 837,300 782,696 (54,604)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 20,000 12,514 7,486

Total expenditures 20,000 12,514 7,486
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  817,300 770,182 (47,118)

Transfers out (807,458) (807,458) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 9,842 $ (37,276) $ (47,118)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

East Lake Village Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 875,000 $ 810,872 $ (64,128)
Interest income 8,000 47,141 39,141

Total revenues 883,000 858,013 (24,987)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 18,000 14,632 3,368
Principal 645,000 645,000 -
Interest 163,725 163,725 -

Total expenditures 826,725 823,357 3,368
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  56,275 34,656 (21,619)

Transfers out (4,612) (4,612) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 51,663 $ 30,044 $ (21,619)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

St Lucie Land Holding
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 1,650,000 $ 1,661,569 $ 11,569
Interest income 8,000 57,935 49,935

Total revenues 1,658,000 1,719,504 61,504

Expenditures 
Physical environment 35,000 26,861 8,139
Principal 1,061,689 - 1,061,689
Interest 400,000 361,669 38,331

Total expenditures 1,496,689 388,530 1,108,159
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  161,311 1,330,974 1,169,663

Transfers out (6,845) (6,845) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 154,466 $ 1,324,129 $ 1,169,663
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

City Center Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 19,500 $ 18,656 $ (844)
Interest income 7,000 909 (6,091)

Total revenues 26,500 19,565 (6,935)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 1,500 902 598
Principal 848,879 925,000 (76,121)
Interest 826,000 749,879 76,121

Total expenditures 1,676,379 1,675,781 598
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (1,649,879) (1,656,216) (6,337)

Transfers in 1,674,879 1,674,879 -
Transfers out (64,694) (64,694) -

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,610,185 1,610,185 -
Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (39,694) $ (46,031) $ (6,337)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Peacock and Lowry Combined Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 310,860 $ 300,904 $ (9,956)
Interest income 2,000 11,692 9,692

Total revenues 312,860 312,596 (264)

Expenditures 
Physical environment 11,000 7,143 3,857

Total expenditures 11,000 7,143 3,857
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  301,860 305,453 3,593

Transfers out (203,616) (203,616) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ 98,244 $ 101,837 $ 3,593
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Economic Development Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ - $ 40,000 $ 40,000
Interest income - 52,464 52,464

Total revenues - 92,464 92,464

Expenditures 
Economic environment 281,182 216,182 65,000

Total expenditures 281,182 216,182 65,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (281,182) (123,718) 157,464

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (281,182) $ (123,718) $ 157,464
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Wyndcrest DDMG Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Interest income $ - $ 50,804 $ 50,804

Total revenues - 50,804 50,804

Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  - 50,804 50,804

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ - $ 50,804 $ 50,804
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

CDBG Entitlement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 1,168,625 $ 919,274 $ (249,351)
Other 49,185 71,779 22,594

Total revenues 1,217,810 991,053 (226,757)

Expenditures 
Human services 2,339,222 1,056,882 1,282,340

Total expenditures 2,339,222 1,056,882 1,282,340
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (1,121,412) (65,829) 1,055,583

Transfers in 470,839 470,838 (1)

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (650,573) $ 405,009 $ 1,055,582
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Local Housing Assistance Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 305,233 $ 305,233 $ -
Interest income 16,000 43,887 27,887
Other - 383,934 383,934

Total revenues 321,233 733,054 411,821

Expenditures 
Human services 1,815,071 1,152,821 662,250

Total expenditures 1,815,071 1,152,821 662,250
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (1,493,838) (419,767) 1,074,071

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (1,493,838) $ (419,767) $ 1,074,071
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Neighborhood Stabilization Program Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Intergovernmental $ 1,463,013 $ 37,410 $ (1,425,603)
Interest income - 5,957 5,957
Other 119,733 - (119,733)

Total revenues 1,582,746 43,367 (1,539,379)

Expenditures 
Human services 1,540,079 (42,403) 1,582,482

Total expenditures 1,540,079 (42,403) 1,582,482
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  42,667 85,770 43,103

Transfers out (470,839) (470,838) 1

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (428,172) $ (385,068) $ 43,104
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

National Pollution NPDES Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 105,000 $ 136,265 $ 31,265
Interest income 1,200 4,599 3,399

Total revenues 106,200 140,864 34,664

Expenditures 
Transportation 178,736 166,850 11,886

Total expenditures 178,736 166,850 11,886
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (72,536) (25,986) 46,550

Transfers out (22,877) (22,877) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (95,413) $ (48,863) $ 46,550
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Law Enforcement Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Fines and forfeitures $ 336,425 $ 354,232 $ 17,807
Interest income - 5,714 5,714
Other - 27,294 27,294

Total revenues 336,425 387,240 50,815

Expenditures 
Public safety 326,425 326,424 1

Total expenditures 326,425 326,424 1
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  10,000 60,816 50,816

Transfers out (10,000) (10,000) -

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ - $ 50,816 $ 50,816
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Conservation Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 161,500 $ 73,820 $ (87,680)
Interest income 8,500 30,992 22,492

Total revenues 170,000 104,812 (65,188)

Expenditures 
Culture and recreation 170,000 89,206 80,794

Total expenditures 170,000 89,206 80,794
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  - 15,606 15,606

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ - $ 15,606 $ 15,606
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Solid Waste Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Final
Budgeted 
Amount

Actual
Amount

Variance with
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

Revenues 
Charges for services $ 17,925,274 $ 18,165,475 $ 240,201
Interest income 40,000 100,769 60,769

Total revenues 17,965,274 18,266,244 300,970

Expenditures 
Physical environment 18,024,374 18,072,238 (47,864)

Total expenditures 18,024,374 18,072,238 (47,864)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures  (59,100) 194,006 253,106

Net change in budgetary fund balances  $ (59,100) $ 194,006 $ 253,106
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Retirement Trust Funds

September 30, 2019

Municipal Police
Officers

Other Post
Employment

Benefits

Total
Retirement
Trust Funds

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ - $ 523 $ 523

Fixed investments 5,041,137 - 5,041,137
Corporate stocks 26,348,838 - 26,348,838
Corporate bonds 6,865,762 - 6,865,762
US Government obligations 635,133 - 635,133
Federal agencies 9,490,297 - 9,490,297
Municipal obligations 1,134,136 - 1,134,136
Real estate investments 12,524,756 - 12,524,756
Mutual funds 51,024,798 18,468,918 69,493,716
Accrued investment income 281,057 - 281,057
Prepaid items 1,418 - 1,418

Total assets $ 113,347,332 $ 18,469,441 $ 131,816,773

Liabilities and Net Position 
Accounts payable 196,080 - 196,080

Net Position 
Employee retirement 113,151,252 18,469,441 131,620,693

Total net position 113,151,252 18,469,441 131,620,693
Total liabilities and net position and net position  $ 113,347,332 $ 18,469,441 $ 131,816,773
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Retirement Trust Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

Municipal Police
Officers

Other Post
Employment

Benefits Total

Additions 
Contributions 

City $ 5,282,572 $ 2,848,960 $ 8,131,532
State 1,569,087 - 1,569,087
Employee 1,805,061 - 1,805,061

Total contributions 8,656,720 2,848,960 11,505,680

Investment Income 
Net increase in fair value of investments 1,194,285 992,077 2,186,362
Interest and dividends 2,627,832 - 2,627,832

Total investment income 3,822,117 992,077 4,814,194
Investment expense (269,005) - (269,005)

Total additions 12,209,832 3,841,037 16,050,869

Deductions 
Benefit payments 6,450,253 1,109,845 7,560,098
Administrative costs and charges 222,178 - 222,178
Refunds 197,975 - 197,975

Total deductions 6,870,406 1,109,845 7,980,251
Change in net position 5,339,426 2,731,192 8,070,618
Net position, beginning of year 107,811,826 15,738,249 123,550,075

Net position, end of year $ 113,151,252 $ 18,469,441 $ 131,620,693
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StatisticalÿSectionÿ

ÿ

ThisÿpartÿofÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿStÿLucieÿcomprehensiveÿannualÿfinancialÿreportÿpresentsÿdetailedÿ
informationÿasÿaÿcontextÿforÿunderstandingÿwhatÿtheÿinformationÿinÿtheÿfinancialÿstatements,ÿnoteÿ
disclosures,ÿandÿrequiredÿƐƵƉƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƌǇ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƐĂǇƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚ͘ÿ

ÿ

Contentsÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

ÿ

FinancialÿTrendsÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

dŚĞƐĞ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶ�ƚƌĞŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂĚĞƌ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�
performanceÿandÿwellÿbeingÿhaveÿchangedÿoverÿtime.ÿ

ÿ

RevenueÿCapacityÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

dŚĞƐĞ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂĚĞƌ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ůŽĐĂů�
revenueÿsources,ÿtheÿpropertyÿtax.ÿ

ÿ

DebtÿCapacityÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

TheseÿschedulesÿpresentÿinformationÿtoÿhelpÿƚŚĞ�ƌĞĂĚĞƌ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĨĨŽƌĚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�
ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ĚĞďƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŝƐƐƵĞ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ĚĞďƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘ÿ

ÿ

DemographicÿandÿEconomicÿInformationÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

Theseÿschedulesÿofferÿdemographicÿandÿeconomicÿindicatorsÿtoÿhelpÿtheÿreaderÿunderstandÿtheÿ
ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂĐƚŝǀŝƚŝĞƐ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƉůĂĐĞ͘ÿ

ÿ

OperatingÿInformationÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

Theseÿschedulesÿcontainÿserviceÿandÿinfrastructureÿdataÿtoÿhelpÿtheÿreaderÿunderstandÿhowÿtheÿ
ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛sÿfinancialÿreportÿrelatesÿtoÿtheÿservicesÿtheÿCityÿofÿPortÿStÿLucieÿprovidesÿandÿ
theÿactivitiesÿitÿperforms.ÿ

Sources:ÿUnlessÿotherwiseÿnoted,ÿtheÿinformationÿinÿtheseÿschedulesÿisÿderivedÿfromÿtheÿ
comprehensiveÿannualÿfinancialÿreportsÿforÿtheÿrelevantÿyear.ÿ
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Financialÿ
Trendsÿ

ÿ
ÿ
ÿ
ÿ

Theseÿ schedulesÿ containÿ trendÿ informationÿ toÿ helpÿ theÿ readerÿ
ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůů�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŚĂǀĞ�
changedÿoverÿtime.ÿ
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Governmental activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 371,420,795 $ 352,634,371 $ 322,655,075 $ 281,318,910 $ 255,743,942
Restricted

Debt services 189,334,752 205,921,841 214,708,990 259,381,015 295,775,596
Capital projects 32,114,578 49,029,018 56,562,714 54,426,329 38,043,669
Transportation 19,412,067 - 6,318,018 6,289,563 5,960,239
Protective inspections 15,831,263 13,597,411 10,388,946 9,181,046 6,240,371
Housing assistance 2,197,225 2,616,696 2,778,561 3,177,525 2,532,547
Economic development - 1,992,717 15,030,993 3,000,830 2,981,962
Other purposes 1,405,161 14,239,439 6,262,671 5,363,746 5,608,957

Unrestricted 55,015,466 (2,170,593) (68,213,156) (46,619,467) (47,491,125)
Total governmental activities net position $ 686,731,307 $ 637,860,900 $ 566,492,812 $ 575,519,497 $ 565,396,158
Business-type activities 

Net investment in capital assets $ 246,423,971 $ 225,938,288 $ 233,881,814 $ 235,995,905 $ 242,874,624
Restricted

Debt Service 10,344,970 11,144,892 6,483,080 6,411,390 11,643,043
Capital Projects 27,364,080 33,124,890 21,430,984 18,742,470 13,064,965
Claims 92,234 92,234 92,234 92,234 92,234

Unrestricted 70,528,649 51,124,277 48,442,302 49,680,890 40,384,501
Total business-type activities net position $ 354,753,904 $ 321,424,581 $ 310,330,414 $ 310,922,889 $ 308,059,367
Primary government 

Net investment in capital assets $ 617,844,766 $ 578,572,659 $ 556,536,889 $ 517,314,815 $ 498,618,566
Restricted

Debt services 199,679,722 217,066,733 221,192,070 265,792,405 307,418,639
Capital projects 59,478,658 82,153,908 77,993,698 73,168,799 51,108,634
Transportation 19,412,067 - 6,318,018 6,289,563 5,960,239
Protective inspections 15,831,263 13,597,411 10,388,946 9,181,046 6,240,371
Housing assistance 2,197,225 2,616,696 2,778,561 3,177,525 2,532,547
Economic development - 1,992,717 15,030,993 3,000,830 2,981,962
Other purposes 1,405,161 14,239,439 6,262,671 5,363,746 5,608,957
Claims 92,234 92,234 92,234 92,234 92,234

Unrestricted 125,544,115 48,953,684 (19,770,854) 3,061,423 (7,106,624)
Total governmental activities program revenues $ 1,041,485,211 $ 959,285,481 $ 876,823,226 $ 886,442,386 $ 873,455,525

NOTE: Starting with the 2015 CAFR, all prior years Net Investment In Capital Assets lines have been adjusted to eliminate the
inclusion of accreted interest.
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 255,304,871 $ 230,882,015 $ 248,106,726 $ 304,237,769 $ 304,349,119

305,565,798 331,927,696 340,553,170 33,228,306 32,943,811
13,598,379 18,780,498 21,329,842 15,944,067 69,068,167

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

43,038,297 40,886,609 28,694,820 - -
21,690,787 20,239,187 18,344,592 5,877,718 (39,034,499)

$ 639,198,132 $ 642,716,005 $ 657,029,150 $ 359,287,860 $ 367,326,598

$ 253,807,847 $ 225,791,293 $ 280,156,374 $ 278,007,614 $ 256,903,728

1,503,252 16,321,743 14,426,218 30,780,127 30,343,954
16,831,540 9,522,806 18,959,566 42,265,855 59,409,352

92,234 92,234 92,234 92,105 91,989
36,919,201 62,858,499 22,704,138 5,121,249 19,329,541

$ 309,154,074 $ 314,586,575 $ 336,338,530 $ 356,266,950 $ 366,078,564

$ 509,112,718 $ 456,673,308 $ 528,263,100 $ 582,245,383 $ 561,252,847

307,069,050 348,249,439 354,979,388 64,008,433 63,287,765
30,429,919 28,303,304 40,289,408 58,209,922 128,477,519

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

43,038,297 40,886,609 28,694,820 - -
92,234 92,234 92,234 92,105 91,989

58,609,988 83,097,686 41,048,730 10,998,967 (19,704,958)
$ 948,352,206 $ 957,302,580 $ 993,367,680 $ 715,554,810 $ 733,405,162
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Expenditures 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 21,901,294 $ 19,548,119 $ 19,262,405 $ 16,729,323 $ 13,966,787
Public safety 54,881,911 53,318,868 50,403,218 47,096,752 43,376,647
Physical environment 18,792,667 18,941,202 40,848,525 18,128,226 30,514,196
Transportation 25,974,214 33,658,002 32,961,563 37,055,390 29,347,883
Economic environment 9,525,823 8,409,053 14,516,362 12,273,393 66,827,661
Human services 3,962,662 1,248,190 1,156,793 1,085,086 1,182,502
Culture and recreation 18,849,670 17,176,893 14,123,356 12,769,172 11,605,930
Debt service - interest 16,552,602 12,239,304 13,575,313 20,425,051 21,433,349

Total governmental activities 170,440,843 164,539,631 186,847,535 165,562,393 218,254,955
Business-type activities 

Utility system 81,877,917 87,773,899 79,676,615 83,379,982 83,138,529
Stormwater utility 22,770,841 22,370,166 22,313,572 20,161,789 20,615,230
Golf course 1,778,394 1,891,771 1,826,357 1,832,693 1,822,513

Total business-type activities 106,427,152 112,035,836 103,816,544 105,374,464 105,576,272
Total primary government expenditures $ 276,867,995 $ 276,575,467 $ 290,664,079 $ 270,936,857 $ 323,831,227
Program revenues 
Governmental activities 

Charges for services 
General government $ 2,734,335 $ 3,775,680 $ 2,274,296 $ 1,884,681 $ 1,732,289
Public safety 13,010,530 12,412,115 10,192,150 9,918,761 7,980,414
Physical environment 30,806,604 30,632,602 30,624,284 35,593,498 36,877,466
Transportation 3,960,542 4,474,742 3,014,814 4,159,559 4,196,944
Economic enviroment 137,750 209,807 3,484,472 3,505,338 1,626,405
Human services 51,744 51,135 48,870 61,886 78,460
Culture and recreation 4,518,877 4,292,661 3,148,521 3,433,301 3,296,044

Operating grants and contributions 4,957,356 4,251,681 4,182,472 3,786,495 3,451,813
Capital grants, contributions and restricted int 20,618,218 22,999,428 18,981,881 9,851,341 11,135,140

Total governmental activities program revenues 80,795,956 83,099,851 75,951,760 72,194,860 70,374,975
Business-type activities 

Charges for services 
Utility system 77,109,074 72,767,625 70,751,728 69,401,985 66,615,111
Stormwater utility 23,675,557 23,422,661 22,311,000 21,241,907 20,721,062
Golf course 1,527,999 1,525,214 1,592,256 1,614,495 1,711,940

Operating grants and contributions 800,037 13,098 - 15,000 43,674
Capital grants, contributions and restricted int 36,002,447 24,893,487 15,820,783 13,290,354 10,215,344

Total business-type activities program revenues 139,115,114 122,622,085 110,475,767 105,563,741 99,307,131
Total primary government program revenues $ 219,911,070 $ 205,721,936 $ 186,427,527 $ 177,758,601 $ 169,682,106
Net (expenditure)/revenue 
Governmental activities $ (89,644,887) $ (81,439,779) $(110,895,775) $ (93,367,533) $(147,879,980)
Business-type activities 32,687,962 10,586,249 6,659,223 189,277 (6,269,141)
Total primary government net expenditure $ (56,956,925) $ (70,853,530) $(104,236,552) $ (93,178,256) $(154,149,121)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 13,424,100 $ 19,644,896 $ 15,739,679 $ 13,219,799 $ 11,206,338
41,287,967 36,893,883 36,082,798 37,291,748 40,257,753

1,030,775 2,888,717 1,873,234 2,219,525 3,242,320
29,324,982 30,033,671 29,637,387 37,504,058 32,711,192

6,903,010 12,577,499 15,446,646 9,607,066 20,236,156
1,296,439 1,271,993 1,220,258 1,380,647 1,647,555

10,770,040 10,812,414 12,578,781 10,305,797 10,505,959
22,072,391 23,556,204 24,817,890 27,331,315 26,867,419

126,109,704 137,679,277 137,396,673 138,859,955 146,674,692

83,622,536 85,423,145 82,200,546 83,213,376 85,545,020
19,840,640 19,660,501 20,575,005 19,788,150 17,691,171

1,768,281 1,787,208 1,718,028 1,914,059 1,871,671
105,231,457 106,870,854 104,493,579 104,915,585 105,107,862

$ 231,341,161 $ 244,550,131 $ 241,890,252 $ 243,775,540 $ 251,782,554

$ 1,924,496 $ 6,285,870 $ 3,778,020 $ 3,283,174 $ 3,818,952
7,695,188 2,354,681 1,288,824 777,330 1,106,384

17,800,074 19,712,162 3,534,670 16,391,563 13,230,372
1,951,179 1,812,992 1,580,211 1,831,410 1,443,788

53,834 1,153,777 3,082,295 5,344 280,580
100,829 109,691 106,485 99,098 115,435

2,097,655 2,070,648 1,941,883 1,748,878 1,619,362
2,864,469 3,742,609 5,087,105 5,972,276 17,251,452
2,501,351 1,652,582 147,960 131,533 6,966,976

36,989,075 38,895,012 20,547,453 30,240,606 45,833,301

64,789,627 61,181,993 58,613,804 56,115,457 52,535,104
20,318,181 20,088,576 19,335,600 19,223,254 19,019,552

1,471,527 1,480,424 1,454,957 1,564,828 1,462,364
3,708,476 738,622 1,560,253 819,547 534,784
6,277,976 3,778,130 4,315,875 13,280,071 12,967,911

96,565,787 87,267,745 85,280,489 91,003,157 86,519,715
$ 133,554,862 $ 126,162,757 $ 105,827,942 $ 121,243,763 $ 132,353,016

$ (89,120,629) $ (98,784,265) $(103,003,062) $(108,619,349) $(100,841,391)
(8,665,670) (19,603,109) (19,213,090) (13,912,428) (18,588,147)

$ (97,786,299) $(118,387,374) $(122,216,152) $(122,531,777) $(119,429,538)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position 
Governmental activities: 

Taxes 
Property taxes $ 60,801,707 $ 56,102,941 $ 51,158,614 $ 47,389,333 $ 38,247,228
Franchise and utility taxes 24,320,736 22,978,502 22,223,228 21,339,457 21,054,005
Communications service tax 4,778,502 4,967,361 4,975,531 5,129,850 5,378,563
Local business tax 2,030,504 2,010,299 1,910,943 1,851,734 1,666,789
Sales tax 14,032,808 8,096,469 7,368,151 6,817,675 6,483,062
State revenue sharing - unrestricted 6,040,623 5,684,964 5,389,689 4,837,191 4,586,750
Local option gas tax 10,544,228 10,222,601 9,820,740 9,684,589 9,009,096
Insurance premium tax 1,569,087 1,439,785 1,296,741 1,247,468 1,082,037
Interest 4,557,240 1,276,096 1,546,657 977,119 1,136,378
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - - (455,894)
Miscellaneous 6,346,273 39,030,821 17,052,072 5,395,106 4,419,845
Special items - - - - -
Transfers 3,493,586 (1,845,056) (1,521,451) (1,178,650) (3,617,260)

Total governmental activities 138,515,294 149,964,783 121,220,915 103,490,872 88,990,599
Business-type activities 

Franchise and utility taxes - - - - -
Interest 3,760,370 1,660,439 1,827,095 1,495,595 1,557,174
Swap - - - - -
Gain on sale of capital assets - - - - -
Miscellaneous 374,577 173,328 - - -
Transfers (3,493,586) 1,845,056 1,521,451 1,178,650 3,617,260

Total business-type activities 641,361 3,678,823 3,348,546 2,674,245 5,174,434
Total primary government $ 139,156,655 $ 153,643,606 $ 124,569,461 $ 106,165,117 $ 94,165,033
Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities $ 48,870,407 $ 68,525,004 $ 10,325,140 $ 10,123,339 $ (58,889,381)
Business-type activities 33,329,323 14,265,072 10,007,769 2,863,522 (1,094,707)
Total primary government $ 82,199,730 $ 82,790,076 $ 20,332,909 $ 12,986,861 $ (59,984,088)
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 36,339,440 $ 35,744,398 $ 36,586,795 $ 37,123,864 $ 37,220,611
20,287,539 18,407,514 18,175,496 17,252,881 13,451,549

5,407,176 5,972,194 6,004,344 5,997,244 6,152,086
1,571,717 1,518,483 1,498,031 1,560,385 1,514,507
6,039,906 5,510,580 5,245,628 4,928,954 4,729,330
4,003,809 3,493,945 2,763,213 2,485,700 2,296,514
8,471,573 7,864,178 7,820,761 7,614,567 7,602,956
1,026,902 972,481 883,809 826,267 885,563

561,573 722,180 19,352,363 20,967,944 12,689,391
- (126,605) 213,323 374,823 209,549

3,770,030 10,545,742 5,439,928 1,683,820 1,278,550
- (9,920,411) - - -

(1,876,909) 3,766,441 (4,162,963) (235,878) 8,332,288
85,602,756 84,471,120 99,820,728 100,580,571 96,362,894

- - 162,570 163,729 -
1,356,260 1,617,595 2,196,128 2,518,139 3,422,215

- - - - 10,000
- - (882,568) 63,211 377,592
- - 1,157,549 1,119,857 1,471,226

1,876,909 (3,766,441) 4,162,963 235,878 (8,332,288)
3,233,169 (2,148,846) 6,796,642 4,100,814 (3,051,255)

$ 88,835,925 $ 82,322,274 $ 106,617,370 $ 104,681,385 $ 93,311,639

$ (3,517,873) $ (14,313,145) $ (3,182,334) $ (8,038,778) $ (4,478,497)
(5,432,501) (21,751,955) (12,416,448) (9,811,614) (21,639,402)

$ (8,950,374) $ (36,065,100) $ (15,598,782) $ (17,850,392) $ (26,117,899)

160



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

General Fund 
Nonspendable $ 97,143 $ 151,128 $ 218,834 $ 191,445 $ 178,607
Committed 2,806,480 1,479,894 2,519,112 187,401 58,312
Assigned - - 173,907 117,051 84,721
Unassigned 31,655,831 28,146,763 18,687,358 29,305,353 25,458,921

Total general fund $ 34,559,454 $ 29,777,785 $ 21,599,211 $ 29,801,250 $ 25,780,561
All Other Governmental Funds 

Nonspendable $ 31,526,857 $ 31,584,133 $ 14,206 $ 14,345 $ 11,323
Restricted 88,139,539 82,193,183 76,476,749 72,910,220 78,348,839
Committed 25,980,290 19,178,740 11,935,010 8,909,718 6,821,412
Assigned - - 14,953,893 17,330,451 12,071,781
Unassigned - (932) - (2,730) (5,127)

Total all other governmental funds 145,646,686 132,955,124 103,379,858 99,162,004 97,248,228
Total governmental funds $ 180,206,140 $ 162,732,909 $ 124,979,069 $ 128,963,254 $ 123,028,789
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 166,999 $ 885,141 $ 835,559 $ 826,414 $ 127,457
42,146 41,707 9,354 29,307 12,707

4,467,046 4,262,951 - 11,120,370 9,641,078
18,187,927 19,075,348 18,613,202 3,084,366 2,792,600

$ 22,864,118 $ 24,265,147 $ 19,458,115 $ 15,060,457 $ 12,573,842

$ 13,077 $ 121,566 $ 8,606,852 $ 175,419 $ 23,129
76,452,719 59,512,472 4,760,157 12,558,416 11,559,530

5,842,013 7,332,397 2,784,242 6,171,180 9,157,747
11,748,970 8,570,435 62,840,365 70,483,809 113,688,325

- (1,285,276) (117,421) (1,052,783) (945,600)
94,056,779 74,251,594 78,874,195 88,336,041 133,483,131

$ 116,920,897 $ 98,516,741 $ 98,332,310 $ 103,396,498 $ 146,056,973
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Revenues 
Taxes $ 80,474,997 $ 75,094,507 $ 69,728,447 $ 65,730,532 $ 56,092,766
Licenses and permits 20,909,047 20,169,455 16,634,939 16,576,124 14,866,090
Intergovernmental 58,264,302 55,965,001 47,107,772 38,874,481 27,552,696
Charges for services 40,152,181 45,210,292 52,598,248 54,419,081 49,109,473
Human services fees - 51,135 48,870 61,886 78,460
Fines and forfeitures 1,789,251 1,321,259 1,401,918 2,275,034 2,400,496
Interest on Investments 4,504,288 1,276,096 1,546,657 970,966 1,136,378
Interest on special assessments - 4,592 - 6,153 -
Impact fees 13,207,429 12,377,309 8,323,840 6,955,207 5,140,466
Developers Contributions - 81,724 124,126 76,828 92,030
Rents - - - - -
Other 6,187,995 2,761,931 3,044,655 4,153,471 2,890,988

Total revenues 225,489,490 214,313,301 200,559,472 190,099,763 159,359,843
Expenditures 
Current 

General government 21,470,489 13,966,732 16,130,414 10,911,222 10,179,367
Public safety 57,186,085 54,905,623 55,709,096 45,564,571 43,019,715
Physical environment 18,709,214 18,373,558 18,358,971 18,838,042 17,692,425
Transportation 49,931,569 57,251,395 40,514,133 25,343,943 28,059,537
Economic environment 8,230,255 9,859,368 14,689,586 12,216,119 5,911,487
Human services 3,990,343 1,674,827 1,497,279 1,204,125 1,092,235
Culture and recreation 18,232,071 21,375,515 15,537,534 14,331,630 15,615,951
Capital Outlay - - - - -
Intangibles - - - - -
Principal 18,871,768 21,486,768 30,285,000 33,105,000 23,895,000
Interest 17,363,107 13,601,496 14,317,617 20,586,274 21,938,411

Total expenditures 213,984,901 212,495,282 207,039,630 182,100,926 167,404,128
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)

expenditures 11,504,589 1,818,019 (6,480,158) 7,998,837 (8,044,285)
Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfer In 27,728,204 9,839,084 11,273,555 13,816,227 7,234,069
Transfer Out (24,170,116) (11,684,140) (12,794,496) (15,994,367) (10,593,853)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 2,005,695 1,886,805 1,800,000 6,356,406 17,730,108
Capital Leases - - 1,284,187 - -
Issuance of Debt 54,360,024 - 90,295,000 165,155,000 -
Premium on Issuance of Debt - - 6,202,434 8,678,986 -
Discount on Issuance of Debt - - - - -
Credit Enhancement Fee - - - - -
Inventory Contribution - 31,766,800 - - -
Payments to Escrow Agent (53,955,165) - (95,564,707) (180,076,624) (218,147)

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,968,642 31,808,549 2,495,973 (2,064,372) 14,152,177
Net change in fund balances $ 17,473,231 $ 33,626,568 $ (3,984,185) $ 5,934,465 $ 6,107,892

Debt services as a percentage of non-capital
expenditures %21.09 %22.00 %25.60 %35.50 %33.50
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 53,676,014 $ 52,554,602 $ 52,664,169 $ 52,516,922 $ 48,481,802
13,498,879 12,004,191 11,857,491 11,022,562 11,452,024
25,013,772 23,815,605 24,842,507 26,608,782 32,424,409
32,573,400 33,852,704 17,463,400 15,917,455 13,282,633

100,829 109,691 106,485 99,098 115,435
2,974,283 2,107,086 1,298,268 756,683 1,121,170

561,573 722,180 1,999,832 2,387,683 3,884,779
- - 17,352,531 18,257,389 8,462,472

4,048,056 3,779,478 3,070,948 2,553,496 3,170,986
53,388 124,618 237,778 198,230 515,417

- 9,000 2,739,707 - -
2,324,218 4,793,243 1,788,598 2,971,833 2,779,960

134,824,412 133,872,398 135,421,714 133,290,133 125,691,087

9,736,915 15,988,836 14,061,451 12,173,872 12,201,341
41,849,736 36,101,367 34,889,571 34,743,405 39,380,020

422,095 1,406,047 1,226,884 2,582,236 1,409,355
19,756,039 15,641,435 16,621,657 12,774,026 11,899,324

4,692,918 9,528,869 9,259,342 8,989,001 17,129,859
1,298,293 1,149,142 1,226,221 1,297,163 1,610,095

16,186,300 10,676,942 9,954,625 9,228,267 9,662,874
- - - 41,935,095 43,983,462
- - - 723,493 14,850

37,030,000 28,665,000 27,710,000 25,380,000 23,664,213
22,164,463 23,575,319 26,117,519 27,331,315 26,867,419

153,136,759 142,732,957 141,067,270 177,157,873 187,822,812

(18,312,347) (8,860,559) (5,645,556) (43,867,740) (62,131,725)

14,792,189 16,833,891 8,748,742 27,405,304 63,544,144
(16,669,098) (13,071,350) (12,911,705) (27,641,182) (55,211,856)

2,726,570 5,051,157 - - -
- - - - -

116,701,922 15,124,937 18,509,331 31,575,000 39,900,000
- - - - -
- - - (176,857) (678,589)
- - - - 5,000,000
- - - - -

(80,835,080) (14,893,645) (13,765,000) (29,955,000) -
36,716,503 9,044,990 581,368 1,207,265 52,553,699

$ 18,404,156 $ 184,431 $ (5,064,188) $ (42,660,475) $ (9,578,026)

%43.40 %38.70 %40.00 %36.80 %34.30
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Tax
Roll Real Personal Centrally Combined(1) Taxableÿ Operating
Year Property Property Assessed Exemptions Value Millage

2009 9,945,285,528 658,937,776 406,311 2,769,978,059 7,834,651,556 4.6866

2010 8,787,692,591 645,199,358 397,988 2,689,788,860 6,743,501,077 5.4723

2011 8,495,592,739 631,827,590 410,912 2,674,949,192 6,452,882,049 5.7289

2012 8,366,988,790 632,742,480 329,021 2,673,400,190 6,326,660,101 5.6289

2013 8,489,832,236 627,492,684 404,336 2,705,162,954 6,412,566,302 5.6289

2014 8,929,641,647 638,864,682 478,743 2,808,893,833 6,760,091,239 5.6289

2015 9,465,555,527 634,834,357 548,029 2,892,728,992 7,208,208,921 6.6289

2016 10,280,445,735 653,064,373 607,353 3,017,622,372 7,916,495,089 6.5000

2017 11,255,095,456 686,254,310 640,823 3,148,250,073 8,793,740,516 6.4000

2018 12,402,566,219 965,229,221 645,964 3,676,944,718 9,691,496,686 6.3000

(1)ÿTheÿCombinedÿExemptionsÿconsistsÿof:ÿÿa)ÿRenewableÿEnergyÿSources,ÿÿb)ÿGovernmental,ÿ
ÿÿÿÿc)ÿWidowsÿ&ÿWidowers,ÿd)ÿDisability,ÿÿe)ÿInstitutional,ÿÿf)ÿHomesteadÿ ÿregularÿandÿadditional,ÿ
ÿÿÿÿg)ÿLOLA,ÿh)ÿEconomicÿDevelopment,ÿandÿi)ÿTangibleÿPersonalÿPropertyÿExtentions.

SOURCE:ÿÿSt.ÿLucieÿCountyÿPropertyÿAppraiser.

NOTE:ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿTaxÿRollÿYearÿisÿJanuaryÿ1ÿtoÿDecemberÿ31.
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿCity'sÿFiscalÿYearÿisÿOctoberÿ1ÿtoÿSeptemberÿ30.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

OTHER
ST.ÿLUCIEÿCOUNTY SCHOOLS AGENCIES

TAX Debt Total Debt Total Capital Total TOTAL
ROLL Operating Service City Operating Service County Operating Improv. Schools Operating City Wide
YEAR ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ ÿMillageÿ

2009 3.6866 1.0000 4.6866 6.6833 0.0613 6.7446 6.4760 1.5000 7.9760 3.4382 22.8454

2010 4.3098 1.1625 5.4723 7.4024 0.0613 7.4637 6.6770 1.5000 8.1770 3.7221 24.8351

2011 4.5096 1.2193 5.7289 7.4538 0.0154 7.4692 6.3780 1.5000 7.8780 3.7005 24.7766

2012 4.4096 1.2193 5.6289 7.4538 0.0154 7.4692 6.2710 1.5000 7.7710 3.6931 24.5622

2013 4.4096 1.2193 5.6289 7.6567 0.0154 7.6721 5.7570 1.5000 7.2570 4.0252 24.5832

2014 4.4096 1.2193 5.6289 7.6567 0.0154 7.6721 5.7410 1.5000 7.2410 3.9877 24.5297

2015 5.4096 1.2193 6.6289 7.9967 0.0154 8.0121 5.7830 1.5000 7.2830 3.9561 25.8801

2016 5.2807 1.2193 6.5000 7.9661 0.0000 7.9661 5.4270 1.5000 6.9270 3.9317 25.3248

2017 5.1807 1.2193 6.4000 8.1361 0.0000 8.1361 5.0740 1.5000 6.5740 3.9110 25.0211

2018 5.0807 1.2193 6.3000 8.1361 0.0000 8.1361 4.8350 1.5000 6.3350 3.8946 24.6657

SOURCE: TypicalÿTaxÿBillÿ ÿSt.ÿLucieÿCountyÿTaxÿCollector.

NOTES: Rateÿbasedÿonÿperÿ$1,000ÿofÿtaxableÿpropertyÿvalue.

TaxÿRollÿYearÿisÿJanuaryÿ1ÿtoÿDecemberÿ31.ÿ
Municipality'sÿFiscalÿYearÿisÿOctoberÿ1ÿtoÿSeptemberÿ30.

CITYÿofÿPORTÿST.ÿÿLUCIE
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

Percentageÿof Percentageÿof
Totalÿ TotalÿTaxable Totalÿ TotalÿTaxable

Taxableÿ Taxableÿ Taxableÿ Taxable
Valueÿ(1) Rank Value Valueÿ(1) Rank Value

FloridaÿPowerÿ&ÿLightÿCoÿ 160,912,556$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 1 1.66% 68,270,990$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 3 0.65%
Wal MartÿSamsÿClub 73,812,552 2 0.76% 84,519,725 2 0.80%
KRGÿPortÿStÿLucieÿLandingÿLLC 55,561,800 3 0.57%
StÿLucieÿWestÿ2016ÿLLC 50,119,900 4 0.52%
HCA 43,075,490 5 0.44%
BendersonÿDevelopmentÿCoÿIncÿ 41,359,600 6 0.43% 0.00%
SandpiperÿResortÿPropÿIncÿSandpiperÿInc 37,027,400 7 0.38% 0.00%
ComcastÿofÿFL/GAÿLLC 26,044,685 8 0.27%
FloridaÿGasÿTransmissionÿCoÿLLCÿ 24,442,845 9 0.25%
WynneÿBuildingÿCorp 22,308,500 10 0.23%
Ginn LaÿStÿLucieÿLtdÿLLLP 92,767,200 1 0.88%
StÿLucieÿLandÿLtd 52,240,900 4 0.50%
HCAÿ&ÿStÿLucieÿMedicalÿCenter 43,783,905 5 0.42%
SouthernÿBellÿTelÿandÿTel 40,784,327 6 0.39%
SandpiperÿResortÿPropÿInc 39,735,497 7 0.38%
MintoÿTownparkÿLLC 37,432,625 8 0.35%
LevittÿandÿSonsÿatÿTraditionÿ 36,393,100 9 0.35%
StuartÿPropertyÿHoldingsÿLtd 34,784,900 10 0.33%

ÿTaxableÿValueÿofÿ10ÿLargestÿTaxpayers 534,665,328ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5.52% 530,713,169ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 5.03%

ÿÿTaxableÿValueÿofÿOtherÿTaxpayers 9,156,831,358 94.48% 10,015,888,837 94.97%

ÿÿÿTaxableÿValueÿofÿAllÿTaxpayers 9,691,496,686.00$ÿÿÿ 100% 10,546,602,006.00$ÿÿÿÿ 100%

ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ(1)ÿÿIncludesÿbothÿRealÿandÿPersonalÿProperty

NOTE:ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿTaxÿRollÿYearÿisÿJanuaryÿ1ÿtoÿDecemberÿ31.

SOURCES:ÿÿSt.ÿLucieÿCountyÿPropertyÿAppraiser,ÿÿSt.ÿLucieÿCountyÿTaxÿCollector
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿandÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿGISÿDepartment

2018ÿTaxÿRoll 2008ÿTaxÿRoll
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Special Assessment Disctricts
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Prepayments,
Special Special Delinquent PartialÿPayments

Fiscal Assessments Assessments Payments andÿPayoffs
ÿÿYearÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿBilledÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿCollectedÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿCollectedÿÿ ÿÿÿCollectedÿ(1)ÿÿÿ

2009 10 17,818,604.8$ÿÿÿÿ 16,873,136.6$ÿÿÿÿ 129,031.3$ÿÿÿÿÿ 1,226,489.8$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2010 11 (1) 31,619,450.0$ÿÿÿÿ 29,216,273.7$ÿÿÿÿ (23,730.1)$ÿÿÿÿÿÿ 719,692.8$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2011 12 31,511,275.0$ÿÿÿÿ 28,553,832.0$ÿÿÿÿ 636,766.0$ÿÿÿÿÿ 478,509.0$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2012 13 31,426,747.0$ÿÿÿÿ 28,593,227.0$ÿÿÿÿ 229,240.0$ÿÿÿÿÿ 575,142.0$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2013 14 31,305,097.9$ÿÿÿÿ 28,299,745.7$ÿÿÿÿ 389,096.0$ÿÿÿÿÿ 450,273.4$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2014 15 30,822,446.3$ÿÿÿÿ 27,474,035.4$ÿÿÿÿ 113,393.5$ÿÿÿÿÿ 221,152.7$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2015 16 (2) 30,741,967.0$ÿÿÿÿ 27,577,254.7$ÿÿÿÿ 205,733.2$ÿÿÿÿÿ 4,990,993.9$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2016 17 (3) 24,421,994.3$ÿÿÿÿ 21,532,444.2$ÿÿÿÿ 229,102.6$ÿÿÿÿÿ 9,127,977.1$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2017 18 22,956,489.0$ÿÿÿÿ 20,434,364.0$ÿÿÿÿ 949,545.0$ÿÿÿÿÿ 685,320.0$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

2018 19 (4) 18,570,020.6$ÿÿÿÿ 15,895,254.2$ÿÿÿÿ 556,102.4$ÿÿÿÿÿ 143,103.2$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

ÿTenÿYearÿTotals 271,194,091.9$ÿÿ 244,449,567.6$ÿÿ 3,414,279.9$ÿÿ 18,618,653.8$ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

(1)ÿTheÿnegativeÿdelinquentÿcollectionsÿisÿdueÿtoÿaÿ2006ÿtaxÿcertificateÿrefund.
(2)ÿTheÿincreaseÿinÿtheÿpayoffÿforÿ15/16ÿisÿdueÿtoÿaÿpayoffÿinÿtheÿamountÿofÿ$4,615,952ÿforÿTesoroÿSAD
(3)ÿTheÿdecreaseÿinÿtheÿannualÿbillingÿforÿ16/17ÿisÿdueÿtoÿtheÿSWÿAnnexationÿDistrictÿ#1ÿbondÿrefundingÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿwhichÿdecreasedÿtheÿannualÿbillingÿbyÿ$4.2ÿmillion.ÿAdditionally,ÿtheÿnumberÿofÿaccountsÿbilledÿinÿ16/17
ÿÿÿÿÿreducedÿdueÿtoÿtheÿ$4.9ÿmillionÿpayoffÿfiscalÿyearÿ2016.
(4)ÿTheÿdecreaseÿofÿÿ$4.3ÿmillionÿinÿtheÿannualÿbillingÿforÿ18/19ÿisÿdueÿtoÿtheÿfinalÿbillingÿyearÿofÿÿUSAÿ3&ÿ4ÿSADÿ
ÿÿÿÿofÿ$4.1millionÿandÿprincipalÿpayoffsÿinÿotherÿSAD's.ÿ

Theÿaboveÿdataÿisÿcombinedÿforÿfourteenÿ(14)ÿexistingÿassessmentÿdistricts.
Theÿ2013ÿTaxÿRollÿwasÿtheÿfinalÿyearÿofÿbillingÿforÿSADÿ1,ÿPhaseÿ1ÿSADÿ.ÿ
Theÿ2015ÿTaxÿRollÿwasÿtheÿfinalÿyearÿofÿbillingÿforÿSADÿ1,ÿPhaseÿIIÿSAD
Theÿ2017ÿTaxÿRollÿwasÿtheÿfinalÿyearÿofÿbillingÿforÿUSAÿ3ÿ&4ÿSAD
Sources: CityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿFinanceÿDepartment

St.ÿLucieÿCountyÿTaxÿCollector
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Years

Delinquent Subsequent
Tax Total Current Percent Tax Year

Fiscal Roll Tax Tax ofÿLevy Collections Collections Percent
Year Year Levy Collectionsÿ(1) Collected (perÿCollectionÿYear) (perÿLevyÿYear) Amount ofÿLevyÿ(2)

09 10 2009 36,841,021ÿÿÿÿÿ 35,107,786ÿÿÿÿÿ 95.3% 304,047ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 301,486ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 35,409,273$ÿÿÿ 96.1%

10 11 2010 37,003,023ÿÿÿÿÿ 35,188,029ÿÿÿÿÿ 95.1% 310,838ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 125,078ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 35,313,107$ÿÿÿ 95.4%

11 12 2011 37,036,486ÿÿÿÿÿ 35,064,715ÿÿÿÿÿ 94.7% 137,607ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 426,062ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 35,490,777$ÿÿÿ 95.8%

12 13 2012 35,683,010ÿÿÿÿÿ 34,057,127ÿÿÿÿÿ 95.4% 325,727ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 158,625ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 34,215,752$ÿÿÿ 95.9%

13 14 2013 36,157,559ÿÿÿÿÿ 34,601,262ÿÿÿÿÿ 95.7% 257,734ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 64,583ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 34,665,845$ÿÿÿ 95.9%

14 15 2014 38,064,819ÿÿÿÿÿ 36,657,166ÿÿÿÿÿ 96.3% 114,893ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 35,610ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 36,692,777$ÿÿÿ 96.4%

15 16 2015 47,796,206ÿÿÿÿÿ 45,796,707ÿÿÿÿÿ 95.8% 68,453ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 50,151ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 45,846,858$ÿÿÿ 95.9%

16 17 2016 51,463,782ÿÿÿÿÿ 49,449,737ÿÿÿÿÿ 96.1% 59,540ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 12,403ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ 49,462,141$ÿÿÿ 96.1%

17 18 2017 56,293,719ÿÿÿÿÿ 54,076,777ÿÿÿÿÿ 96.1% 115,890ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ n/a 54,076,777$ÿÿÿ 96.1%

18 19 2018 61,070,877ÿÿÿÿÿ 58,686,181ÿÿÿÿÿ 96.1% 50,735ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ n/a 58,686,181$ÿÿÿ 96.1%

ÿÿÿÿÿÿ(1)ÿÿCurrentÿTaxÿCollectionsÿpresentedÿhereinÿareÿthroughÿtheÿ
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿCountyÿTaxÿCollector'sÿRecapitulationÿdateÿofÿJuneÿ30th.
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿIncludesÿOperatingÿandÿDebtÿServiceÿstartingÿwithÿtheÿ2005ÿTaxÿRollÿYear.
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ TaxÿRollÿYearÿisÿJanuaryÿ1stÿÿtoÿÿDecemberÿ31st.
ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ Municipality'sÿFiscalÿYearÿisÿOctoberÿ1stÿÿtoÿÿSeptemberÿ30th.

ÿÿÿÿÿÿ(2)ÿÿÿDoesÿnotÿincludeÿDelinquentÿTaxÿCollectionsÿperÿCollectionÿYearÿcolumn.

SOURCE:ÿÿ St.ÿLucieÿCountyÿTaxÿCollectorÿRecords.

Total
CollectionsÿtoÿDateÿ(2)
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Year
General

Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds
Certificate of
Participation

Special
Assessment

District
Tax Increment

Financing Capital Leases

2010 $ 88,025,000 $ 75,820,000 $ 47,180,000 $ 283,400,000 $ 55,145,000 $ -
164,603

2011 87,075,000 72,205,000 45,475,000 267,230,000 53,825,000 -
166,041

2012 85,745,000 66,190,000 43,705,000 250,375,000 52,235,000 -
167,252

2013 86,097,580 61,000,250 41,999,842 229,859,857 51,356,944 -
167,914

2014 122,334,085 54,165,601 37,937,997 209,101,113 49,143,626 -
169,888

2015 119,026,232 49,755,832 35,893,855 195,991,443 46,839,299 -
174,132

2016 115,467,218 34,383,460 32,528,521 188,127,426 44,985,417 -
178,091

2017 110,710,552 86,802,381 - 148,651,083 41,737,854 1,284,187
181,284

2018 106,473,315 80,874,887 - 137,873,667 38,150,862 1,037,419
185,843

2019 101,459,334 128,282,406 - 131,258,071 34,123,708 780,683
191,903

2019 Governmental Total $ 395,933,152

NOTE:  Premiums, discounts, and accreted interest are included in the debt amounts above starting Fiscal Year 2013.

2019 at PAR 97,890,000 124,365,000 - 129,950,000 30,775,000 780,683
(no prem/disc) 2,019 Governmental Total $ 383,760,683

(1) See the Demographic and Economic Statistics worksheet in the Demographic and Economic section of the Statistical
Section for Personal Income detail. Prior year detail revised each year by the federal BEA. 
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Business-type Activities

Stormwater Bonds
Utility Revenue

Bonds
Utility

Customers

Utility Debt only
Per Utility
Customer

Total Debt
Citywide

Total Debt Per
Capita

(1) Total Debt
Per Total

Personal Income

$ 47,875,000 $ 444,871,195 $ 69,884 $ 6,366 $ 1,042,316,195 $ 6,332 %6.31

47,600,000 441,645,505 70,164 6,294 1,015,055,505 6,113 %5.71

47,220,000 435,762,047 70,432 6,187 981,232,047 5,867 %5.08

47,471,004 439,988,545 70,905 6,205 957,774,022 5,727 %5.02

46,437,195 427,078,731 71,335 5,987 946,198,348 5,570 %4.56

45,387,349 413,937,471 71,964 5,752 906,831,481 5,208 %4.09

44,324,544 400,160,674 73,194 5,467 859,977,260 4,829 %3.78

43,238,902 386,817,955 74,758 5,174 819,242,914 4,519 %3.34

42,127,621 373,307,516 76,784 4,862 779,845,287 4,196 %2.98

40,985,131 357,784,949 79,762 4,486 794,703,232 4,141

Enterprise Total $ 398,770,080

40,930,000 331,180,000 79,762 4,152 755,870,683 3,939

Enterprise Total $ 372,110,000
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Year Population Taxable Value
General

Obligation

G. O.
Percentage of
Taxable Value

General
Obligation Debt

Per Capita

Total Voter
Approved
General

Obligation Debt

Total General
Obligation

Issued

Remaining
Approved

General Debt

2010 164,603 6,743,501,077 88,025,000 %1.31 535 165,000,000 93,830,000 71,170,000
2011 166,041 6,452,882,049 87,075,000 %1.35 524 165,000,000 93,830,000 71,170,000
2012 167,252 6,326,660,101 87,745,000 %1.39 525 165,000,000 93,830,000 71,170,000
2013 167,914 6,412,566,302 86,097,580 %1.34 513 165,000,000 93,830,000 71,170,000
2014 169,888 6,760,091,239 122,334,085 %1.81 720 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000
2015 174,132 7,208,208,921 119,026,232 %1.65 684 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000
2016 178,091 7,916,495,089 115,467,218 %1.46 648 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000
2017 181,284 8,793,740,516 110,710,552 %1.26 611 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000
2018 185,843 9,691,496,686 106,473,315 %1.10 573 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000
2019 191,903 10,804,731,408 101,459,334 %0.94 529 165,000,000 126,730,000 38,270,000

2019 G.O. Debt
at PAR 97,890,000 %0.91 510

SOURCES: Population figures are from the Florida Office of Economic and Demographic Research. Taxable values are from St.
Lucie County. 

NOTE: A June 2005 voter referendum was approved at 89% for the issuance of general obligation bonds, not to exceed
$165,000,000 for the construction of an east - west corridor through the City. The first bond series was issued in 2005
($50,706,844 w/prem), the second was issued in 2006 ($45,944,355 w/prem), and the third was issued in 2014 ($36,280,770
w/prem).

The remaining authorized issuance balance at par is shown above in the last three columns.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
Governmental Bonds
September 30, 2019

Dollar Amount

Jurisdiction

Governmental
Bonded Debt
Outstanding

Percent
Applicable
to City (1)

Total Applicable
to City

Per Capita
Applicable to City

(Population =
191,903)

Overlapping Debt 
St. Lucie County 149,561,868 %48.86 $ 73,076,193 $ 381
St. Lucie County District School Board (2) 226,947,000 %43.09 97,791,581 510

Total  376,508,868 170,867,774 891
Direct Debt 

City of Port St. Lucie 395,152,469 %100.00 395,152,469 2,059

Total  and direct debt 771,661,337 $ 566,020,243 $ 2,950

(1) The percent applicable to the City is calculated using property taxable value ratios.

(2) School Board Year End is June 30. Exemptions for Economic Development and Additional Homestead are not included.

Sources: St. Lucie County Clerk of Circuit Court

St. Lucie County School Board

St. Lucie County Property Appraiser

City of Port St. Lucie Finance Department
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Revenue Bond Coverages
For the Years Ended September 30

Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2008 and Series 2011

Fiscal Year Ending

Local Government
Half-Cent Sales Tax

Revenue

Maximum Annual
Debt Service
Requirement Debt Service Coverage

2010 4,729,330 2,223,750 2.13

2011 4,928,954 2,223,750 2.22

2012 5,245,628 2,181,113 2.41

2013 5,510,580 2,181,113 2.53

2014 6,039,906 2,181,113 2.77

2015 6,483,062 2,181,113 2.97

2016 6,817,675 2,181,113 3.13

2017 7,368,151 2,181,113 3.38

2018 8,096,469 2,181,113 3.71

2019 8,364,279 2,175,500 3.84

Public Services Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B

Fiscal Year Ending
Electric Utility Tax

Revenue

Maximum Annual
Debt Service
Requirement Debt Service Coverage

2014 10,811,224 2,283,235 4.74

2015 11,193,318 1,323,194 8.46

2016 11,636,322 1,323,194 8.79

2017 12,035,953 1,323,194 9.10

2018 12,484,396 1,323,194 9.44

2019 13,359,987 1,318,844 10.13
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Revenue Bond Coverage
Stormwater Utility System

For the Years Ended September 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Stormwater revenues $ 23,675,557 $ 23,422,661 $ 22,305,048 $ 21,220,834 $ 20,522,362
Franchise revenues 9,735,609 9,334,125 9,105,721 8,806,371 8,940,735
Total pledged revenues 33,411,166 32,756,786 31,410,769 30,027,205 29,463,097
Less: Operating expenses (1) 18,590,368 18,346,187 18,237,800 15,925,681 16,429,532
Total net pledged revenues $ 14,820,798 $ 14,410,599 $ 13,172,969 $ 14,101,524 $ 13,033,565
Stormwater revenues less operating

expenses (1) $ 5,085,189 $ 5,076,474 $ 4,067,248 $ 5,295,153 $ 4,092,830
Annual debt service requirements

on Series 2010 A&B and Series
2011 Bonds $ 3,965,066 $ 3,967,462 $ 3,972,245 $ 3,985,849 $ 3,988,449

Debt service coverage based on
total pledged revenues 8.43 8.26 7.91 7.53 7.39

Debt service coverage based on
total net pledged revenues 3.74 3.63 3.32 3.54 3.27

(1) Excludes depreciation expense
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 20,281,050 $ 20,094,776 $ 19,315,669 $ 19,219,609 $ 19,019,552
8,534,011 7,755,163 8,161,246 7,656,194 7,987,044

28,815,061 27,849,939 27,476,915 26,875,803 27,006,596
15,761,175 15,645,467 18,001,709 15,726,612 14,467,667

$ 13,053,886 $ 12,204,472 $ 9,475,206 $ 11,149,191 $ 12,538,929

$ 4,519,875 $ 4,449,309 $ 1,313,960 $ 3,492,997 $ 4,551,885

$ 3,902,319 $ 3,409,248 $ 3,988,449 $ 3,988,449 $ 4,046,274

7.38 8.17 6.89 6.74 6.67

3.35 3.58 2.38 2.80 3.10
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Revenue Bond Coverage
Water and Sewer Utility System Revenue Bonds

For the Years Ended September 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Operating revenue
Charges for services $ 77,148,876 $ 72,767,625 $ 74,648,584 $ 71,447,324 $ 66,308,665
Miscellaneous revenues 1,020 111,124 137,346 85,911 100,123
Total operating revenues 77,149,896 72,878,749 74,785,930 71,533,235 66,408,788
Less: Operating expenses (1) 34,902,523 36,932,174 32,841,068 30,306,559 31,105,811
Net operating revenues 42,247,373 35,946,575 41,944,862 41,226,676 35,302,977
Other revenues
Interest income $ 2,294,602 $ 584,378 $ 711,999 $ 456,251 $ 496,409
Guarantees revenue $ 587,353 $ 227,848 $ 128,347 $ 137,440 $ 213,470
Total other revenues $ 2,881,955 $ 812,226 $ 840,346 $ 593,691 $ 709,879
Total net revenue available $ 45,129,328 $ 36,758,801 $ 42,785,208 $ 41,820,367 $ 36,012,856
Debt service coverage
Current sub accounts (2) 23,658,217 17,461,648 10,513,349 6,093,873 8,715,238
Debt service requirement 26,614,588 26,699,394 26,698,544 31,199,200 29,981,894
Coverage test (3)
Test 1a 1.70 1.38 1.60 1.34 1.20
Test 1b 2.58 2.03 2.00 1.54 1.49

Note: (1) Excludes depreciation expense

(2) The Capital Facilities Charge balances in the Capital Facility Fund, maxed at the debt service expansion
component.

(3) Per standard Utility bond resolution term, the Utility Bond Coverage Test 1a is Net Revenue / Debt Service and
should be 1.00 or greater, or the Utility Bond coverage Test 1b is Net Revenue + either Pledged CFCs or Current Sub Accounts
/ Debt Service and should be 1.10 or greater.
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

$ 64,285,901 $ 61,237,657 $ 58,708,951 $ 56,168,504 $ 52,535,104
72,193 1,163,867 398,903 2,476,104 2,598,709

64,358,094 62,401,524 59,107,854 58,644,608 55,133,813
29,870,425 28,489,427 28,127,327 29,069,871 31,393,224
34,487,669 33,912,097 30,980,527 29,574,737 23,740,589

$ 371,284 $ 425,139 $ 716,172 $ 1,133,271 $ 1,275,227
$ 478,785 $ 390,250 $ 193,163 $ 264,225 $ 504,500
$ 850,069 $ 815,389 $ 909,335 $ 1,397,496 $ 1,779,727
$ 35,337,738 $ 34,727,486 $ 31,889,862 $ 30,972,233 $ 25,520,316

11,745,450 8,584,777 7,678,071 6,670,510 3,959,931
32,709,626 32,917,853 27,150,475 25,307,749 25,129,341

1.08 1.05 1.17 1.22 1.02
1.44 1.32 1.46 1.49 1.17
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Population Statistics
Last Ten Years

City of Port St. Lucie, Florida County of St. Lucie, Florida

Year
Population

Number
Number Increase

(Decrease)
Percent Increase

(Decrease)
Population
Numbers

Number Increase
(Decrease)

Percent Increase
(Decrease)

City Population as
a Percent of

County

2010 164,603 9,352 %6.0 277,789 4,925 %1.8 %59.3

2011 166,041 1,438 %0.9 279,696 1,907 %0.7 %59.4

2012 167,252 1,211 %0.7 280,355 659 %0.2 %59.7

2013 167,914 662 %0.4 281,151 796 %0.3 %59.7

2014 169,888 1,974 %1.2 282,821 1,670 %0.6 %60.1

2015 174,132 4,244 %2.5 287,749 4,928 %1.7 %60.5

2016 178,091 3,959 %2.3 292,826 5,077 %1.8 %60.8

2017 181,284 3,193 %1.8 297,634 4,808 %1.6 %60.9

2018 185,843 4,559 %2.5 302,432 4,798 %1.6 %61.4

2019 191,903 6,060 %3.3 309,359 6,927 %2.3 %62.0

City Growth as a
Percent of County

Growth

Ten Year Growth 36,652 %21.6 - 36,495 %12.6 %100.4

Sources: Florida Office of Economic and Demographic Research.  Population data is estimated as of April 1st for each year
listed except for year 2010 which used actual census figures.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
(1)

Personal Income

(1)
Per Capita Personal

Income

(2)
Public School
Enrollment

(1)
Unemployment

Percentage

2010 16,414,400,000 38,605 26,352 %13.2
2011 17,507,000,000 40,870 25,543 %11.9
2012 19,202,500,000 44,428 25,929 %10.1
2013 18,870,000,000 43,188 26,045 %9.1
2014 20,715,000,000 46,672 26,327 %7.3
2015 22,105,000,000 48,727 26,266 %6.0
2016 23,614,000,000 50,134 26,299 %5.8
2017 24,825,600,000 51,824 26,755 %4.7
2018 26,140,273,000 54,228 26,523 %3.9
2019 n/a n/a 26,272 %3.5

(1) Prior year revisions included per U.S. Department of Labor.

(2) Starting in 2010, includes Savanna Ridge, Renaissance, and Nau Charter schools.  Starting in 2011, includes Palm Point
Charter.

NOTE: Public school and unemployment figures include Port St. Lucie only.  All other figures cover the Port St. Lucie
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA).

Sources: St. Lucie County Public School System

U.S. Department of Labor
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Principal Employers in St. Lucie County
2019 and 2010

2019 2010

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage
of Total

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of
Total

Employment

St. Lucie School Board 5205 1 %3.58 5350 1 %5.04

Indian River State College 2265 2 %1.56 1752 6 %1.65

Teleperformance 1850 3 %1.27 0 %-

St. Lucie County 1704 4 %1.17 1753 5 %1.65

Publix 1529 5 %1.05 0 %-

Lawnwood/HCA Medical 1479 6 %1.02 2710 2 %2.55

Amazon 1243 7 %0.86 0 %-

City of Port St. Lucie 1096 8 %0.76 1206 7 %1.13

St. Lucie Medical Center 892 9 %0.61 %-

Walmart Distribution Center 890 10 %0.61 2482 4 %2.34

Florida Power and Light Company %- 1038 9 %0.98

Liberty Health Group, Inc %- 2700 3 %2.54

QVC %- 1076 8 %1.01

McDonald's %- 638 10 %0.60

Total 18153 %12.49 20705 %19.49

 

Total jobs available 145,243 106,256

Sources: Economic Development Council (EDC) of St. Lucie County

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity

City of Port St. Lucie Payroll Department

St. Lucie County Consolidated Annual Financial Report

Note: State and Federal employers not ranked.

Information is for St. Lucie County. Specific City only information not available. 

This information uses most recent County and EDC data available.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Construction Values
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Residential Commercial

Year Number of Units Value Number of Units Value
2010 198 15,955,030 322 72,674,854
2011 188 20,315,132 245 52,119,534
2012 162 20,568,540 279 96,402,278
2013 430 50,306,661 292 59,575,324
2014 836 103,680,020 276 21,290,019
2015 928 121,984,614 353 42,343,799
2016 1,165 180,388,212 328 163,062,804
2017 1,492 207,284,671 367 57,745,656
2018 2,677 423,544,740 232 101,604,785
2019 2,546 503,001,543 242 172,844,438

Current Year Increase (Decrease) over Prior Year
Quantity & Amount (131) $ 79,456,803 10 $ 71,239,653
Percentage Change (4.89)% 18.76% 4.31% 70.11%

Source: City of Port St. Lucie Building Department.  The construction permit data switched from calendar year (January 1 -
December 31) to fiscal year (October - September 30) starting with Year 2011 figures.
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Employees - Full Time Equivalents by Function / Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Budgeted Full-time Equivalent

Function/Program 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

General Government 143.44 132.01 135.16 121.40 115.16
Public Safety 394.02 390.03 373.00 366.13 350.75
Physical Environment 16.00 16.00 14.00 14.00 14.00
Transportation 66.00 54.00 66.00 58.00 51.00
Economic Environment 9.43 13.80 7.86 6.48 7.40
Human Services 12.50 7.30 12.00 11.00 11.00
Culture and Recreation 128.67 128.67 123.05 118.80 117.09
Utility Systems 256.00 253.00 249.00 249.00 244.50
Stormwater Utility 61.00 73.00 61.00 61.00 67.50
Golf Course 9.38 9.38 9.38 9.38 9.38
Total 1,096.44 1,077.19 1,050.45 1,015.19 987.78

Source: Annual Budget

Note: Building Department moved from General Government to Public Safety in FY 2014
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Employees per Fiscal Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

107.68 137.22 132.97 127.16 144.26
350.50 312.72 300.72 308.63 364.55

14.00 14.00 14.00 14.00 16.00
51.65 51.65 65.50 68.50 80.00

7.38 6.82 10.04 10.02 9.38
11.00 11.00 13.00 14.00 16.00

115.99 113.79 114.84 112.77 138.25
245.10 249.60 250.10 250.00 272.00

67.50 67.00 61.25 60.50 66.00
9.63 9.33 9.33 17.33 20.33

980.43 973.13 971.75 982.91 1,126.77

190



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Departmental Operating Indicators
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

City Council (1) 
Council Meetings 48.00 45.00 42.00 46.00 50.00
Boards & Committee Meetings 138.00 124.00 134.00 162.00 121.00

City Clerk
Records Requested 1,155.00 2,861.00 1,512.00 1,318.00 1,356.00
Ordinances & Resolutions 178.00 158.00 191.00 204.00 250.00
Legal Notices Posted 386.00 290.00 436.00 325.00 275.00

Finance Department (1) 
Accounts Payable Checks 10,000.00 11,904.00 10,627.00 10,350.00 11,165.00
Wire & Electronic Transfers 6,500.00 6,676.00 6,094.00 5,658.00 5,592.00
Journal Entries 9,000.00 9,575.00 11,246.00 11,435.00 12,338.00
Business Tax Applications 7,500.00 7,765.00 7,304.00 8,300.00 9,100.00

Human Resources 
Empoyment Applications Processed 6,292.00 6,213.00 5,844.00 5,289.00 4,099.00

Neighborhood Services
Housing Assistance (#of families) 2.00 13.00 36.00 20.00 40.00
Code Cases 8,250.00 13,482.00 7,216.00 7,898.00 8,681.00
Code Board Hearings 1,527.00 3,511.00 499.00 754.00 621.00

Information Technology (1) 
Servers Maintained (incl. virtual) 200.00 145.00 139.00 148.00 145.00
Workstations Maintained 1,525.00 1,621.00 3,136.00 2,686.00 2,328.00
Work Orders Completed 7,700.00 7,685.00 7,376.00 5,828.00 4,976.00

Management & Budget
Budget Amendments 2.00 2.00 4.00 4.00 3.00

Procurement Management (1)
Requests for Proposals 142.00 235.00 274.00 205.00 145.00
Contracts Maintained 1,335.00 2,930.00 4,675.00 4,695.00 837.00

Animal Control
Animal Cases 2,659.00 3,177.00 7,414.00 7,138.00 7,128.00
Animal Licenses 4,284.00 3,373.00 11,374.00 11,672.00 7,010.00

Planning Department
Plans and Petitions Reviewed 112.00 185.00 99.00 95.00 77.00
Comprehensive Plan Amendments 14.00 7.00 11.00 14.00 5.00

(1) Some previous year's values revised.

Source: Annual Budget
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

52.00 52.00 40.00 44.00 52.00
185.00 185.00 180.00 180.00 180.00

1,028.00 1,560.00 1,779.00 1,196.00 1,309.00
245.00 203.00 210.00 193.00 249.00
295.00 325.00 330.00 354.00 328.00

15,393.00 15,957.00 14,640.00 11,774.00 12,246.00
535.00 582.00 471.00 586.00 742.00

13,700.00 13,589.00 13,759.00 15,504.00 16,834.00
7,600.00 8,200.00 7,587.00 7,649.00 9,000.00

5,200.00 3,500.00 3,000.00 2,500.00 3,000.00

74.00 96.00 58.00 68.00 34.00
9,582.00 12,946.00 10,000.00 8,499.00 10,182.00

994.00 1,162.00 300.00 213.00 656.00

145.00 62.00 62.00 45.00 45.00
2,373.00 1,017.00 1,092.00 870.00 870.00
4,429.00 4,200.00 4,023.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

120.00 30.00 14.00 28.00 45.00
1,700.00 1,680.00 1,500.00 1,140.00 1,152.00

7,496.00 6,776.00 7,529.00 7,528.00 8,231.00
9,811.00 10,626.00 10,301.00 10,027.00 11,996.00

114.00 78.00 87.00 91.00 91.00
9.00 5.00 6.00 7.00 11.00

192



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Departmental Operating Indicators
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Police Department (1)
Arrests 2,013.00 4,483.00 3,887.00 3,893.00 3,948.00
Traffic Citations Issued 21,990.00 6,349.00 11,098.00 4,434.00 9,538.00
Calls for Service 146,498.00 131,782.00 142,023.00 110,647.00 110,013.00
Parking Tickets 198.00 262.00 726.00 211.00 352.00

Municipal Garage
Vehicle Accidents 140.00 118.00 139.00 81.00 89.00

Parks & Recreation Department
Parks Maintained 48.00 47.00 47.00 46.00 36.00
Recreation Programs 2,672.00 1,622.00 1,795.00 1,650.00 1,588.00
Acres maintained 4,629.00 4,616.00 4,017.00 4,012.00 3,985.00

Engineering Department (1)
Residential Plot Plans Reviewed 3,072.00 1,089.00 1,231.00 1,125.00 912.00
Site Plans Reviewed 214.00 198.00 174.00 163.00 222.00
Mark & Locates 3,314.00 3,117.00 3,604.00 2,731.00 3,015.00

Public Works (1)
Swale Improvements (linear feet) 31,065.00 53,900.00 78,610.00 106,843.00 26,590.00
Canal Drainage Mnt. (miles) 24.00 10.00 24.00 33.00 31.00
Street Paving (overlay miles) 35.00 17.00 16.00 8.00 9.00

Building Department
Permits Issued 25,865.00 20,265.00 15,269.00 12,675.00 10,609.00
Plans Reviewed & Approved 10,240.00 13,592.00 8,985.00 7,712.00 7,956.00
Total Dwelling Units 2,200.00 1,572.00 900.00 590.00 491.00

Utility Department 
Underground Locates 28,182.00 14,192.00 12,439.00 8,268.00 8,539.00
Water Mains maintained (miles) 1,263.00 1,238.00 1,233.00 1,230.00 1,225.00
Sewer Mains Maintained (miles) 1,072.00 1,053.00 1,048.00 1,045.00 1,038.00
Water Treatment Capacity (mgd) 41.65 41.65 41.65 41.65 41.65
Sewer Treatment Plant Capacity (mgd) 18.00 18.00 16.93 16.93 18.00

(1) Some previous year's values revised.

Source: Annual Budget
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

3,445.00 3,155.00 2,452.00 4,869.00 4,869.00
10,881.00 10,371.00 8,864.00 20,054.00 20,054.00

113,122.00 108,686.00 154,749.00 151,376.00 151,376.00
399.00 544.00 275.00 1,135.00 1,135.00

83.00 97.00 90.00 136.00 152.00

36.00 34.00 34.00 34.00 34.00
1,588.00 1,812.00 1,051.00 901.00 924.00

885.00 797.00 797.00 797.00 797.00

734.00 359.00 371.00 338.00 369.00
144.00 113.00 132.00 23.00 22.00

3,015.00 1,794.00 1,758.00 2,968.00 3,757.00

126,590.00 149,880.00 151,105.00 126,160.00 159,300.00
31.00 39.00 26.00 27.00 30.00

5.00 17.00 18.00 20.00 21.00

10,609.00 3,753.00 8,112.00 8,138.00 8,241.00
7,956.00 1,429.00 7,449.00 7,150.00 8,241.00

491.00 54.00 188.00 255.00 450.00

6,406.00 6,756.00 7,176.00 10,372.00 11,241.00
1,220.00 1,219.00 1,214.00 1,204.00 1,193.00
1,036.00 975.00 1,035.00 1,023.00 1,021.00

41.65 41.65 41.65 41.65 41.65
18.00 18.00 18.00 16.93 19.07

194



City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Capital Asset Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function/Program 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Police Department 
Stations 2 2 2 2 2
Police / Public Safety Vehicles 326 353 362 354 343
Average Total Mileage per Veh. 49,529 58,637 71,485 73,031 73,739

Municipal Garage
Non-Public Safety Vehicles 430 381 403 386 382
Average Total Mileage per Veh. 65,180 70,007 72,947 71,981 73,606

Parks & Recreation Department
Parks Maintained 48 47 47 47 46
Acres Maintained 1,529 4,619 4,616 4,017 4,012

Engineering 
Traffic Signals 105 162 162 161 157
Street Lights 3,022 6,601 6,578 6,488 6,387

Public Works
Paved Streets (miles) 912 917 917 917 917

Utility Department 
Water Mains (miles) 1,263 1,245 1,238 1,233 1,230
Water Treatment Plants 2 2 2 2 2
Water Treatment Capacity (million gallons per day) 42 42 42 42 42
Wastewater Mains (miles) 1,072 1,057 1,053 1,048 1,045
Wastewater Treatment Plants 2 2 2 2 3
Wastewater Treatment Capacity (million gallons per

day) 18 18 18 17 17
Golf Course

Municipal Golf Course 1 1 1 1 1

Source: Annual Budget; Public Works and Financial Management Department
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

2 2 3 3 3
301 307 290 293 300

76,939 84,482 78,211 68,755 65,452

358 362 374 372 387
74,786 77,591 71,786 65,500 60,474

36 36 34 34 34
3,985 885 797 797 797

158 157 150 146 146
6,228 5,968 5,534 5,185 4,692

888 888 887 887 887

1,225 1,220 1,219 1,214 1,204
2 2 2 2 2

42 42 42 42 42
1,038 1,036 975 1,035 1,023

2 2 2 2 3

18 18 18 18 17

1 1 1 1 1
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City of Port St. Lucie, Florida

Utility System Statistics
Ten Largest Accounts FY 18 - 19

Customer Account Type Water Sewer Total Percentage

1 Tropicana Manufacturing Industrial 826,098 21,371 847,469 %1.16
2 Wynne Building Corp. Residential 288,893 492,582 781,475 %1.07
3 Allied New Technologies Industrial 686,729 - 686,729 %0.94
4 St. Lucie County School Board Institutional 152,754 453,446 606,200 %0.83
5 Fl Dept of Corrections Institutional 447,393 - 447,393 %0.61
6 Holiday Village of Sandpiper Residential 164,111 280,990 445,101 %0.61
7 Creative Choice Homes Residential 136,152 214,228 350,380 %0.48
8 Sanctuary at Winterlakes LLC Residential 121,507 197,737 319,244 %0.44
9 KMJ Apartments LLC Residential 108,843 191,068 299,911 %0.41

10 HCA Health Services of FL LLC Medical 131,730 119,416 251,146 %0.34

Total of top ten $ 3,064,210 1,970,838 5,035,048 %6.89

Total of others 67,884,834 %93.11

Total of all customers 72,919,882 %100.00

Source: City of Port St. Lucie Utilities for the 12 months ending September 30, 2019.
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CITYÿOFÿPORTÿST.ÿLUCIE,ÿFLORIDA
SCHEDULEÿOFÿEXPENDITURESÿOFÿFEDERALÿAWARDSÿAND

STATEÿFINANCIALÿASSISTANCE
ForÿtheÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

CFDA/ Contract
CSFA Grant

Number Number Expenditures

FEDERALÿAWARDS:

HousingÿandÿUrbanÿDevelopment,ÿDepartmentÿofÿ(HUD)
DirectÿProgram:

CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿCluster
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(15 16) 14.218 B 15 MC 12 0038 5,382$ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(16 17) 14.218 B 16 MC 12 0038 62,954ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(17 18) 14.218 B 17 MC 12 0038 460,272ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(18 19) 14.218 B 18 MC 12 0038 390,665ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(NSP 1) 14.218 B 08 MN 12 0025 36,809ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CommunityÿDevelopmentÿBlockÿGrants/EntitilementÿGrantÿ(NSP 3) 14.218 B 11 MN 12 0025 31,365ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TotalÿCFDAÿ14.218 987,447ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Justice,ÿDepartmentÿofÿ(DOJ)
EdwardÿByrneÿJusticeÿAssistanceÿGrantÿ(JAG)ÿProgram 16.738 2017 DJ BX 1001 19,537ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

EdwardÿByrneÿJusticeÿAssistanceÿGrantÿ(JAG)ÿProgram 16.738 2018 DJ BX 0493 18,361ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

EdwardÿByrneÿJusticeÿAssistanceÿGrantÿ(JAG)ÿProgram 16.738 2019 JAGC STLU 1 N2 126ÿ 32,943ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TotalÿCFDAÿ16.738 70,841ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Pass ThroughÿFloridaÿOfficeÿofÿtheÿAttorneyÿGeneral
CrimeÿVictimÿAssistance 16.575 VOCA 2017 CityÿofÿPortÿStÿLucie 00593 20,732ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CrimeÿVictimÿAssistance 16.575 VOCA 2018 CityÿofÿPortÿStÿLucie 00477 193,160ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TotalÿCFDAÿ16.575 213,892ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

Transportation,ÿDepartmentÿ(DOT)
HighwayÿPlaningÿandÿConstructionÿCluster

Pass ThroughÿFloridaÿDepartmentÿofÿTransportation

HighwayÿPlaningÿandÿConstructionÿ 20.205 ARE70 16,776,867ÿÿÿÿÿÿ
CrosstownÿParkwayÿBridgeÿConstruction

HighwayÿPlaningÿandÿConstructionÿ 20.205 G1440 294,723ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
PaarÿDr.ÿSidewalkÿImprovementsÿ(LAP)

HighwayÿPlaningÿandÿConstructionÿ 20.205 G0U28 307,786ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
PSLÿBlvdÿandÿGatlinÿIntersectionÿImprovementsÿ(LAP)

TotalÿCFDAÿ20.205 17,379,376ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

HomelandÿSecurity,ÿDepartmentÿofÿ(ÿDHS)
DisasterÿGrants PublicÿAssistanceÿ(PresidentiallyÿDeclaredÿDisaster)
PassedÿThroughÿtheÿFloridaÿDivisionÿEmergencyÿManagement:
ÿÿÿÿDisasterÿGrants PublicÿAssistanceÿ(PresidentiallyÿDeclaredÿDisaster)
ÿ ÿHurricaneÿIrmaÿ(DR 4337) 97.036 PA 00 10 66 01 370 3,767,633ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TotalÿCFDAÿ97.036 3,767,633ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

EnvironmentalÿProtectionÿAgencyÿ(EPA)
DirectÿProgram
NonpointÿSourceÿImplementationÿGrants

McCartyÿRanchÿExtentionÿWaterÿQualityÿRestorationÿAreaÿ1 66.460 NF028 587,353ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

587,353ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TOTALÿEXPENDITURESÿOFÿFEDERALÿAWARDS 23,006,542$ÿÿÿÿ

Description
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SCHEDULEÿOFÿEXPENDITURESÿOFÿFEDERALÿAWARDSÿAND

STATEÿFINANCIALÿASSISTANCE
ForÿtheÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019

STATEÿFINANCIALÿASSISTANCE:

FloridaÿHousingÿFinanceÿCorporation:
DirectÿProgram

StateÿHousingÿInitiativesÿPartnershipÿProgramÿ(SHIP) 40.901 n/a 1,152,821$ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

DepartmentÿofÿEconomicÿOpportunity
DirectÿProgram

GrowthÿManagementÿImplementation 40.024 P0315 40,000ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

PassedÿThroughÿtheÿFloridaÿDepartmentÿofÿTransportation
EconomicÿDevelopmentÿTaxÿRefund,ÿTaxÿCredit,ÿandÿGrantÿProgram 40.043 GOU24 2,938,806ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

DepartmentÿofÿStateÿandÿDivisionÿofÿHistoricÿResources
DirectÿProgram

Acquisition,ÿRestorationÿofÿHistoricÿProperties 45.032 SC725 350,000ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

FloridaÿDepartmentÿofÿTransportation
FloridaÿHighwayÿBeautificationÿGrantÿProgram

LitterÿControlÿandÿPreventionÿ 55.003 GOH21 16,064ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
LocalÿAgencyÿParticipationÿAgreementÿ(LAP)

FishÿandÿWildlifeÿConservationÿCommision
DirectÿProgram

ÿFloridaÿBoatingÿImprovementÿProgram 77.006 14096 26,724ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TOTALÿSTATEÿFINANCIALÿASSISTANCE 4,524,415$ÿÿÿÿÿÿ

TOTALÿEXPENDITURESÿOFÿFEDERALÿAWARDSÿ&ÿSTATEÿFINANCIALÿASSISTANCE 27,530,958$ÿÿÿÿ

TheÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucieÿdidÿnotÿpassÿthroughÿanyÿfundsÿtoÿsubrecipients.
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NOTEÿAÿʹÿBASISÿOFÿPRESENTATIONÿ
ÿ
TheÿaccompanyingÿScheduleÿofÿExpendituresÿofÿFederalÿAwardsÿandÿStateÿFinancialÿAssistanceÿwasÿpreparedÿtoÿsummarizeÿtheÿactivityÿ
ofÿallÿ federalÿandÿstateÿawardsÿofÿ theÿCityÿofÿPortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿ forÿ theÿ yearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019.ÿ ÿForÿpurposesÿofÿ thisÿ
schedule,ÿfederalÿprogramsÿandÿstateÿfinancialÿassistanceÿincludedÿallÿgrantsÿenteredÿintoÿdirectlyÿbetweenÿtheÿCityÿandÿagenciesÿandÿ
departmentsÿ ofÿ theÿ federalÿ orÿ stateÿ governmentÿwithÿ expendituresÿ duringÿ theÿ fiscalÿ year.ÿ ÿ Federalÿ programsÿ andÿ stateÿ financialÿ
assistanceÿ passedÿ throughÿ fromÿ otherÿ governmentÿ agenciesÿ areÿ alsoÿ includedÿ inÿ theÿ schedule.ÿ ÿ Theÿ scheduleÿ alsoÿ includesÿ
reimbursementsÿinÿtheÿcurrentÿyearÿifÿqualifyingÿexpendituresÿwereÿincurredÿbyÿ ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͛�ďƵƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
qualifyingÿforÿreimbursementÿandÿreceivedÿinÿtheÿcurrentÿyear.ÿAdditionally,ÿtheÿCityÿdidÿnotÿreceiveÿanyÿnoncashÿassistance,ÿfederalÿ
loans,ÿorÿfederallyÿfundedÿinsuranceÿduringÿtheÿyearÿendedÿSeptemberÿ30,ÿ2019.ÿÿ
ÿ

NOTEÿBÿʹÿPROGRAMÿINCOMEÿ
ÿ
TheÿfederalÿexpendituresÿpresentedÿinÿtheÿScheduleÿofÿExpendituresÿofÿFederalÿAwardsÿandÿStateÿFinancialÿAssistanceÿforÿtheÿCityÿofÿ
PortÿSt.ÿLucie,ÿFloridaÿincludeÿexpendituresÿfundedÿbyÿprogramÿincome.ÿÿTheÿfollowingÿscheduleÿshowsÿtotalÿgrant relatedÿexpendituresÿ
andÿtheirÿfundingÿsourceÿforÿHUDÿgrants,ÿasÿtheseÿareÿtheÿonlyÿgrantsÿwithÿprogramÿincome.ÿ
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ Federalÿÿ
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ CFDAÿ
ÿ ÿ ÿ ProgramÿTitleÿ ÿ ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ Numberÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ Expendituresÿ ÿ
ÿ ÿ
ÿ NeighborhoodÿStabilizationÿProgramÿ(NSPÿ1)ÿÿ ÿ ÿ 14.218ÿ

ÿÿÿÿÿFederalÿexpendituresÿfundedÿbyÿprogramÿincomeÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ36,809ÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿTotalÿgrant relatedÿexpendituresÿreportedÿonÿSEFAÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ36,809ÿÿÿÿÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ
ÿ
ÿ NeighborhoodÿStabilizationÿProgramÿ(NSPÿ3)ÿÿ ÿ ÿ 14.218ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿFederalÿexpendituresÿfundedÿbyÿprogramÿincomeÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ31,365ÿ
ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ
ÿ ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿTotalÿgrant relatedÿexpendituresÿreportedÿonÿSEFAÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ $ÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿÿ31,365ÿÿÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ___ÿ_ÿ
ÿ
NOTEÿCÿʹÿCONTINGENCYÿ
ÿ
Theÿgrantÿrevenueÿamountsÿreceivedÿareÿsubjectÿtoÿauditÿandÿadjustment.ÿÿIfÿanyÿexpendituresÿareÿdisallowedÿbyÿaÿgrantorÿagencyÿasÿ
aÿresultÿofÿsuchÿaudit,ÿanyÿclaimÿforÿreimbursementÿtoÿtheÿgrantorÿagenciesÿwouldÿbecomeÿaÿliabilityÿofÿtheÿCity.ÿÿInÿtheÿopinionÿofÿ
management,ÿallÿgrantÿexpendituresÿareÿinÿcomplianceÿwithÿtheÿtermsÿofÿtheÿgrantÿagreementsÿandÿapplicableÿfederalÿandÿstateÿlawsÿ
andÿregulations.ÿ
ÿ
NOTEÿDÿʹÿINDIRECTÿCOSTÿRATEÿ
ÿ
TheÿCityÿdidÿnotÿelectÿtoÿutilizeÿtheÿ10%ÿdeÿminimisÿindirectÿcostÿrate.ÿ
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InÿresponseÿtoÿyourÿauditÿissuesÿforÿtheÿauditÿcompletedÿforÿFiscalÿYearÿ(FY)ÿ2018 19ÿIÿofferÿtheÿ
followingÿcorrectiveÿactionÿplans:ÿ
ÿ
MaterialÿWeaknesses:ÿ
ÿ

1) 2019 001ÿ Netÿ Assetsÿ ʹÿ Thisÿ issueÿ wasÿ resolvedÿ duringÿ theÿ audit.ÿ ÿ Thisÿ wasÿ aÿ simpleÿ
classificationÿerrorÿwhichÿwillÿnotÿbeÿrepeated.ÿ

2) 2018 006ÿFixedÿAssetsÿʹÿTheÿfixedÿassetsÿwillÿbeÿreconciledÿtoÿtheÿfinancialÿstatementsÿ
priorÿtoÿprovidingÿdraftÿdataÿtoÿtheÿauditors.ÿÿThisÿwillÿbeÿaccomplishedÿbeforeÿtheÿendÿofÿ
calendarÿyearÿ2020ÿforÿtheÿFYÿ2019 20ÿaudit.ÿ

ÿ
SignificantÿDeficiencies:ÿ
ÿ

3) 2019 002ÿEvaluateÿAllowanceÿforÿDoubtfulÿAccountsÿʹÿTheÿCityÿwillÿestablishÿanÿallowanceÿ
forÿdoubtfulÿaccountsÿbalanceÿforÿitemsÿinÿexcessÿofÿsevenÿyearsÿforÿFYÿ19 20.ÿÿTheÿCityÿ
generallyÿcollectsÿaÿsignificantÿportionÿofÿtheseÿamountsÿduringÿtheÿfirstÿsevenÿyears.ÿÿThisÿ
willÿbeÿcorrectedÿforÿtheÿFYÿ2019 20ÿaudit.ÿÿ

4) 2019 003ÿ Reviewÿ ofÿ Reportsÿ ʹÿ Theÿ Cityÿ isÿ inÿ theÿ processÿ ofÿ centralizingÿ theÿ financialÿ
reportingÿ forÿ allÿ federalÿandÿ stateÿ grants.ÿ ÿ Thisÿwillÿbeÿaidedÿbyÿ theÿuseÿofÿ theÿGrantsÿ
Moduleÿ forÿ ourÿ Enterpriseÿ Resourceÿ Planningÿ System,ÿMunis.ÿ ÿ Programÿ reportingÿwillÿ
remainÿdecentralized.ÿÿWeÿwillÿensureÿthatÿallÿfinancialÿgrantÿreportingÿisÿreviewedÿbyÿaÿ
secondÿpersonÿduringÿFYÿ19 20.ÿÿWeÿwillÿalsoÿstronglyÿencourageÿtheÿrecipientsÿofÿtheseÿ
grantsÿtoÿensureÿthatÿaÿsecondÿpersonÿreviewÿtheÿprogramÿreports.ÿ

ÿ
ManagementÿLetterÿItems:ÿ
ÿ

5) 2018 008ÿPermitÿBillingÿAdjustmentsÿʹÿTheÿCityÿwillÿbeÿimplementingÿadditionalÿmanualÿ
internalÿcontrolÿproceduresÿtoÿensureÿthatÿtheÿrisksÿidentifiedÿwillÿbeÿmitigated.ÿÿTheÿissueÿ
shouldÿbeÿmitigatedÿbyÿtheÿfiscalÿyearÿend.ÿ

6) 2018 010ÿCashÿHandlingÿProceduresÿʹÿDuringÿtheÿpriorÿyearÿweÿrespondedÿtoÿthisÿissueÿasÿ
ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͖�͞TheÿCityÿisÿbeginningÿonÿaÿjourneyÿtoÿstrengthenÿinternalÿcontrolsÿoverÿourÿcashÿ
handling.ÿÿWeÿwillÿreviewÿallÿareasÿofÿcashÿhandlingÿinÿaÿsystematicÿandÿrationalÿbasisÿtoÿ
implementÿtheseÿimprovements.ÿÿTheÿCityÿbelievesÿthatÿweÿwillÿmakeÿsignificantÿprogressÿ
duringÿtheÿremainderÿofÿthisÿfiscalÿyear.͟��dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�ŚĂƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĞ�
believeÿaddressedÿallÿofÿtheÿissuesÿnotedÿinÿthisÿitemÿshortlyÿafterÿtheÿyearÿendÿandÿpriorÿ
toÿtheÿendÿofÿtheÿcurrentÿFYÿ18 19ÿaudit.ÿÿThisÿissueÿhasÿbeenÿcorrected.ÿ

ÿ
ÿ
ÿ

ÿ
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7) 2018 12ÿFinancialÿReserveÿPolicyÿʹÿTheÿCityÿisÿandÿhasÿbeenÿawareÿthatÿtheÿGolfÿCourseÿ
Fundÿ isÿ operatingÿ atÿ aÿ deficit.ÿ ÿ Theÿ City͛Ɛ� 'ĞŶĞƌĂů� &ƵŶĚ� ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ� capitalÿ purchasesÿ
approximatelyÿ$200,000ÿandÿapproximatelyÿ$500,000ÿinÿanÿeffortÿtoÿassistÿtheÿGolfÿCourseÿ
Fundÿmeetÿtheÿreserveÿrequirements.ÿÿUnfortunately,ÿdueÿtoÿtheÿCOVID 19ÿpandemicÿthisÿ
supportÿwillÿnotÿenoughÿtoÿmakeÿtheÿgolfÿcourseÿprofitable.ÿÿBecauseÿtheÿGolfÿCourseÿisÿ
notÿanÿessentialÿfunctionÿtoÿensureÿtheÿsafetyÿandÿwelfareÿofÿourÿcitizens,ÿweÿwillÿbeÿÿ

ÿ
















